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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
T ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011

OR
0] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 001-34375

CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC.

(Exact name of Registrant as Specified in Its Grart

DELAWARE 33-0827592
(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation og@mization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No
3020 CALLAN ROAD, SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA 92121
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area c(®%8) 458-0900

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(hefAct:
Common stock, par value $0.001
Warrants, exercisable for common stock, par value 001

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefAct:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 dB¢loerities Act.
YesoNo T

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Exchange Act.
YesoNo T

Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@s filed all reports required to be filed by Sectl3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sslobrter period that the registrant was requirefildsuch reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
Yes T Noo

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hibsnitted electronically and posted on its corpokilb site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRuie 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of this ¢egpduring the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files).

Yes T Noo

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§2&% of this chapter) is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the beshefregistrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy ofdrmation statements incorporated by
reference in Part Il of this Form 10-K or any arderent to this Form 10-K. T

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of “large accelerated,fifaccelerated filer” and “smaller reporting coary” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act
(Check one).
Large Accelerated Fileo Accelerated FilerT Non-Accelerated Filero Smaller reporting compano
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule -2 of the Exchange Act



YesoNo T




The aggregate market value of the common stockeofegistrant held by non-affiliates of the registron June 30, 2011, the last business day
of the registrant’'s most recently completed sedwwal quarter, was $227,294,414 based on thergasales price of the registrant's common
stock on June 30, 2011 as reported on the Nasdawp@Warket, of $4.79 per share.

As of February 29, 2012, there were 57,928,606eshaf the registrant’s common stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy staent to be filed with the Securities and Exchange@ission pursuant to Regulation 14A in
connection with the registrant’s 2012 Annual Megtid Stockholders, within 120 days after the regists fiscal year end of December 31,
2011, are incorporated by reference in Part Iéimi$ 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 of this Form 10-K.
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PART |

Item 1. Busine ss
General

Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. is developing cell theeapbased on autologous adipose-derived stem gedeeative cells (ADRCSs) to treat
cardiovascular disease and repair soft tissue tfef@ar scientific data suggest ADRCs improve blfiod/, moderate the immune response
keep tissue at risk of dying alive. As a result,bvedieve these cells can be applied across multipdbemic” conditions. These therapies are
made available by our proprietary device, the Gah® System, which automates the extraction anggragion of clinical grade ADRCs at the
point-of-care.

Clinical Pipeline: Cardiovascular Disease

The most advanced therapeutic application in darcel pipeline is for cardiovascular disease. W ursuing applications for ADRCs in
chronic myocardial ischemia (heart failure) andtacuyocardial infarction (heart attacks).

We completed our PRECISE clinical trial in patiewith chronic myocardial ischemia, a severe forncaonary artery disease. Primary
six-month outcomes and longer-term 18-month dabavdtg safety and sustained improvement in cardiactional capacity (mVQ) were

reported in 2010. Based on this data, in 2011 vpdieghfor approval in Europe to expand the Cell®dDE Mark (currently approved for
general processing, breast reconstruction and stifetissue claims) to include patients witheytion chronic myocardial ischemia (CMI). \
anticipate a regulatory body decision on that agpilon in 2012.

In December 2011, Cytori filed an Investigationavize Exemption (IDE) application with the Food dhaig Administration (FDA) for
the ATHENA U.S. safety and feasibility trial for voption CMI patients. Subsequent to the end ofyther, we received approval to initiate the
trial. The ATHENA trial is a multi-center, randoneid, double blind, placebo controlled, safety arasitality trial that will enroll up to 45
patients.

In 2011, we received approval for and initiated ABNCE, our European trial for acute heart attackguas. ADVANCE is a prospective,
randomized, placebo controlled, double-blind chitial that will enroll up to 360 patients withymcardial infarction in up to 35 treatment
centers, predominately in Europe. It was desigrasgt on the results of our APOLLO safety and fddgilrial for a similar patient
population. Long-term, 18-month data from the AP@Ltrial demonstrated safety and sustained improweimenfarct size and perfusion.

Commercial Business

Soft Tissue:

Commercial efforts are focused primarily on breasbnstruction. Our RESTORE-2 partial mastectonepmstruction trial demonstrated
high level of patient and physician satisfactiothwireatment outcomes at 6-months that were sestaih12-months. Blinded analysis of MRI
images by an independent core laboratory confiraigective improvements in breast shape and defeqiesafter treatment .

Our primary focus is to obtain reimbursement fa @elution® System consumable for cell-enrichedstreeconstruction. These efforts
are most advanced in the UK, while efforts to tamjber G5 countries are also underway. Additigna# are seeking both approval and
reimbursement in Japan. Securing reimbursemenglidv us optimal conditions to formally launch quroduct in the respective countries.

In Europe, the Celution® 800 System has CE Markayg for certain soft tissue procedures includimgast reconstruction. The System
is currently offered on a pre-launch basis witlie EU and select countries in Europe and Asia titr@ucombination of direct sales and
distributor-based sales channels.

Research

We sell our products to researchers at academterseand hospitals to fulfill the demand for acdesstem and regenerative cells at the
point-of-care. Certain researchers have chosetutly patient outcomes in specific indications tderstand the benefit of these cells under
their own independently sponsored studies. Oumousts are investigating a broad array of applicatiocluding stress urinary incontinence,
wound healing, fistula repair, burn, facial wastiliger insufficiency, radiation injury, bone regeation, kidney disease, spinal disc injury,
periodontal disease, vocal cord paralysis and perg vascular disease.
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Cell & Tissue Banking

We currently sell our StemSource® Banking line,@npassing three product configurations, to hospitabstic surgery clinics, tissue
banks, and stem cell banking companies worldwidés{de the U.S.). Customers can purchase bankgtiaile ADRC banking, ADRC and
adipose tissue banking, or tissue banking alone.

We market StemSourceBanks worldwide through a combination of distrilrgtand direct sales. We remain responsible for fiaatwring
and sourcing all necessary equipment, includingibtitimited to cryopreservation chambers, cookng thawing devices, cell banking
protocols and the proprietary software and databppécation.

Other Products

Cytori is also commercializing products to meetdieenand for best-in-class autologous fat graft®gr Puregraft® System is designed to
streamline the fat graft preparation process bgcsielely washing and filtering the tissue to remeowataminants in a closed, sterile field.
Puregraft® was cleared for sale in the U.S. andamal for sale in the EU in January and July 20&8pectively, and is currently being sold
for and used in fat grafting procedures in bottonstructive and cosmetic procedures.

We offer a range of ancillary products designedptimize tissue harvest and graft delivery. Amadmg ¢fferings is the Celbrush®, a
surgical instrument for precise delivery of microplets that was launched in 2009. Sold separatedyin combination with other items, the
Celbrush® is sold to reconstructive and cosmetigeans worldwide and may be used for both autoledatugrafting and cell-enriched fat
grafting procedures. We also offer instrumentatmoptimize tissue harvest.

Manufacturing and Raw Materials

The majority of our products are manufactured atabmpanys headquarters in San Diego, CA. Our internal meastufing capabilities a
expected to enable us to meet anticipated dema®dli®. Exceptions include Celution® One, one of rext-generation devices, which will |
used in our cardiovascular disease clinical devalag and components of our Puregraft® System aoitlay supplies. Celution® One is
manufactured through a joint venture arrangemetwdzen Cytori and Olympus Corporation (Olympus)|abgl optics and life science
company. The manufacture of our products are, laadnanufacture of any future cell-related therapearbducts would be, subject to periodic
inspection by regulatory authorities and distribotpartners. The manufacture of devices and predachuman use is subject to regulation
and inspection from time to time by the FDA for qaiance with the FDA’s Quality System RegulationQSR, requirements, as well as
equivalent requirements and inspections by stadenan-U.S. regulatory authorities.

Raw materials required to manufacture the Celuti@y®tem family of products and disposables are contyravailable from multiple
sources, and we have identified and executed s@gplsements with our preferred vendors. Some dpeciamponents are custom made for
us, and we are dependent on the ability of thegpligus to deliver functioning parts or materiaisai timely manner to meet the ongoing
demand for our products. There can be no assuthatee will be able to obtain adequate quantiiethe necessary raw materials supplies
within a reasonable time or at commercially reabtmarices. Interruptions in supplies due to priaajng, or availability or other issues with
our suppliers could have a negative impact on bilityato manufacture products.

Competition

The field of regenerative medicine is expandingdigpin large part through the development of dx&lked therapies or devices designe
isolate cells from human tissues. Most efforts Imgaell sources such as bone marrow, placentalgisumbilical cord and peripheral blood,
and skeletal muscle. We work exclusively with adt#tm and regenerative cells from adipose tissue.

Many companies are working in this field. We conepatross several areas, including equity and dagiitaical trial sites, enrollment of
patients in clinical trials, corporate partnershiasd eventually anticipate competing for commérmiarket share. Some of our competitors and
potential competitors have substantially greateairicial, technological, research and developmeatketing, and personnel resources than we
do. We cannot with any accuracy forecast when tireie companies are likely to bring cell therappemarket for indications that we are also
pursuing.
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Some of our competitors work with adipose-deriveliisc To the best of our knowledge, none of thesapanies are currently conducting
prospective, controlled human clinical trials norahy of these companies have regulatory clearfamdbeir product in Europe (under the
medical device directive) or in the United Statasaddition, we are aware of several surgeons wa@arforming autologous fat transfers u:
manual methods, some of whom enrich the fat witblagous adipose-derived cells.

Companies researching and developing cell-basedgtes for cardiovascular disease include, amohgrstAastrom, Athersys, Baxter,
Capricor, Cytomedix, Mesoblast, NeoStem, and Qslti@se companies are in various stages of clidiea¢lopment in the U.S. and Europe,
investigating their respective cell therapies fouta myocardial infarction (heart attack), chromigocardial ischemia or other forms of
coronary artery disease, as well as certain vascalaitions.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses were $10,904%68,/,000 and $12,231,000 for the years endedrbeer 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively. These expenses have suppbeduhsic research, product development and cliaialities necessary to bring our
products to market.

Our research and development efforts in 2011 fatpsedominantly on the following areas:

« Made preparations for a prospective, n-center safety and feasibility study (ATHENA Triad)the US for the treatment of chror
myocardial ischemia. Prepared and filed Investigeti Device Exemption (IDE) application with the ABbllowing a PrelDE meeting. It
January 2012, Cytori received approval from the RDAegin the ATHENA trial

- Initiated the ADVANCE multi-center clinical triabf acute heart attack patients in the EU; iderttifiéal centers, sought hospital and
country approvals, and began patient enrollm

« Prepared and submitted an application to our ectifiody in the EU to expand our CE Mark claimstifier Celutio® System to includ
na-option chronic myocardial ischemia patients andelraaintained ongoing dialogu

« Continued patient follo-up from the APOLLO heart attack and PRECISI-options chronic myocardial ischemia trie

« Reported final outcomes of RESTORE-2 lumpectomycdefeconstruction studies demonstrating highaoapetient and physician
satisfaction with treatment resul

« Obtained CE Mark claims for the next generationuGeh® One System;

« Prepared and submitted multiple regulatory filingthe United States, Europe, and Japan relatedrious cell and tissue process
systems under developme

« Continued to optimize and develop the Celu® System family of products and n-generation devices, sin-use consumables a
related instrumentatiol

Customers

Cytori has established a network of distributorowlffer our Puregraft® System and Celution® Syst@strumentation and consumables
to surgeons and hospitals throughout Europe. Ttlisggbutors purchase the products from Cytori ebatractually agreed-upon transfer price.
We also market our Celution® System directly totooegers in select countries within Europe. In additiwe offer the StemSource® 900/MB
as research laboratory equipment or as part dstbmSource® Cell Bank (a comprehensive suite adyets to allow hospitals or tissue banks
to cryopreserve adipose-derived stem and regewnereils) directly to customers. In Asia, Austrakairope and India, we sell the Celution®
System directly to customers, many of whom are acecl hospitals, who are sponsoring and funding theh independent, investigator-led
clinical studies using the product. Puregraft® #velStemSource adipose-only banks are sold directtystomers in the United States.
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Sales by Geographic Region

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 arfy] pé@duct revenue came from sales of Puregrafi® Ctelution®800/CRS System,
related instrumentation and consumables to thefg&am and Asia-Pacific cosmetic and reconstructivgesy markets, as well as from sales of
the StemSource® laboratory and banking equipmetiter).S. and Asia.

Planned Capital Expenditures

We expect to spend approximately $1 million on mquipment purchases in 2012. These may bewticour available cash, or
financed if appropriate.

Intellectual Property

Our success depends in large part on our abilipratect our proprietary technology, including elution® System product platform,
and to operate without infringing on the proprigteghts of third parties. We rely on a combinatafrpatent, trade secret, copyright and
trademark laws, as well as confidentiality agreetfiditensing agreements and other agreementstdblish and protect our proprietary rights.
Our success also depends, in part, on our abiligvbid infringing patents issued to others. Ifwere judicially determined to be infringing on
any third party patent, we could be required to gamages, alter our products or processes, olitaimskes or cease certain activities.

To protect our proprietary medical technologies|uding the Celution® System platform and otheestific discoveries, Cytori has 43
issued patents worldwide. We have 14 issued UtBngmaand 29 issued international patents. Of thisdued U.S. patents, 2 were issued in
2011 and 2 were issued in 2012 thus far. Of this@%d international patents, 10 were issued il 20 none so far in 2012. In addition, we
have over 100 patent applications pending worldwédigted to our technology. We are seeking additipatents on methods and systems for
processing adipose-derived stem and regeneratilge @e the use of adipose-derived stem and regéimercells for a variety of therapeutic
indications, including their mechanisms of actiams,compositions of matter that include adiposeveerstem and regenerative cells, and on
other scientific discoveries. We are also the esigky worldwide licensee of the Regents of the lersity of California’s rights to a portfolio
related to isolated adipose derived stem cells.

We cannot assure that any of our pending patedicagipns will be issued, that we will develop dtifahal proprietary products that are
patentable, that any patents issued to us willigeous with competitive advantages or will not baltenged by any third parties or that the
patents of others will not prevent the commercéion of products incorporating our technology.tRarmore, we cannot assure that others
not independently develop similar products, dupiany of our products or design around our patéhfs. patent applications are not
immediately made public, so we might be surprisgthle grant to someone else of a patent on a téofyave are actively using.

There is a risk that any patent applications thafile and any patents that we hold or later obtainld be challenged by third parties and
declared invalid or infringing of third party clamA patent interference proceeding may be institwtith the U.S. Patent and Trademark
Office (the “USPTO")when more than one person files a patent applicatwering the same technology, or if someone wgisbehallenge tf
validity of an issued patent. At the completiortlué interference proceeding, the USPTO will detaemichich competing applicant is entitled
to the patent, or whether an issued patent is vRhdent interference proceedings are complexhigintested legal proceedings, and the
USPTO'’s decision is subject to appeal. This mehasit an interference proceeding arises with resfzeany of our patent applications, we
may experience significant expenses and delaytairbg a patent, and if the outcome of the prooepts unfavorable to us, the patent could
be issued to a competitor rather than to us. litiaddo interference proceedings, the USPTO canamine issued patents at the request of a
third party seeking to have the patent invalidafdtpatents are subject to requests for reexarandiy third parties. This means that patents
owned or licensed by us may be subject to reexaimimand may be lost, or some or all claims mayiegamendment or cancellation, if the
outcome of the reexamination is unfavorable tdPadent reexamination proceedings are long and eogbceedings and could result in a
reduction or loss of patent rights.

Patent law outside the United States is uncertaghida many countries is currently undergoing revawd revisions. The laws of some
countries may not protect our proprietary rightgh® same extent as the laws of the United Statesd parties may attempt to oppose the
issuance of patents to us in foreign countriesniiiating opposition proceedings. One of our grdrifeiropean Patents is under opposition. We
do not yet know what effects, if any, the oppositiaill have on this granted patent. Opposition pextings against any of our patent filings
foreign country could have an adverse effect oncouresponding patents that are issued or penditigei U.S. It may be necessary or usefu
us to participate in proceedings to determine tdility of our patents or our competitors’ patethitat have been issued in countries other than
the United States. This could result in substaitigts, divert our efforts and attention from otagpects of our business, and could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operatiamd financial condition. We currently have pegdiatent applications and issued patents in
Europe, Brazil, Mexico, India, Russia, Australiapdn, Canada, China, Korea, and Singapore, ambegsot
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In addition to patent protection, we rely on unpétd trade secrets and proprietary technologiga¢eise. We cannot assure you that
others will not independently develop or othervaseguire substantially equivalent techniques, somwedain access to our trade secrets and
proprietary technological expertise or disclosehsmade secrets, or that we can ultimately pratectrights to such unpatented trade secret:
proprietary technological expertise. We rely, imtpan confidentiality agreements with our markgtpartners, employees, advisors, vendors
and consultants to protect our trade secrets aytiptary technological expertise. We cannot asgatethat these agreements will not be
breached, that we will have adequate remediesnfpbeeach or that our unpatented trade secretpramietary technological expertise will 1
otherwise become known or be independently diseal/by competitors.

Government Regulation

As medical devices that yield cells with therapepttential, our products must receive regulatéegmances or approvals from the
European Union, the FDA and, from other applicgjueernments prior to their sale. Our current anidriuCelution® Systems are or will be
subject to stringent government regulation in tmitél States by the FDA under the Federal Foodgnd Cosmetic Act. The FDA regulates
the design/development process, clinical testirgpufacture, safety, labeling, sale, distributiard aromotion of medical devices and drugs.
Included among these regulations are pre-markatamee and pre-market approval requirements, desigtnol requirements, and the Quality
System Regulations/Good Manufacturing Practicesedtatutory and regulatory requirements govermray other things, registration and
inspection, medical device listing, prohibitionsaatst misbranding and adulteration, labeling anst{poarket reporting.

The Celution® System family of products must alsmply with the government regulations of each ifdiial country in which the
products are to be distributed and sold. Thesda#gos vary in complexity and can be as stringantl on occasion even more stringent, than
FDA regulations in the United States. Internatioqg@ternment regulations vary from country to coyiaind region to region. For example,
regulations in some parts of the world only reqpireduct registration while other regions / cowegriequire a complex product approval
process. Due to the fact that there are new andgéngecell therapy and cell banking regulationg theve recently been drafted and/or
implemented in various countries around the wdHd,application and subsequent implementationefeémew and emerging regulations have
little to no precedence. Therefore, the level ohptexity and stringency is not always preciselyenstbod today for each country, creating
greater uncertainty for the international regubafmrocess. Furthermore, government regulationschange with little to no notice and may
result in up-regulation of our product(s), theretngating a greater regulatory burden for our gedtessing and cell banking technology
products.

Worldwide, the regulatory process can be lengthgeasive, and uncertain with no guarantee of aggr@efore any new medical device
may be introduced to the U.S. market, the manufactgenerally must obtain FDA clearance or apprévaugh either the 510(k) pre-market
notification process or the lengthier pre-markeirapal application (PMA) process, which requiresichl trials to generate clinical data
supportive of safety and efficacy. Approval of a Rgbuld take four or more years from the time thecpss is initiated. Our core Celution®
System processing device products under developanergenerally subject to the lengthier PMA prodessnany specific applications. Failt
to comply with applicable requirements can resulipplication integrity proceedings, fines, recaliseizures of products, injunctions, civil
penalties, total or partial suspensions of productivithdrawals of existing product approvals @achnces, refusals to approve or clear new
applications or notifications, and criminal prosgou.

Specifically, regulation of the Celution® SystemBuarope and the U.S. for use in cardiovascularadiseequires that we conduct clinical
trials to collect safety and efficacy data to supprarketing approvals. We have completed a ptladysin Europe for acute myocardial
infarction and have since commenced a larger studnded to seek approval. We completed a pilatystar chronic myocardial ischemia in
Europe and based on the data are seeking a liaitecbval in Europe. And in the U.S., we receive# l@pproval from the FDA and are now
commencing a safety and feasibility trial for chicomyocardial ischemia under the device regulatiiaghe PMA pathway.

We continue to pursue additional indications thitotlge 510(k) and humanitarian use device (HUD)atts for various indications-for-
use.
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Summary of Celution ® System Family Regulatory Status

| Region | Clinical Applications IReguIatoryStatus I

|Japan |Ce|| Banking IApproved I

Celution® 800 and Celution One: Cell Processingéimplantation |CE Mark
or re-infusion into same patient (General Procegsin

Celution® 800 and Celution One: Breast reconstouncthealing of |CE Mark
Crohn’s wounds and other cosmetic procedures

Europe Celution® 800 Chronic myocardial ischemia CE Mark submission for expanded claims under rejew
Acute Heart Attack In clinical trial
Multiple specific surgical claims Pre-clinical
Cell Concentration CE Mark
Celution® One cosmetic and reconstructive surgi&iyns CE Mark
u.s. No option chronic myocardial ischemia IDE/PMA safety and feasibility trial approved; to

initiate in 2012

Our Puregraft® family of products and the Celbrusi® cleared in the U.S. and CE Mark approved iofiwe are seeking approval in
other countries around the world. These produesliare complementary to our core Celution® andtehapy business.

Medical devices are also subject to post-marketnteyy requirements for deaths or serious injuviben the device may have caused or
contributed to the death or serious injury, andcfentain device malfunctions that would be likedycause or contribute to a death or serious
injury if the malfunction were to recur. If safety effectiveness problems occur after the prodeathes the market, the FDA may take steps tc
prevent or limit further marketing of the produstditionally, the FDA actively enforces regulatiomhibiting marketing and promotion of
devices for indications or uses that have not ldeared or approved by the FDA. In addition, madifions or enhancements of products that
could affect the safety or effectiveness or eftentajor change in the intended use of a devicenhateither cleared through the 510(K) pro
or approved through the PMA process may requirdaéur=DA review through new 510(k) or PMA submissio

Lastly, the FDA is currently considering modificais to the 510(k) and HUD process. The extent fiedteof these potential
modifications are not currently known. Moreoveg #ffect these changes may have on our abilitytaio future 510(k) clearances and HUD
approvals is also not currently clear. Regardléskenlack of current specificity regarding the gutial effect, it is relatively well accepted that
these changes to the FDA 510(k) and HUD systemalvitost certainly result in a more rigorous appr@racess.

We must comply with extensive regulations from fgngurisdictions regarding safety, manufacturimggesses and quality. These
regulations, including the requirements for marigthuthorization and may differ from the FDA redgaigt scheme in the United States.
Specifically, in regard to our Thin Film produatdiin Japan (to be distributed by Senko once aggllowe have been seeking marketing
authorization from the Japanese Ministry of Hedl#ihour and Welfare (MHLW), but have not obtainppmvals yet.

Employees

As of December 31, 2011, we had 128 employeegjdiray part-time and full-time employees. These eygés are comprised of 17
employees in manufacturing, 47 employees in rebeamd development, 30 employees in sales and niragkaatd 34 employees in
management, finance and administration. From tonterie, we also employ independent contractorsipgpert our operations. Our employees
are not represented by any collective bargainingergents and we have never experienced an orgamtrédstoppage.

Corporate Information and Web Site Access to SEC Fings

We were initially formed as a California generaftparship in July 1996, and incorporated in theeStd Delaware in May 1997. We were
formerly known as MacroPore Biosurgery, Inc., aetbbe that as MacroPore, Inc. Our corporate offareslocated at 3020 Callan Road, San
Diego, CA 92121. Our telephone number is (858) @980. We maintain an Internet website at www.cytorn. Through this site, we make
available free of charge our annual reports on FDBrK, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current ipon Form 8-K, and amendments to
those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Secti®(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934cas s reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material with, or furnithto, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commisgs#C). In addition, we publish on our
website all reports filed under Section 16(a) & 8ecurities Exchange Act by our directors, ofcand 10% stockholders. These materials are
accessible via the Investor Relations section ofwebsite within the “SEC Filings” link. Some ofetinformation is stored directly on our
website, while other information can be accessesdbgcting the provided link to the section on$&C website, which contains filings for our
company and its insiders.
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Item 1A. Risk Fact ors
In analyzing our company, you should consider adhethe following risk factors together with alf the other information included in th
annual report on Form 10-K. Factors that could ahedy affect our business, operating results, andrfcial condition, as well as adversely
affect the value of an investment in our commockstiaclude those discussed below, as well as ttisseissed above in “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition @esults of Operatio” and elsewhere throughout this annual report orrfRdl0-K.

We are subject to the following significant riskspong others:

We will likely need to raise more cash in the figtur

We have almost always had negative cash flows fsperations. Our business will continue to resul substantial requirement for
research and development expenses for several yleaiisg which we may not be able to bring in stifint cash and/or revenues to offset these
expenses. We will likely be required to raise caitom one or more sources in the future to cargifunding our operations to profitability.
We do not currently believe that our cash balamgkthe revenues from our operations will be sugfitito fund the development and marke
efforts required to reach profitability without s&ig additional capital from accessible sourcenaincing in the future. In addition, our
Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreeméht®éneral Electric Capital Corporation, Siliconllég Bank and Oxford Finance
Corporation requires us to maintain certain minimzash requirements, and if our cash reservesdiithose minimum requirements, then
we could be in default under our loan agreementsaiject to potential adverse remedies by the lsneéhich would have a substantial and
material adverse effect on our business, finarmgatition, results of operations, the value of cammon stock and warrants and our ability to
raise capital. There is no guarantee that adeduatis will be available when needed from additiashetht or equity financing, arrangements
with development and commercialization partnersrgased results of operations, or from other sa@reon terms attractive to us. Our
inability to obtain sufficient additional funds the future would, at a minimum, require us to dekoale back, or eliminate some or all of our
research or product development, manufacturingatipers, clinical or regulatory activities, whichutd have a substantial negative effect on
our results of operations and financial condition.

Continued turmoil in the economy could harm ouribess

Negative trends in the general economy, includiagds resulting from an actual or perceived reoessightening credit markets,
increased cost of commodities, including oil, attrahreatened military action by the United Ssaaed threats of terrorist attacks in the Ur
States and abroad, could cause a reduction oftimess in and available funding for companies intaierindustries, including ours and our
customers. Our ability to raise capital has beehraay in the future be adversely affected by dowrgtun current credit conditions, financial
markets and the global economy.

We have never been profitable on an operationas laasl expect significant operating losses fomttet few years

We have incurred net operating losses in eachsipae we started business. As our focus on thetiGe® System platform and
development of therapeutic applications for itdutat output has increased, losses have resultethgly from expenses associated with
research and development activities and generahdmdnistrative expenses. While we work continuptslimplement cost reduction
measures where possible, we nonetheless expeattinwe operating in a loss position on a constdiddasis and that recurring operating
expenses will be at high levels for the next sdwarars, in order to perform clinical trials, adolital preelinical research, product developm
and marketing. As a result of our historic losses have been, and are likely to continue to béamebn raising outside capital to fund our
operations.
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Our business strategy is higisk

We are focusing our resources and efforts primanilydevelopment of the Celution® System family afqucts and the therapeutic
applications of its cellular output, which requiegensive cash needs for research, developmeht,anmercialization activities. This is a
high-risk strategy because there is no assuramt@tin future products will ever become commergiaidble (commercial risk), that we will
prevent other companies from depriving us of masketre and profit margins by selling products basedur inventions and developments
(legal risk), that we will successfully manage anpany in a new area of business (regenerative inegliand on a different scale than we have
operated in the past (operational risk), that wielve able to achieve the desired therapeutic tesising stem and regenerative cells (scientific
risk), or that our cash resources will be adeqtatievelop our products until we become profitalfleyer (financial risk). We are using our
cash in one of the riskiest industries in the econéstrategic risk). This may make our stock aruitable investment for many investors.

Our joint venture and relationship with Olympus angortant to us

Our business depends in part on keeping our busietetionship with Olympus Corporation and ounjaienture collaboration with them
operating smoothly and efficiently. We have givegr@pus-Cytori, Inc. an exclusive license to mantdee future generation Celution®
System devices. If Olympus-Cytori, Inc. does natcassfully develop and manufacture these devicesnay experience disruptions and/or
delays of our commercialization of these devicés the market. Any significant disruption of outationship or our business activity with
Olympus could affect our operations and commemadilbn efforts (clinical, regulatory and/or commatsales), and be harmful to our
business.

We and Olympus must overcome contractual and @llharriers. Although our relationship is formatheasured by a set of complex
contracts, many aspects of the relationship wilhbe-contractual and must be worked out betweepdhies and the responsible individuals.
The joint venture is intended to have a long lfied it is difficult to maintain cooperative relatghips over a long period of time in the face of
various kinds of change. Cultural differences, udahg language barrier to some degree, may affiecetficiency of the relationship.

Olympus<Cytori, Inc. is 50% owned by us and 50% owned byn@plus. By contract, each side must consent befoyeha wide variety o
important business actions can occur. This sitngtimssesses a risk of potentially time-consumirgydifficult negotiations which could at
some point delay the joint venture from pursuisgoitisiness strategies.

Olympus is entitled to designate the joint ventiohiief executive officer and a majority of its baf directors, which means that day-to-
day decisions which are not subject to a contrhe®t@ will essentially be controlled by Olympus.dddition, Olympus-Cytori, Inc. may
require more money than its current capitalizatioarder to complete development and productiofutafre generation devices. If we are
unable to help provide future financing for OlymgDigtori, Inc., our relative equity interest in Olpans-Cytori, Inc. may decrease.

Furthermore, under a License/Joint Development ément among Olympus-Cytori, Inc., Olympus, andQlgmpus may have a
significant role in the development of Olympus-Qyittnc.’s next generation devices. Although Olyrafhas extensive experience in
developing medical devices, this arrangement tadtesl in a reduction of our control over the depehent and manufacturing of the next
generation devices. Any significant disruption ofieity by Olympus in connection with our businestationship and/or the development of
Olympus-Cytori's next generation devices and ourtjeenture could be harmful to our business.

In 2011 Olympus experienced issues which havededdgignificant change in the management struetu€@ympus. We believe that these
changes will continue to develop in 2012 and thist possible that they could affect our Joint \teatrelationship. If the Joint Venture is
materially impacted by such changes in a manneistbaificantly disrupts our operations and comnadization efforts (clinical, regulatory
and/or commercial sales), then our business caltblbmed.

We have a limited operating history; operating Itssand stock price can be volatile like many fiftsence companies

Our prospects must be evaluated in light of thiesrend difficulties frequently encountered by enreggompanies and particularly by si
companies in rapidly evolving and technologicalliganced biotech and medical device fields. Frone timtime, we have tried to update our
investors’ expectations as to our operating resltperiodically announcing financial guidance. Hwer, we have in the past been forced to
revise or withdraw such guidance due to lack abilisy and predictability of product demand. Ouoesk price has a history of significant
volatility, which may harm our ability to raise atidnal capital and may cause an investment in €ytobe unsuitable for some investors.
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We are vulnerable to competition and technologit@nge, and also to physiciaisertia

We compete with many domestic and foreign companiegveloping our technology and products, inalgdbiotechnology, medical
device, and pharmaceutical companies. Many cuaettpotential competitors have substantially grdatancial, technological, research and
development, marketing, and personnel resourcesrelil no assurance that our competitors will notsed in developing alternative products
that are more effective, easier to use, or mora@wdical than those which we have developed orratied process of developing, or that would
render our products obsolete and non-competitivgeheral, we may not be able to prevent others fieveloping and marketing competitive
products similar to ours or which perform similanétions.

Competitors may have greater experience in devedpibierapies or devices, conducting clinical trialstaining regulatory clearances or
approvals, manufacturing and commercializatiois ftossible that competitors may obtain patentqutain, approval, or clearance from the
FDA or achieve commercialization earlier than we,@ny of which could have a substantial negatffeceon our business. Finally, Olympus
and our other partners might pursue parallel dgretmt of other technologies or products, which mesylt in a partner developing additional
products competitive with ours.

We compete against cell-based therapies derivenl &iternate sources, such as bone marrow, umbdaral blood and potentially
embryos. Doctors historically are slow to adopt rieehnologies like ours, regardless of the perckiverits, when older technologies continue
to be supported by established providers. Overcgmirch inertia often requires very significant nedifkg expenditures or definitive product
performance and/or pricing superiority.

We expect physicians’ inertia and skepticism to &ls a significant barrier as we attempt to gainketgpenetration with our future
products. We believe we will continue to need tafice lengthy time-consuming clinical studies tovfte evidence of the medical benefit of
our products and resulting therapies in order &rovme this inertia and skepticism particularlygnonstructive surgery, cell preservation, the
cardiovascular area and many other indications.

Most potential applications of our technology are-gommercialization, which subjects us to developnaent marketing risks

We are in a relatively early stage of the pathdmmercialization with many of our products. We beé that our long-term viability and
growth will depend in large part on our abilitydevelop commercial quality cell processing devimed useful procedurgpecific consumable
and to establish the safety and efficacy of ourapies through clinical trials and studies. Withr Qelution® System platform, we are pursuing
new approaches for reconstructive surgery, pretiervaf stem and regenerative cells for potentilife use, therapies for cardiovascular
disease, soft tissue defects, and other conditiimsre is no assurance that our development pragvéthbe successfully completed or that
required regulatory clearances or approvals wilbbeined on a timely basis, if at all.

There is no proven path for commercializing theuBeh® System platform in a way to earn a durabtfipcommensurate with the
medical benefit. Although we began to commerciatine reconstructive surgery products in Europe @arthain Asian markets, and our cell
banking products in Japan, Europe, and certainmAsiarkets in 2008, additional market opportunif@smnany of our products and/or services
may not materialize for a number of years.

Successful development and market acceptance gdroducts is subject to developmental risks, inicigdailure of inventive imaginatiol
ineffectiveness, lack of safety, unreliability,léae to receive necessary regulatory clearancepprovals, high commercial cost, preclusion or
obsolescence resulting from third parties’ progigtrights or superior or equivalent products, cetitipn from copycat products, and general
economic conditions affecting purchasing pattefieere is no assurance that we or our partnersudgitessfully develop and commercialize
our products, or that our competitors will not depecompeting technologies that are less experwigeiperior. Failure to successfully develop
and market our products would have a substantgdting effect on our results of operations andrfaial condition.

Market acceptance of new technology such as ourdeadlifficult to obtain

New and emerging cell therapy and cell bankingrnetdgies, such as those provided by the Celutiop®esn family of products, may
have difficulty or encounter significant delaysaibtaining market acceptance in some or all coumtiteund the world due to the novelty of
cell therapy and cell banking technologies. Therfthe market adoption of our cell therapy andllzahking technologies may be slow and
lengthy with no assurances that significant maakietption will be successful. The lack of marketam or reduced or minimal market
adoption of our cell therapy and cell banking teabgies may have a significant impact on our apttit successfully sell our product(s) into a
country or region.
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Future clinical trial results may differ significddyfrom our expectations

While we have proceeded incrementally with ourichihtrials in an effort to gauge the risks of pgeding with larger and more expensive
trials, we cannot guarantee that we will not exgrece negative results larger and much more expefinical trials than we have conducted to
date, such as the new ADVANCE acute heart attaakitr Europe. Poor results in our clinical trialsuld result in substantial delays in
commercialization, substantial negative effectstmnperception of our products, and substantiaitiaddl costs. These risks are increased by
our reliance on third parties in the performancenahy of the clinical trial functions, includingetitlinical investigators, hospitals, and other
third party service providers.

We have limited manufacturing experience

We have limited experience in manufacturing theuGeh® System platform or its consumables at a cencial level. With respect to our
Joint Venture, although Olympus is a highly capatid experienced manufacturer of medical devitesetcan be no guarantee that the
Olympus-Cytori Joint Venture will be able to sucsfely develop and manufacture the next generdfielution® System in a manner that is
cost-effective or commercially viable, or that dieygnent and manufacturing capabilities might n&etenuch longer than currently anticipated
to be ready for the market.

Although we have been manufacturing the the Cai@®i800 System and the StemSource® 900-based Cek Slace 2008, we cannot
assure that we will be able to manufacture sufficrrimbers of such products to meet the demantiabwe will be able to overcome
unforeseen manufacturing difficulties for theselgsficated medical devices.

In the event that the Olympus-Cytori Joint Ventisraot successful in the development and manufaaifithe next generation Celution®
One System, Cytori may not have the resourcesitityab self-manufacture sufficient numbers of @ms and consumables to meet market
demand, and this failure may substantially extémdtime it would take for us to bring a more adwhcommercial device to market. This
makes us significantly dependant on the continwestiodition and skill of Olympus for the successieNelopment of future generation
Celution® Systems.

We may not be able to protect our proprietary sght

Our success depends in part on whether we canairaimir existing patents, obtain additional patemigintain trade secret protection,
operate without infringing on the proprietary riglaf third parties.

There can be no assurance that any of our penditegipapplications will be approved or that we wélelop additional proprietary
products that are patentable. There is also noasse that any patents issued to us will not bedbmsubject of a rexamination, will provid
us with competitive advantages, will not be chajketh by any third parties, or that the patents béis will not prevent the commercializatior
products incorporating our technology. Furthermtuere can be no guarantee that others will napeddently develop similar products,
duplicate any of our products, or design aroundpatents.

Our commercial success will also depend, in parpar ability to avoid infringing on patents issueddthers. If we were judicially
determined to be infringing on any third-party paiteve could be required to pay damages, altepmgtucts or processes, obtain licenses, or
cease certain activities. If we are required infthere to obtain any licenses from third partiesdome of our products, there can be no
guarantee that we would be able to do so on comatigréavorable terms, if at all. U.S. patent applions are not immediately made public
we might be surprised by the grant to someonedélagpatent on a technology we are actively usitggnoted above and in the case of the
University of Pittsburgh lawsuit, even patents &sto us or our licensors might be judicially detered to belong in full or in part to third
parties.

Litigation, which would result in substantial costsus and diversion of effort on our part, maynkeeessary to enforce or confirm the
ownership of any patents issued or licensed tous determine the scope and validity of thirakty proprietary rights. If our competitors cli
technology also claimed by us and prepare anghéitent applications in the United States, we mas i@ participate in interference
proceedings declared by the U.S. Patent and Tratte@féice or a foreign patent office to determingopity of invention, which could result in
substantial costs to and diversion of effort, eifeéhe eventual outcome is favorable to us. Anybslitigation or interference proceeding,
regardless of outcome, could be expensive and ¢consuming.
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Successful challenges to our patents through oppiesj reexamination proceedings or interferenoe@edings could result in a loss of
patent rights in the relevant jurisdiction. If weainsuccessful in actions we bring against therpatof other parties and it is determined that
we infringe the patents of third-parties, we maysbbject to litigation, or otherwise prevented froommercializing potential products in the
relevant jurisdiction, or may be required to obti@ienses to those patents or develop or obtaémredtive technologies, any of which could
harm our business. Furthermore, if such challetgesir patent rights are not resolved in our fawg,could be delayed or prevented from
entering into new collaborations or from commeigial certain products, which could adversely affaer business and results of operations.

Competitors or third parties may infringe our p&eiVe may be required to file patent infringemelatms, which can be expensive and
time-consuming. In addition, in an infringementgeeding, a court may decide that a patent of @unst valid or is unenforceable, or that the
third party’s technology does not in fact infringgon our patents. An adverse determination of gigation or defense proceedings could put
one or more of our patents at risk of being inwatid or interpreted narrowly and could put ourteglgpending patent applications at risk of not
issuing. Litigation may fail and, even if successfoay result in substantial costs and be a distra¢o our management. We may not be ak
prevent misappropriation of our proprietary rightarticularly in countries outside the U.S. wheagept rights may be more difficult to enfor
Furthermore, because of the substantial amounsobdery required in connection with intellectuabjperty litigation, there is a risk that some
of our confidential or sensitive information coddd compromised by disclosure in the event of litaya In addition, during the course of
litigation there could be public announcementshefriesults of hearings, motions or other interimcpedings or developments. If securities
analysts or investors perceive these results teebative, it could have a substantial adverse effethe price of our common stock.

In addition to patents, which alone may not be &blerotect the fundamentals of our business, we @ly on unpatented trade secrets and
proprietary technological expertise. Some of oternided future cell-related therapeutic products fitagto this category. We rely, in part, on
confidentiality agreements with our partners, empés, advisors, vendors, and consultants to protedrade secrets and proprietary
technological expertise. There can be no guaraghteghese agreements will not be breached, omtbatill have adequate remedies for any
breach, or that our unpatented trade secrets aquliptary technological expertise will not othergvlsecome known or be independently
discovered by competitors.

Our amended regenerative cell technology licenseeagent with the Regents of the University of @atifa (UC) which includes issued
U.S. patent number 7,470,537, contains certainldpreental milestones, which if not achieved codsult in the loss of exclusivity or loss of
the license rights. The loss of such rights comgact our ability to develop certain regeneratigk technology products. Also, our power as
licensee to successfully use these rights to ercboanpetitors from the market is untested.

Failure to obtain or maintain patent protectionpmtect trade secrets, for any reason (or thirtlypaaims against our patents, trade
secrets, or proprietary rights, or our involvemiendisputes over our patents, trade secrets, @rigtary rights, including involvement in
litigation), could have a substantial negative effen our results of operations and financial cbodi

We may not be able to protect our intellectual propin countries outside the United States

Intellectual property law outside the United Stagegncertain and in many countries is currentlgengoing review and revisions. The le
of some countries do not protect our patent andrdtiiellectual property rights to the same exentnited States laws. This is particularly
relevant to us as most of our current commerciadlpct sales and clinical trials are outside ofiiméted States. Third parties may attempt to
oppose the issuance of patents to us in foreigntdes by initiating opposition proceedings. Oppiosi proceedings against any of our patent
filings in a foreign country could have an advezffect on our corresponding patents that are issu@eénding in the United States. It may be
necessary or useful for us to participate in prdoegs to determine the validity of our patents or competitors’ patents that have been issued
in countries other than the U.S. This could resuftubstantial costs, divert our efforts and attenfrom other aspects of our business, and
could have a material adverse effect on our resfilbperations and financial condition. We curreiithve pending patent applications in
Europe, Australia, Japan, Canada, China, KoreaSamghpore, among others.
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We and our Olympu€ytori, Inc. joint venture are subject to FDA regfitn

As medical devices, the Celution® System familpafducts, Puregraft ® family of products and théb@esh® must receive regulatory
clearances or approvals from the FDA and, in mastances, from non-U.S. and state governments foritieir sale. The Celution® System
family of products is subject to stringent govermmegulation in the United States by the FDA untierFederal Food, Drug and Cosmetic
Act. The FDA regulates the design/development mocelinical testing, manufacture, safety, labelsale, distribution, and promotion of
medical devices and drugs. Included among thesdatons are pre-market clearance and pre-markgbapl requirements, design control
requirements, and the Quality System Regulationsd@danufacturing Practices. Other statutory andletgry requirements govern, among
other things, establishment registration and inspecmedical device listing, prohibitions againssbranding and adulteration, labeling and
post-market reporting.

The regulatory process can be lengthy, expensieuacertain. Before any new medical device mayntseduced to the U.S. market, the
manufacturer generally must obtain FDA clearancepproval through either the 510(k) pre-marketfigatiion process or the lengthier pre-
market approval application, or PMA, process. higally takes from three to 12 months from subrois$d obtain 510(k) pre-market
clearance, although it may take longer. Approva &fMA could take four or more years from the tiime process is initiated. The 510(k) and
PMA processes can be expensive, uncertain, anthigrand there is no guarantee of ultimate clesamapproval. We expect that some of
our products under development today or in ther@ytas well as Olympus-Cytaosi will be subject to the lengthier PMA processci8mg FDA
clearances and approvals may require the submis$iextensive clinical data and supporting inforimato the FDA, and there can be no
guarantee of ultimate clearance or approval. Failarcomply with applicable requirements can reisudtpplication integrity proceedings, fin
recalls or seizures of products, injunctions, gdéhalties, total or partial suspensions of pradactithdrawals of existing product approvals
or clearances, refusals to approve or clear newcapipns or notifications, and criminal prosecutio

Medical devices are also subject to post-marketnteyy requirements for deaths or serious injuviben the device may have caused or
contributed to the death or serious injury, andckmntain device malfunctions that would be likedycause or contribute to a death or serious
injury if the malfunction were to recur. If safety effectiveness problems occur after the prodeaties the market, the FDA may take steps tc
prevent or limit further marketing of the produ&tditionally, the FDA actively enforces regulatigpohibiting marketing and promotion of
devices for indications or uses that have not lobesared or approved by the FDA.

There can be no guarantee that we will be ablétaio the necessary 510(k) clearances or PMA apgsdo market and manufacture our
other products in the United States for their ideshuse on a timely basis, if at all. Delays irefetof or failure to receive such clearances or
approvals, the loss of previously received cleagarar approvals, or failure to comply with existrgfuture regulatory requirements could
have a substantial negative effect on our restilbgperations and financial condition.

To sell in international markets, we will be subjerregulation in foreign countries

In cooperation with our distribution partners, witend to market our current and future product$ lloimestically and in many foreign
markets. A number of risks are inherent in inteoretl transactions. In order for us to market owdpcts in Europe, Canada, Japan and ce
other non-U.S. jurisdictions, we need to obtain arantain required regulatory approvals or cleaearand must comply with extensive
regulations regarding safety, manufacturing proegessid quality. For example, we still have not ioleté requlatory approval for our Thin Fil
products in Japan. These regulations, includingelieirements for approvals or clearances to mankay differ from the FDA regulatory
scheme. International sales also may be limitedissupted by political instability, price controtsade restrictions and changes in tariffs.
Additionally, fluctuations in currency exchangeesimay adversely affect demand for our producisidrgasing the price of our products in
currency of the countries in which the productssariel.

There can be no assurance that we will obtain etgyl approvals or clearances in all of the coestwhere we intend to market our
products, or that we will not incur significant t®# obtaining or maintaining foreign regulatoppaovals or clearances, or that we will be ¢
to successfully commercialize current or futuredurts in various foreign markets. Delays in receffdpprovals or clearances to market our
products in foreign countries, failure to receivets approvals or clearances or the future lossefipusly received approvals or clearances
could have a substantial negative effect on ouwrltesf operations and financial condition.
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Changing, new and/or emerging government requlatmay adversely affect us

Government regulations can change without notideeiGthe fact that Cytori operates in various in&ional markets, our access to such
markets could change with little to no warning doi@ change in government regulations that suddgmsegulate our product(s) and create
greater regulatory burden for our cell therapy esliibanking technology products.

Due to the fact that there are new and emergirigresiapy and cell banking regulations that hawendy been drafted and/or implemer
in various countries around the world, the appilicatind subsequent implementation of these newearetging regulations have little to no
precedence. Therefore, the level of complexity stnidgency is not known and may vary from countrgountry, creating greater uncertainty
for the international regulatory process.

Anticipated or unanticipated changes in the wagnanner in which the FDA regulates products or @s&ggoups of products can delay,
further burden, or alleviate regulatory pathway thiere once available to other products. Theremarguarantees that such changes in FDA’s
approach to the regulatory process will not deletmsty affect some or all of our products or prodagplications.

We do not know if the current FDA proposed chartgahe 510(k) system will have any material eff@etany of our current or future 510
(k) applications. Depending on if and how thesgpseed changes are ultimately adopted and implemiente current or future applications
FDA approval for our products may be adverselyaée and our business could be harmed as a result.

We may have difficulty obtaining health insuraneanbursement for our products

New and emerging cell therapy and cell bankingrnetdgies, such as those provided by the Celutiop®esn family of products, may
have difficulty or encounter significant delaysabtaining health care reimbursement in some aralhtries around the world due to the
novelty of our cell therapy and cell banking tedogy and subsequent lack of existing reimburseraehémes / pathways. Therefore, the
creation of new reimbursement pathways may be cexrgohd lengthy with no assurances that such reiselbuents will be successful. The lack
of health insurance reimbursement or reduced ommailreimbursement pricing may have a significampact on our ability to successfully <
our cell therapy and cell banking technology prd¢s)dnto a county or region, which would negatwihpact our operating results.

Our concentration of sales in Japan may enhancedtative effects on our business of any cristhat region

We have a significant concentration of sales irmdathe United States, and Europe given our etatyesof commercialization. As a result
of this regional concentration of sales, changekéregulatory environment in these countriegryr other countries in which we have a
significant concentration of sales, could advergmlyact our sales. If the government of any of éhesuntries significantly curtailed or
prohibited the sale of our products, our revenueslevbe adversely affected. Recently, the earthguskinami and subsequent problems
affecting nuclear power plants in Japan have driaaddt impacted Japan’s manufacturing capacity lbunsiness activities. The long-term effect
of these issues is still uncertain. While we expleat the situation has stabilized and will improW¥ét does not, these circumstances could be
harmful to our business since the Celution ® Ongageis manufactured in Japan, and a substantitibpoof our sales have come from Japan.

Our global operations expose us to additional aistt uncertainties.

We have operations in a number of regions arouadvitrld, including the United States, Japan, anefl Our global operations may be
subject to risks that may limit our ability to oper our business. We sell our products globallyickviexposes us to a number of risks that can
arise from international trade transactions, Idzadiness practices and cultural considerationgydirog:

« political unrest, terrorism and economic or finah@nstability;

» unexpected changes and uncertainty in regulatgimements and systems rela

« nationalization programs that may be implementeébbgign governments;
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« import-export regulations;
- difficulties in enforcing agreements and collectiegeivables
« difficulties in ensuring compliance with the lawsdaregulations of multiple jurisdictions;
« changes in labor practices, including wage inflatiabor unrest and unionization polici
« longer payment cycles by international customers;
» currency exchange fluctuatior
« disruptions of service from utilities or telecomnzations providers, including electricity shortages

« difficulties in staffing foreign branches and suliaiies and in managing an expatriate workforcd, differing employmen
practices and labor issue

« potentially adverse tax consequenc

We also face risks associated with currency exobamgl convertibility, inflation and repatriation@drnings as a result of our foreign
operations. We are also vulnerable to appreciaiatepreciation of foreign currencies against th®.dollar. Although we have significant
operations in Asia, a substantial portion of tratisas are denominated in U.S. dollars. As apptieciagainst the U.S. dollar increases, it will
result in an increase in the cost of our busingpemses abroad. Conversely, downward fluctuatiorike value of foreign currencies relative
the U.S. dollar may make our products less pricepmditive than local solutions. From time to tinags may engage in currency hedging
activities, but such activities may not be ablértat the risks of currency fluctuations.

We and our joint venture with Olympus have to maiimtjuality assurance certification and manufantugapprovals

The manufacture of our products are, and the matwiaof any future cell-related therapeutic pradweould be, subject to periodic
inspection by regulatory authorities and distribotpartners. The manufacture of devices and predachuman use is subject to regulation
and inspection from time to time by the FDA for qaiance with the FDA’s Quality System RegulationQSR, requirements, as well as
equivalent requirements and inspections by stadenanU.S. regulatory authorities. There can be no guesathat the FDA or other authori
will not, during the course of an inspection ofaiig or new facilities, identify what they conside be deficiencies in our compliance with
QSRs or other requirements and request, or seetdiahaction.

Failure to comply with such regulations or a patdrdelay in attaining compliance may adverselgetffour manufacturing activities and
could result in, among other things, injunctionsil @enalties, FDA refusal to grant pre-market epyals or clearances of future or pending
product submissions, fines, recalls or seizurgzaducts, total or partial suspensions of productémd criminal prosecution. There can be no
assurance after such occurrences that we will lzetalmbtain additional necessary regulatory apaiour clearances on a timely basis, if at all.
Delays in receipt of or failure to receive suchrappls or clearances, or the loss of previouslgire approvals or clearances could have a
substantial negative effect on our results of dj@na and financial condition.
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We depend on a few key officers

Our performance is substantially dependent on émfopnance of our executive officers and other &egntific and sales staff, including
Christopher J. Calhoun, our Chief Executive Offigard Marc Hedrick, MD, our President. We rely uploam for strategic business decisions
and guidance. We believe that our future succedsweloping marketable products and achieving gpatitive position will depend in large
part upon whether we can attract and retain additiqualified management and scientific person@empetition for such personnel is intense,
and there can be no assurance that we will betalgdlentinue to attract and retain such personr. [@ss of the services of one or more of our
executive officers or key scientific staff, or timability to attract and retain additional persdrered develop expertise as needed could have a
substantial negative effect on our results of oj@na and financial condition.

We may not have enough product liability insurance

The testing, manufacturing, marketing, and saleunfregenerative cell products involve an inheresht that product liability claims will k
asserted against us, our distribution partnericensees. There can be no guarantee that oucallimial and commercial product liability
insurance is adequate or will continue to be abelan sufficient amounts or at an acceptable dbat,all. A product liability claim, product
recall, or other claim, as well as any claims foingured liabilities or in excess of insured lighdk, could have a substantial negative effect on
our results of operations and financial conditidtso, well-publicized claims could cause our staeKall sharply, even before the merits of the
claims are decided by a court.

Our charter documents contain atatkeover provisions and we have adopted a Stockh®&lajhts Plan to prevent hostile takeovers

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorponaéind Bylaws contain certain provisions that cqurielent or delay the acquisition of
Cytori by means of a tender offer, proxy contesptberwise. They could discourage a third partyrfrattempting to acquire control of Cytori,
even if such events would be beneficial to thergdts of our stockholders. Such provisions may hlaeeffect of delaying, deferring, or
preventing a change of control of Cytori and consely could adversely affect the market price wf shares. Also, in 2003 we adopted a
Stockholder Rights Plan of the kind often referr@@s a poison pill. The purpose of the StockhoRights Plan is to prevent coercive takeover
tactics that may otherwise be utilized in takeatdempts. The existence of such a rights plan nsy@event or delay a change in control of
Cytori, and this prevention or delay adversely @ftae market price of our shares.

We pay no dividends

We have never paid cash dividends in the pastcaméntly do not intend to pay any cash dividemdthe foreseeable future. This could
make an investment in our company inappropriatesdone investors, and may serve to narrow our patesturces of additional capital.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comm ents

Not applicable.
Item 2. Proper ties

We lease 77,585 square feet at 3020 and 3030 GRdlad, San Diego, California that we use for oupomate headquarters. The related
lease agreement, as amended, bears monthly remaeg of $1.80 per square foot, with annual irsmez $0.05 per square foot. The lease term
is 88 months, commencing on July 1, 2010 and exgpion October 31, 2017. We will receive a 50% edrdtement for the additional 17,467
square feet over the next two years, and we wikire a tenant improvement allowance as well. Adiitlly, we've entered into several lease
agreements for international office locations aarporate housing for our employees on internatiasalgnments. For these properties, we pay
an aggregate of approximately $156,000 in rennpanth.

Item 3. Legal Proceedi ngs

From time to time, we have been involved in routitigation incidental to the conduct of our busiseAs of December 31, 2011, we were
not a party to any material legal proceeding.
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosu res

Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s C omm on Equity, Rdated Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of diity Securities
Market Prices

From August 2000 (our initial public offering in @eany) through September 2007 our common stockguated on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange under the symbol “XMPA” (formerly XMP). 8eptember 2007 our stock closed trading on thekifuet Stock Exchange. Effective
December 19, 2005, our common stock began tradirntheNasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “CYTatd has since transferred to the
Nasdaq Global Market effective February 14, 200@ri\ahts, issued as part of a financing agreemeviairth 2009, began trading on |
Nasdaq Global Market under the sym“CYTXW” effective June 22, 2009. The following tasl show the high and low sales prices for our
common stock and warrants for the periods indicasdeported by the Nasdaq Stock Market. Thesegpdo not include retail markups,
markdowns or commissions.

Common Stock

High Low

2010

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 95C $ 4.4C

Quarter ended June 30, 2C $ 6.1z $ 3.4z

Quarter ended September 30, 2! $ 54: $ 3.1¢

Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 6.1t % 4.07
2011

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 8.06 $ 5.1¢

Quarter ended June 30, 2C $ 8.44 % 4.5(C

Quarter ended September 30, 2 $ 572 $ 2.32

Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 33C % 1.9C

All of our outstanding shares have been deposiidd T CC since December 9, 2005.
Warrants
High Low

2010

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 6.9C $ 2.62

Quarter ended June 30, 2C $ 47C % 1.94

Quarter ended September 30, 2! $ 3.64 $ 2.0t

Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 41¢ $ 2.9¢
2011

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 55¢ $ 3.3¢

Quarter ended June 30, 2C $ 5.8z $ 2.6¢

Quarter ended September 30, 2! $ 3.4t $ 1.4¢

Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 165 % 0.7¢

As of February 29, 2012, we had approximately 2Zom holders of our common stock and 3 record hsldéour warrants. Because mi
of our shares and warrants are held by brokers#rat institutions on behalf of stockholders andrasmtholders, we are unable to estimate the
total number of individual stockholders and warhadders represented by these record holders.
Dividends

We have never declared or paid any dividends orcommmon stock and do not anticipate paying anpénforeseeable future.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information
Number of securities

remaining available
for future issuance

Number of securities under equity
to be issued upon Weighted-average compensation plans
exercise of exercise price of (excluding securities
outstanding options,  outstanding options, reflected in column
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights (a)
@) (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrsi¢l) 2,226,05. $ 4.2¢ —
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotgers (2] 5,557,09° ¢ 5.1¢ 1,050,03i
Total 7,783,151 ¢ 4.92 1,050,03!

(1) The 1997 Stock Option and Stock Purchase Plan exmgin October 22, 200

(2) See Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statemeolsded elsewhere herein for a description of 8004 Equity Incentive Plan. Tl
maximum number of shares shall be cumulativelyeia®ed on the first January 1 after the EffectivéeDAugust 24, 2004, and each
January 1 thereafter for 9 more years, by a nundfeshares equal to the lesser of (a) 2% of the rerrobshares issued at
outstanding on the immediately preceding Decemlieaid (b) a number of shares set by the Bc

Comparative Stock Performance Graph

The following graph shows how an initial investmeh$100 in our common stock would have compareahtequal investment in the
Nasdaq Composite Index and the NASDAQ Biotechnologlgx during the period from December 31, 2006ubh December 31, 2011. T
performance shown is not necessarily indicativRitfre price performance.

$160.00 -
$140.00
$120.00
$100.00
$80.00
$60.00
$40.00
$20.00

$0.00 : : ; : i
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

—+— Cytori  —&— MASDAQ Biotech 5 MASDAQ Composite

Item 6. Selected Financial D ata

The selected data presented below under the capt&tatements of Operations Data,” “StatementsadfiC-lows Data” and “Balance
Sheet Data” for, and as of the end of, each of/é&zes in the five-year period ended December 311 28re derived from, and should be read in
conjunction with, our audited consolidated finahsiatements. The consolidated balance sheets@soafmber 31, 2011 and 2010, and the
related consolidated statements of operations amprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity (defieityd cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2011, whieh haen audited by KPMG LLP, an independent regidtpublic accounting firm, and
their report thereon, are included elsewhere s dhninual report. The consolidated balance sheetsRescember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, and
the related consolidated statements of operatindsamprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity (dgfiend cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, which were also aublifd€PMG LLP, are included with our annual repgatsviously filed.
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The information contained in this table should disaead in conjunction with “Management’s Discassand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and the finanstatements and related notes thereto inclulieavere in this report (in thousands

except share and per share data):

Statements of Operations Data
Product revenue:

Sales to related par

Sales to third parties

Cost of product revenut
Gross profit (loss)

Development revenue
Development, related par
Other, related part
Research grants and other

Operating expense

Research and developmt

Sales and marketir

General and administrati\

Change in fair value of warrar
Change in fair value of option liabilitie
Total operating expenses

Total operating los

Other income (expense
Gain on sale of asse
Interest incomt

Interest expens

Other income (expense), r
Equity loss in investmen
Net loss

Basic and diluted net loss per sh
Basic and diluted weighted average common st

Statements of Cash Flows Date

Net cash used in operating activit

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in ci

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Balance Sheet Data

Cash, cash equivalents and s-term investment
Working capital

Total asset

Deferred revenues, related pa

Deferred revenue

Warrant liabilities

Option liabilities

Long-term deferred rer

Long-term obligations, less current porti
Total stockholder equity (deficit)

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$ — % 59C $ 591 $ 28 $ 792
7,98¢ 7,66¢ 5,24¢ 4,50( —

7,08% 8,25¢ 5,83, 4,52¢ 79z

3,837 3,90¢ 3,39¢ 1,85¢ 427

4,14¢ 4,34¢ 2,447 2,671 37C

1,99: 2,12z 8,84( 774 5,15¢

— — — 1,50( —

21 251 53 51 99

2,01% 2,37- 8,89: 2,32t 5,25,
10,90« 9,687 12,23 17,37 20,02(
13,56( 11,04¢ 6,58: 4,60z 2,67¢
14,72; 12,57 10,41¢ 11,72 14,18¢
(4,360) (1,285) 4,571 — —

74C 30 (920) 1,06( 10C

35,57 32,04: 32,88: 34,76( 36,97,
(29,417) (25,327) (21,54 (29,76.) (31,35()

— — — — 1,85¢

9 9 20 23C 1,02¢

(2,78¢) (2,057) (1,427) (420) (155)

(55) 23 (216) (40) (46)

(20¢) (151) (44) (45) @

$  (3245) $ (27,499 $ (23210 $ (30,030 $ (28,679
$ 0.61) $ 0.60 $ (0.65 $ (112 $ (1.25)
53,504,03 45,947,96 35,939,26 26,882,43 22,889,25
$ (3532) $ (23579 $  (23,80) $ (33,380 $ (29,999
(560) (1,290 (221) (399 5,98z

20,13’ 64,67¢ 24,27 34,92¢ 26,57¢
(15,74%) 39,81+ 247 1,14¢ 2,56%
52,66¢ 12,85« 12,61 11,46¢ 8,90:

$ 36,92 $ 5266 $ 12,85 $ 1261 $ 11,46
$ 36,92 $ 52,66¢ $ 12,85 $ 12,61 $ 11,46
35,51¢ 45,73( 9,91¢ 10,09¢( 4,16¢
51,53¢ 66,34 24,74¢ 25,60¢ 21,50/
3,52( 5,51z 7,63¢ 16,47t 18,74¢

5,24¢ 4,92¢ 2,38¢ 2,44¢ 2,37¢

627 4,987 6,27: — —

1,91( 1,17¢ 1,14( 2,06( 1,00(

504 39¢ — 16¢€ 47z

21,96: 13,25¢ 2,79( 5,041 237

$ 9,946 $ 22,87 $ (3,656 $ (7,717 $ (9,400)
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Item 7. Management'’s Discu ssi on and Analysis ofifancial Condition and Results of Operations
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains certain statements that magdemed “forward-looking statements” within the mizgy of United States of America
securities laws. All statements, other than statemef historical fact, that address activitiesepts or developments that we intend, expect,
project, believe or anticipate and similar express or future conditional verbs such as will, slidpwbould, could or may occur in the futt

are forward-looking statements. Such statementdased upon certain assumptions and assessmentshygarlr management in light of their
experience and their perception of historical trendurrent conditions, expected future developmamisother factors they believe to be
appropriate.

These statements include, without limitation, stegets about our anticipated expenditures, includivase related to clinical research studies
and general and administrative expenses; the piatesize of the market for our products, future elepment and/or expansion of our products
and therapies in our markets, our ability to gerterproduct revenues or effectively manage our gposBt margins; our ability to obtain
regulatory clearance; expectations as to our futpegformance; the “Liquidity and Capital Resourcesgction of this report, including our
potential need for additional financing and the dakility thereof; and the potential enhancemenbaf cash position through developme
marketing, and licensing arrangements. Our acteslults will likely differ, perhaps materially, frottnose anticipated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of various factors, inclgdour need and ability to raise additional casly goint ventures, risks associated with laws
or regulatory requirements applicable to us, mark@tditions, product performance, potential litiggat, and competition within the
regenerative medicine field, to name a few. Thevdod-looking statements included in this report anbject to a number of additional

material risks and uncertainties, including but fiatited to the risks described in our filings witte Securities and Exchange Commission and
under the “Risk Factors” section in Part | above.

We encourage you to read the risks described ufiRisk Factors” carefully. We caution you not to plaundue reliance on the forward-
looking statements contained in this report. Thetatements, like all statements in this reportagpenly as of the date of this report (unless an
earlier date is indicated) and we undertake no gdtion to update or revise the statements excepgasred by law. Such forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performamceactual results will likely differ, perhaps ragally, from those suggested by such
forward-looking statements.

Overview

Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. is developing cell theeapbased on autologous adipose-derived stem gedeeative cells (ADRCSs) to treat
cardiovascular disease and repair soft tissue tfef@ar scientific data suggest ADRCs improve blfiod/, moderate the immune response
keep tissue at risk of dying alive. As a result,bvedieve these cells can be applied across multipdbemic” conditions. These therapies are
made available by our proprietary device, the Gah® System, which automates the extraction anggragion of clinical grade ADRCs at the
point-of-care.

Our goal is to build shareholder value by focusinghovel, ‘high-value’ cell-based therapeutics ket in core geographies: Europe,
Asia, and the Americas. Celution® is a platformhtemlogy that we believe could potentially addressdtiple diseases and conditions. To take
advantage of our limited resources, we are conmmitiur internal resources to cardiovascular disaadesoft tissue defect repair, offering the
technology to customers and/or partners to idemtify explore additional potential indications, anel seeking partners to accelerate core or
non-core opportunities.

Pipeline

The primary therapeutic area within our clinicaleiepment pipeline is cardiovascular disease. We lsampleted and reported results
from three clinical trials, moved from APOLLO to AMANCE in Europe for heart attacks, have been apgde initiate a feasibility trial in t
U.S. for chronic myocardial ischemia, and are segkipproval in Europe for chronic myocardial iscieem

In the U.S., we received approval to begin our ANAEeasibility trial in chronic myocardial ischemiahich will be a prospective,
double blind, placebo-controlled, multi-centerltifaup to 45 patients. Enrollment is expectedegih in the second quarter of 2012 and be
completed within 12 to 18 months.

In our ADVANCE trial, we are amending our Europedinical protocol to conform to the evolving counspecific regulatory policies for
good manufacturing practices for the control of¢b# output from our technology. In aggregate sthprotocol amendments should help
harmonize the current country to country requiretsiéor cell processing and accelerate country aggsowhich has been the rdbeting steg
in site initiation. In the meantime, we have alnggdalified 27 sites with an emphasis on siteh@European G5. We have been in discussions
with the leading EU competent authorities and wgeekto have a revised timeline for the trial by &énd of the second quarter of 2012.
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Our CE Mark application for the Celution® Systemrmimoption chronic myocardial ischemia patientsugently under review by our
notified body. Barring delays or requests for fertdata, we anticipate a decision in the first b&2012. Should we receive approval, we
would target select hospital customers in the Gitriies and likely implement a patient registryisTiegistry will allow us to collect further
data to support reimbursement and government pagodshelp expand market access.

Commercial Business

The 2012 goals for our commercial business aredidof he first is to expand market access so tleatan grow product revenue
significantly over time and the second is to ackieositive contribution margin in the near tefimday, our sales activities remain largely
opportunistic and focused on obtaining and maimagisuccessful early clinical adopters of our prduLooking forward, we intend to target
larger market segments and grow therapeuticalgnted consumable revenue. To accomplish this g@asre focusing on driving essential
market access elements such as published climcahealth economics data, physician education rdidation-specific therapeutic claims,
while maintaining a critical eye on expenses. te B011, Cytori reduced its sales and marketingltmant. The impact of this reduction along
with other sales and marketing costs will resultdduced overall spend in 2012, while maintaining ability to achieve 2012 growth
objectives.

Our most advanced therapeutic indication is bresginstruction. In Europe, the NHS National InnavaCentre in the UK indicated that
our technology may be cost-effective for lumpectdmgast reconstruction. Furthermore, the use of B8BRas acknowledged by the British
Association of Plastic, Reconstructive & Aesth&iageons (BPRAS) in their latest breast surgerglainies, demonstrating progress in
developing market access. In 2012, we intend th agechnology assessment in the UK specific toGrlution® System for the RESTORE
procedure as a way to both improve healthcare @mdrlthe overall costs for women with breast canalich will help support our
reimbursement efforts in the UK. In a similar fashto the UK, we are working with other key competguthorities in Europe to expand
coverage. In Japan, we are working with the Phaemtézals and Medical Devices Agency (PMDA), to lege our global clinical data for
Japanese approval of our technology for breastistnaction. In other geographic markets, we intengrow product sales where we are
approved to sell.

Corporate

Our corporate priorities are to expand global ratprly approvals, complete strategic developmentcanamercialization partnerships,
strengthen the balance sheet and efficiently maaagenses.

One of our top priorities is to establish a stratg@rtnership, which could accelerate core or core opportunities and potentially bring in
significant minimally or nordilutive capital. Completing one or more substamipartnerships is achievable this year. Due tlatiorm natur
of our technology and products, we are able to Banaously pursue transactions for multiple indaad in core areas like cardiovascular
disease and other non-core areas such as liversgider which Astellas Pharma has negotiation sight

We have been actively streamlining our operatiorsraducing costs wherever possible, focusing timepany and minimizing cash
operating costs. Our 2012 budget calls for a rédncf approximately $6 million in combined Saledvgarketing and General and
Administrative expenses for 2012 as compared td 20his will support an estimated $3 million anpiaied increase in R&D expenses for
2012, principally to fund our cardiac cell theraginical trials.

Regulatory processes are well underway in the WBa@a, the EU, Australia, Japan, Russia and othartides. We expect progress in
many of these markets during 2012 that could exmame&ommercial opportunities. In the US, receiving IDE approval was a key
development for the company that signals a pos#iv clearer pathway with the FDA. We also feet the multiple opportunities we have in
other countries increase the possibility that onmore meaningful markets could open up for Cyfowo countries of note where we have
made recent progress include Australia and Indie VW provide greater detail on these marketshase opportunities mature and grow.
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Olympus Partnership

On November 4, 2005, we entered into a strategieldpment and manufacturing joint venture agreeraadtother related agreements
with Olympus. As part of the terms of these agregseve formed a joint venture, Olympus-Cytori,.IQioint Venture), to develop and
manufacture future generation devices based ofelution® System platform.

Under the Joint Venture Agreements:

« Olympus paid $30,000,000 for its 50% interest & dbint Venture. Moreover, Olympus simultaneouslered into a
License/Joint Development Agreement with the Jgimture and us to develop a second generation cootheystem and
manufacturing capabilitie:

« We licensed our device technology, including théu@ien® System platform and certain related intellectualperty, to the Joir
Venture for use in future generation devices. Tliesgéces will process and purify adult stem andregative cells residing in
adipose (fat) tissue for various therapeutic cihapplications. In exchange for this license, aeeived a 50% interest in the Jc
Venture, as well as an initial $11,000,000 paynfienh the Joint Venture; the source of this paynvess the $30,000,000
contributed to the Joint Venture by Olympus. Mor@owpon receipt of a CE mark for the first gerieraCelution® System
platform in January 2006, we received an additi&idl,000,000 development milestone payment fronddlre Venture

The Joint Venture currently has exclusive accesaitcCelution® System device technology for theedepment, manufacture, and supply
of such systems to us. Once a second generatiatid@@e System is developed and approved by reguylagencies, the Joint Venture will
exclusively supply us with these systems at a féarbased transfer price. We have retained all nisxdeights (subject to our various
distribution agreements and regulatory rights)eibthe Celution® System devices for all therapeatiplications of adipose stem and
regenerative cells.

We have worked closely with Olympus’ team of sd&stand engineers to design the future generatibtiee Celution® System so that it
will contain certain product enhancements and ¢hatbe manufactured in a streamlined manner.

In August 2007, we entered into a License and Rpyedreement with the Joint Venture which providmssthe ability to commercially
launch the Celution® System platform earlier thanasuld have otherwise done so under the termseaddint Venture Agreements.
Subsequently, in November 2007, we amended thent@€ommercial Agreement to substantially incorfeotiae terms of the Royalty
Agreement (effective on the expiration of the Roy&igreement) to continue to allow us to manufaetilve Cytori-developed Celution®
System platform, including the Celution® 800/CRStilisuch time as the Joint Venture’s productscmamercially available for the same
market served by the Cytori platform, subject teasonable royalty that will be payable to the gienture for all such sales.

Other Related Party Transactions

On February 8, 2008, we agreed to sell 2,000,080estof unregistered common stock to Green Hospitpply, Inc. for $12,000,000 ca
or $6.00 per share, in a private stock placement=€bruary 29, 2008, we closed the first half efphivate placement with Green Hospital
Supply, Inc. and received $6,000,000. We closedétend half of the private placement on April 3008 and received the second payment of
$6,000,000.

In August 2008, we received an additional $6,000,80m Olympus in a private placement of 1,000,06€egistered shares of our
common stock and a warrant to purchase an additi@f5000 shares of our common stock at an origgratcise price of $8.50 per share. The
purchase price was $6.00 per unit (with each wnisisting of one share and 50% warrant coveraded warrant is exercisable anytime after
February 11, 2009 and will expire on August 11,201
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Results of Operations

Product revenues
Product revenues consisted of revenues primaniy four Celution® and Puregraft® Systems and Stemt®@Cell Banks.
The following table summarizes the componentstientears ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009:

Years ended

2011 2010 2009
Related part $ — $ 590,00( $ 591,00(
Third party 7,983,001 7,664,00! 5,246,00!
Total product revenues $ 7,983,000 $ 8,254,000 $ 5,837,00
% attributable to Olympus — 0.1% —
% attributable to Green Hospital Supply — 7.1% 10.1%

Beginning in March of 2008, we began sales andnsbiys of our Celution® 800/CRS System to the Eumopnd Asia-Pacific
reconstructive surgery markets and during 2010 egab sales of our Puregraft® System in the UnitateS and Europe. Assuming all other
applicable revenue recognition criteria have beety nevenue for these product sales is recogniped delivery to the customer, as all risks
and rewards of ownership have been substantivahsterred to the customer at that point. For prbdaies to customers who arrange for and
manage all aspects of the shipping process, wgni&m®revenue upon shipment from our facilitiesgiBeing in 2011, for product sales that
include a combination of equipment, services, bepmultiple deliverables that will be providedtive future, we defer an estimate based on
relative selling price method for those future detables from product revenue until such delivezalilave been provided or earned. Shipping
and handling costs that are billed to our custoraeglassified as revenue.

Our product sales in the current year were sigarifily impacted by the major earthquake, tsunamitaaaftermath that occurred in Japan
in March. A significant portion of our customer bds located in Japan and thus the natural disafested our sales during the year ended
December 31, 2011.

The future We expect to continue to generate product revefmoen a mix of Celution ® and StemSource® Systach@nsumables sales as
well as Puregraft® orders. We will sell the produttt a diverse group of customers in Europe, Astathe U.S., who may apply the products
towards reconstructive surgery, soft tissue repagearch, aesthetics, and cell and tissue banlkiisganticipated sales in Japan will improve as
the country continues to recover from the natuisdster in March 2011.

Cost of product revenues

Cost of product revenues relate primarily to Celu® System products and StemSouré@@®l Banks and includes material, manufactu
labor, and overhead costs. The following table sanwes the components of our cost of revenuedhyears ended December 31, 2011, :
and 2009:

Years ended

2011 2010 2009
Cost of product revenut $ 3,772,000 $ 3,852,000 $ 3,340,00
Share-based compensation 65,00( 56,00( 54,00(
Total cost of product revenues $ 3,837,000 $ 3,908,000 $ 3,394,00
Total cost of product revenues as % of productmmege 48.1% 47.2% 58.1%
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Cost of product revenues as a percentage of proeuehues was 48.1%, 47.3% and 58.1% for the watsd December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009, respectively. Fluctuation in this peragatis to be expected due to the product mix akasehix of distributor and direct sales
comprising the revenue for the period.
The futureWe expect to continue to see variation in our gpyséit margin as the product mix comprising revesfiuctuates.

Development revenues

The following table summarizes the components ofdavelopment revenues for the years ended Decedih@011, 2010 and 2009:

Years ended

2011 2010 2009
Milestone revenue (Olympu $ 1,992,000 $ 2,122,000 $ 8,840,00
Research grant (NIF — — 49,00(
Grant Revenu — 244.,00( —
Regenerative cell storage servi 4,00( 4,00( 4,00(
Other 17,00( 3,00( —
Total development revenues $ 2,013,000 $ 2,373,000 $ 8,893,00

We recognize deferred revenues, related partyeaslobment revenue when certain performance odiggare met (i.e., using a
proportional performance approach). During the ywzated December 31, 2011, we recognized $1,9920@¥enue associated with our
arrangements with Olympus as a result of achiesipgoduct development and a regulatory milestolages to the preproduction development
of the next-generation Celution® One System. Dutigyear ended December 31, 2010, we recognizd@&200 of revenue associated with
our arrangements with Olympus as a result of adtjetwo milestones, one in product development, @m&l clinical milestone related to the
assessment of trial outcomes at 6 months in on&otardiac trials. During the year ended Decer8iie2009, we recognized $8,840,000 of
revenue associated with our arrangement with Olgygsua result of achieving three clinical milessodering the year, which reflected the
achievement of the primary goals of safety andilidiy, the completion of the enrollment process both of our clinical cardiac trials, and
completion of a monitoring end point for one cacdidal.

The research grant revenue related to our agreemitnthe National Institutes of Health (NIH). Unddis arrangement, the NIH
reimbursed us for “qualifying expenditures” relatedesearch on Adipose Tissue-Derived Cells foscdigar Cell Therapy. To receive funds
under the grant arrangement, we were required tte(honstrate that we incurred “qualifying experisas defined in the grant agreement
between the NIH and us, (ii) maintain a systemaoftmls, whereby we can accurately track and regdbexpenditures related solely to rese.
on Adipose Tissue-Derived Cells for Vascular Célefiapy, and (iii) file appropriate forms and foll@appropriate protocols established by the
NIH. During the year ended December 31, 2009, warimed $49,000 in qualified expenditures. We recrgpha total of $49,000 in revent
for the year ended December 31, 2009, which indwdiwable grant fees as well as cost reimbursésn@here were no comparable revenues
and expenditures for the year ended December 31, 26d 2010.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, we redeiv244,000 federal grant from the Internal Reee®ervice as part of the
Qualifying Therapeutic Discovery Program (“QTDPThe QTDP, administered by the Department of Heatith Human Services and the
Department of the Treasury, was enacted to enceuragnedical research for projects that show tleatgsst potential to create and sustain
high-quality, high-paying U.S. jobs and to advakic8. competitiveness in life, biological and metlgences. Through this program, eligible
companies can elect to receive either a cash gramtax credit. We elected to receive a cash gmadtthe funds were received during late
2010.

The future We may recognize additional development revenlueinig 2012, as the anticipated completion forrtagt milestone of our Joint
Venture and other Olympus performance obligatigria R012. The exact timing of whether additionaelopment revenue will be recognized
and when amounts will be reported in revenue vapehd on internal factors (for instance, our apfilit complete certain contributions and
obligations that we have agreed to perform) as askxternal considerations, including obtainingade regulatory clearances and/or appra
related to the Celution® System. However, the dasthese contributions and obligations was reative us when the joint venture agreement
was signed and no further related cash paymenitbevihade to us even if we recognize additionakttigyment revenue related to Olympus
date under the contract, of the $28,311,000 orilyinkeferred, we have recognized a total of $24,00Q through December 31, 2011.
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We will continue to recognize revenue from the Thilm development work we are performing on beb&lSenko, based on the relative
fair value of the milestones completed as comptoele total efforts expected to be necessary taimbbegulatory clearance from the MHLW.
We are still awaiting regulatory clearance from kLW in order for initial commercialization to oac. Accordingly, we expect to recognize
approximately $1,129,000 (consisting of $879,008éferred revenues plus a non-refundable payme$25d,000 to be received upon
commercialization) in revenues associated withthilestone arrangement if and when regulatory agins achieved. Moreover, we expect to
recognize $500,000 per year associated with def&Semko license fees over a three-year periodvialip commercialization, if achieved, as
the refund rights associated with the license patragpire. There can be no assurance given of vehedh when, this regulatory approval
might be received to allow us to proceed with comuiadization.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses include costdass with the design, development, testing arithecement of our products,
regulatory fees, the purchase of laboratory supppiee-clinical studies and clinical studies. Tbkofving table summarizes the components of
our research and development expenses for the grdesl December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Years ended

2011 2010 2009
Research and developme $ 10,021,00 $ 7,012,000 $ 9,007,00:
Development milestone (Joint Ventu 396,00( 2,221,00! 2,713,001
Research grants (NIt — — 49,00(
Stocl-based compensatic 487,00( 454,00( 462,00(
Total research and development expenses $ 10,904,00 $ 9,687,000 $ 12,231,00

Research and development expenses relate to tkeégewent of a technology platform that involveshgsadipose tissue as a source of
autologous regenerative cells for therapeutic appins. These expenses, in conjunction with caetindevelopment efforts related to our
Celution® System, result primarily from the broagbansion of our research and development effordbled by the funding we received from
Olympus in 2005 and 2006 and from other investarind the last few years.

The increase in research and development expemistsefyear ended December 31, 2011 as compathd game period in 2010 is
primarily due to the increase in salary and reldiedefits expense (excluding share-based compenyafi $850,000 due to increase in
headcount in our research and development depaigmen

The decrease in research and development expaengée fyear ended December 31, 2010 as compatad game period in 2009 is
primarily due to the decrease in clinical and précal study expense of $967,000 and decreaseppliss related expense of $412,000
primarily due to the decreased research and dewednpexperiment supplies usage as well as suppliehased for prototype work prior to-
related product commercialization.

Expenditures related to the Joint Venture with Qdysy which are included in the variation analyfiswe, include costs that are necessary
to support the commercialization of future generatievices, including the next generation Celuti@®@tem. These development activities,
which began in November 2005, include performingr@inical and clinical studies, seeking regulatapproval, and performing product
development related to therapeutic applicationsattipose stem and regenerative cells for multgmgd markets. The costs associated with the
development of the device were comprised of labarrelated benefits, consulting and other profesdieervices, supplies and other
miscellaneous expenses.

The future We expect research and development expenditoriesitease in 2012 as we are scheduled to conéintgdiment in the

ADVANCE cardiac trial, start enrollment in our Ugal ATHENA and seek additional regulatory clearap@and potentially seek to initiate
additional trials or patient registries during 2012
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Sales and marketing expenses

Sales and marketing expenses include costs of aatemarketing personnel, tradeshows, physiciamitigag and promotional activities al
materials. The following table summarizes the congmts of our sales and marketing expenses forg¢aesyended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009:

Years ended

2011 2010 2009
Sales and marketir $ 12,674,000 $ 10,177,000 $ 6,076,00!
Stock-based compensation 886,00( 863,00( 507,00(
Total sales and marketir $ 13,560,000 $ 11,040,000 $ 6,583,00!

The increase in sales and marketing expense dtimingear ended December 31, 2011 as compared sathe period in 2010 was mainly
attributed to the increase in salary and relateckfies expense (excluding share-based compensatic1),532,000 due to an increase in
headcount in anticipation of US regulatory apprdtat did not occur in 2011 and an increase ingasibnal services of $558,000, which are
due to our emphasis in seeking strategic allianoeléor co-development partners.

The increase in sales and marketing expense foretieended December 31, 2010 as compared tortie gariod in 2009 was mainly
attributed to the increase in salary and relatetfies expense (excluding shadrvased compensation) of $2,050,000, an increasavaltrelate

emphasis in seeking strategic alliances and/ores@ldpment partners.

The future. We expect sales and marketing expenditures tiedse in 2012 based on targeted reductions inatdfexternal costs made prior
to year end in 2011 and subsequent reductions maesely 2012.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses include cos@dministrative personnel, legal and other psitesl expenses, and general corpc
expenses. The following table summarizes the géaachadministrative expenses for the years endameidber 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Years ended

2011 2010 2009
General and administratiy $ 12,849,000 $ 10,888,000 $ 8,789,00
Stock-based compensation 1,878,001 1,682,001 1,626,00i
Total general and administrative expenses $ 14,727,00 $ 12,570,000 $ 10,415,00

For the year ended December 31, 2011 as compathd same period in 2010, the increase in genachhdministrative expenses
(excluding share-based compensation) occurred phintaue to an increase in professional servicgzease of $954,000 related mostly to legal
costs incurred in connection with European patefit&ations and maintenance of the worldwide patstdte.

For the year ended December 31, 2010 as compathd same period in 2009, the increase in genachhdministrative expenses
(excluding share-based compensation) occurred phnthie to an increase in salary and related henekpense of $462,000 and an increase
in professional services expense of $1,207,000giiynrelated to corporate strategic consulting.

The future. We expect general and administrative expensdediine in 2012 as compared to 2011 based on ocog&ioment measures we
began implement in the second half of 2011.
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Stockbased compensation expenses

Stock-based compensation expenses include chaxigésd to options issued to employees, directadsnam-employees. We measure
stock-based compensation expense based on thedaterfiair value of any awards granted to our egg#s. Such expense is recognized over
the period of time that employees provide services and earn all rights to the awards.

The following table summarizes the components ofsbock-based compensation for the years endedniie31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Years ended

2011 2010 2009
Cost of product revenut $ 65,000 $ 56,00 $ 54,00(
Research and development rele 487,00( 454,00( 462,00(
Sales and marketing relat 886,00( 863,00( 507,00(
General and administrative relat 1,878,00! 1,682,001 1,626,00!
Total stock-based compensation $ 3,316,000 $ 3,055,000 $ 2,649,00

Most of the share-based compensation expenselsdgears ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2008ddb the vesting of stock
option awards to employees.

During the third quarter of 2011, we made a compaite option grant to our non-executive employeegurchase an aggregate of up to
197,700 shares of our common stock, subject taayear vesting schedule. The grant date fair vafube awards was $2.34 per share. The
resulting share-based compensation expense of B3 et of estimated forfeitures, will be recogaizs expense over the employees’
respective vesting periods.

During the first quarter of 2011, we issued to dwectors, executive officers and certain non-exgeltemployees options to purchase an
aggregate of up to 692,500 shares of our commark stgth four-year vesting for our officers and doyges and two-year vesting for our
directors. The grant date fair value of the awadsted to our officers and employees was $3.4@@odr directors was $3.15 per share. The
resulting share-based compensation expense of SR(BY, net of estimated forfeitures, will be reciagd as expense over the respective
vesting periods.

Additionally, throughout 2011, we issued to our rieves and to employees being promoted optionsitohase an aggregate of up to
223,750 shares of our common stock with four-yesting for our officers and employees and two-yesting for our directors.

We granted 246,225 performanisased restricted stock awards under the 2004 Etnggntive Plan in February 2011. The awards pre
certain employees until January 1, 2012 to achéeviain performance goals established by the Cosgtiem Committee. The performance
goals are weighted based on the following achieves@btaining certain FDA clearance or approvabg), achieving a targeted revenue
increase for the fiscal year ended December 311 280%), and entering into a major collaborationdevelopment and/or commercialization
of the Company’s products (40%). To the extent &mgt of the performance goals are partially achdettee Compensation Committee
maintains the discretion to continue the vestinglbér a portion of the awards following Januan?@12. Once earned, the awards will remain
unvested until January 1, 2013. Termination of eyplent prior to vesting will result in the forfeiiof any earned (as well as unearned)
awards. Effective January 2012, the outstandingdsveeased vesting based upon decision of Compem&aammittee that performance
criteria has not been met as of January 1, 2012Zddtpensation expense was recognized related ¢e theards during the year ended
December 31, 2011. The following table summariztiwity with respect to such awards during the yeraded December 31, 2011:

Weighted
Average
Grant-Date
Options Fair Value
Outstanding at January 1, 20 0
Grantec 246,22 % 5.82
Vested 0
Cancelled/forfeitec 0
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 246,22 ¢ 5.82
Vested at December 31, 20 0
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During the first quarter of 2010, we issued to divectors, executive officers and certain non-ekigelemployees options to purchase an
aggregate of up to 1,155,000 shares of our comnoak,swith four-year vesting for our officers anahgloyees and two-year vesting for our
directors. The grant date fair value of the awapdsted to our officers and employees was $4.07@odr directors was $4.16 per share. The
resulting share-based compensation expense of 800, net of estimated forfeitures, will be reciagd as expense over the respective
vesting periods.

During the first quarter of 2009, we made a compaide option grant to our non-executive employeegurchase up to 249,250 shares of
our common stock, subject to a four-year gradetinggschedule. The grant date fair value of therdwavas $2.00 per share. Following the
reduction of our workforce at the end of this qagri82,100 of these options remained outstandihg.resulting share-based compensation
expense of $364,200, net of estimated forfeituselseing recognized as expense over the employegsective expected vesting periods.

During the first quarter of 2009, we issued to officers and directors options to purchase an agdesof up to 585,000 shares of our
common stock, with four-year graded vesting for officers and two-year graded vesting for our divex The grant date fair value of the
awards granted to our officers and directors wag®ger share. The resulting share-based compensatpense of $1,579,500, net of
estimated forfeitures, is being recognized as expewer the respective expected vesting periods.

During the second quarter of 2009, we made a coypéate option grant to our noexecutive employees to purchase up to 155,580
of our common stock, subject to a four-year gradesting schedule. The grant date fair value oftlvards was $1.18 per share. The resulting
share-based compensation expense of $183,000f estirnated forfeitures, is being recognized asesp over the employees’ respective
expected vesting periods.

During the third quarter of 2009, we issued 25,808res of restricted common stock to a non-emplogasultant. The stock is restricted
in that it cannot be sold for a specified periodimfe. There are no vesting requirements. Becdwssliares issued are not subject to additional
future vesting or service requirements, the stagseld compensation expense of $92,000 recorded thitld quarter of 2009 constitutes the
entire expense related to this grant, and no fytered charges will be incurred.

The future. We expect to continue to grant options (whicH wveisult in an expense) to our employees, directord, as appropriate, to non-
employee service providers. In addition, previotgrignted options will continue to vest in accordamdth their original terms. As of
December 31, 2011, the total compensation coderkta non-vested stock options not yet recogniaedll our plans is approximately
$5,782,000. These costs are expected to be re@aboizr a weighted average period of 1.72 years.

Change in fair value of warrant liability

The following is a table summarizing the changéinvalue of warrant liability for the years endedcember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Years ended December 3:

2011 2010 2009

Change in fair value of warrant liabili $ (4,360,000 $ (1,285,000 $ 4,574,00

Effective January 1, 2009, we changed our methatodunting for certain common stock purchase wsraith exercise price reset
features due to the adoption of a new accountiaigdstrd. These warrants were issued in connectitthour August 2008 private placement of
2,825,517 unregistered shares of common stock @@ 758 common stock warrants. The warrants haatigimal exercise price of $8.50 and
expire in August 2013. Under the new standard ethesrants previously recognized in stockholdegsiity (deficit) are now accounted for as
fair value liabilities, with changes in fair valireluded in net earnings (loss).

The cumulative effect of the adoption is to presbase warrants as liabilities on the date of thepéion as if they had been accounted for
as liabilities since the warrants were issued. Assalt on January 1, 2009, we recognized a $llibmiong-term warrant liability, a $2.9
million decrease in accumulated deficit and a aromding decrease in additional paid-in capitéi4® million. The fair value of these
warrants increased to $6.3 million as of DecemideRB09, as a result of a $4.6 million loss from thange in fair value of warrants for the
year then ended. The fair value of these warraetsedised to $5.0 million as of December 31, 204 @, r@sult of a $1.3 million gain from t
change in fair value of warrants for the year taeded. The fair value of these warrants decreas#$@.6 million as of December 31, 2011, :
result of a $4.4 million gain from the change i felue of warrants for the year then ended.

31




Table of Content

Since these warrants do not qualify for hedge attiog, all future changes in the fair value of tharrants will be recognized currently in
earnings until such time as the warrants are es@iobr expire. These warrants are not traded active securities market, and as such, we
estimated the fair value of these warrants usirigpogpricing model using the following assumptions:

As of As of
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Expected tern 1.61 year 2.61 year
Common stock market pric $ 22C $ 5.1¢
Risk-free interest rat 0.1<% 0.82%
Expected volatility 69.98% 86.03%
Resulting fair value (per warrar $ 03z $ 2.5C

Expected volatility is based primarily on histotigalatility. Historical volatility was computed usy daily pricing observations for recent
periods that correspond to the expected term ofvdreants. We believe this method produces an egtithat is representative of our
expectations of future volatility over the expectedn of these warrants. We currently have no reé&stelieve future volatility over the
expected remaining life of these warrants is likelyiffer materially from historical volatility. Ae expected life is based on the remaining term
of the warrants. The risk-free interest rate isithterest rate for treasury constant maturity instents published by the Federal Reserve Board
that is closest to the expected term of the wasraltie fair value of these warrants also incorgaraur assumptions about future equity
issuances and their impact to the down-round ptiotefeature.

The future. Future changes in the fair value of the warredility will be recognized currently in earningstil such time as the warrants are
exercised or expire.

Change in fair value of option liability

The following is a table summarizing the changéinvalue of option liability for the years endB@écember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Years ended

2011 2010 2009

Change in fair value of option liabilit $ 740,000 $ 30,00 $ (920,001

In reference to the Joint Venture, the Shareholdgreeement between Cytori and Olympus provides ihaertain specified
circumstances of insolvency or if we experiencéange in control, Olympus will have the right tpr@purchase our interests in the Joint
Venture at the fair value of such interests ord@ll its own interests in the Joint Venture tatghe higher of (a) $22,000,000 or (b) the Put's
fair value. The Put has been classified as a itgbil

The valuations of the Put were completed usingmion pricing theory-based simulation analysis.{ieleMonte Carlo simulation). The
valuations are based on assumptions as of theti@iudate with regard to the market value of Cytord the estimated fair value of the Joint
Venture, the expected correlation between the gadi€ytori and the Joint Venture, the expecteatilitly of Cytori and the Joint Venture, the
bankruptcy recovery rate for Cytori, the bankruptoyeshold for Cytori, the probability of a changfecontrol event for Cytori, and the risk-free
interest rate.

The following assumptions were employed in estingathe value of the Put:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201 December 31, 20C

Expected volatility of Cytor 76.01% 73.0(% 72.0(%
Expected volatility of the Joint Ventu 76.01% 73.0(% 72.0(%
Bankruptcy recovery rate for Cytc 28.0(% 28.0(% 19.0(%
Bankruptcy threshold for Cyto $ 8,594,000 $ 5,842,000 $ 11,308,00
Probability of a change of control event for Cyi 3.3% 3.4% 2.95%
Expected correlation between fair values of Cyamd the

Joint Venture in the futur 99.0(% 99.0(% 99.0(%
Risk free interest raf 1.8%% 3.3(% 3.85%
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The future. The Put has no expiration date. Accordingly, vikaentinue to recognize a liability for the Puttil it is exercised or until the
arrangements with Olympus are amended.

Financing items

The following table summarizes interest incomegriast expense, and other income and expensexfgedins ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009:

Years ended

2011 2010 2009
Interest incom: $ 9,00C $ 9,00C $ 20,00(
Interest expens (2,784,000 (2,052,001 (1,427,001
Other income (expense), net (55,000) 23,00( (218,00()
Total $ (2,830,00) $ (2,020,000 $ (1,625,00i)

« Interest income remained comparable for the yede@ecember 31, 2011 as compared to the samealper2®10. Interest
income decreased for the year December 31, 20&6rapared to the same period in 2009 and 2008 pifinthre to a decrease in
interest rates

« Interest expense increased for the year ended Demedi, 2011 as compared to the same period in @080 cash interest a
non-cash amortization of debt issuance costs and dedxtuht for our $25.0 million term loan. In SeptesnB011, we entered in
a second amendment to the Amended and RestatedandaBecurity Agreement, pursuant to which thedenélinded an
additional principal increasing the total principalance to $25.0 million. Interest expense in@das 2010 as compared to 2009
due to cash interest and non-cash amortizatiorlbf idsuance costs and debt discount for the $8lidn term loan. During the
second quarter of 2010, we entered into an AmeadddRestated Loan and Security Agreement, pursoanmtich the lenders
funded a term loan in the amount of $20.0 millienJoine 14, 2010, and which refinanced the remaibaignce of the term loan
from 2008.

« The changes in other income (expense) in 2011, 26d®009 resulted primarily from changes in faneigrrency exchange rat
The future Interest income earned in 2012 will be dependentur levels of funds available for investmentvadl as general economic
conditions. Subject to our future financing actast we expect interest expense in 2012 to incraasee continue to pay interest on the $25.0

million term loan that funded in September 2011.

Equity loss from investment in Joint Venture

The following table summarizes equity loss fromdstment in joint venture for the years ended Deegr8lh, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Years ended
2011 2010 2009

Equity loss from investment in joint ventt $ (209,000 $ (151,000 $ (44,000
The losses relate entirely to our 50% equity irgeire the Joint Venture, which we account for ugimg equity method of accounting.

The future. We do not expect to recognize significant logsa® the activities of the Joint Venture in thedseeable future. Over the next one
to two years, the Joint Venture is expected toritedor costs related to the development of ouosdgeneration commercial system as we
general and administrative expenses, offset byltyogad product revenue expected to be generatenibgurrent Celution® 800/CRS and
future generation devices. Though we have no ofidigdao do so, we plan to contribute funding to dleint Venture to cover any costs should
the Joint Venture deplete its cash balance.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Shortterm and longerm liquidity

The following is a summary of our key liquidity neeaies at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

As of December 31

2011 2010
Cash and cash equivalel $ 36,922,000 $ 52,668,00
Current assel $ 43,337,000 $ 58,953,00
Current liabilities 7,821,00! 13,223,00
Working capital $ 35,516,000 $ 45,730,00

We incurred net losses of $32,451,000, $27,494z0@0$23,216,000 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
We have an accumulated deficit of $242,449,000F @&eoember 31, 2011. Additionally, we have usedcash of $35,323,000, $23,574,000
and $23,807,000 to fund our operating activitiesyiars ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 20(q8:ateeely. To date these operating
losses have been funded primarily from outsidecsiof invested capital.

Management recognizes the need to generate positsleflows in future periods and/or to obtain iddal capital from various sources.
In the continued absence of positive cash flowsfaperations, no assurance can be given that wgersarate sufficient revenue to cover
operating costs or that additional financing wél &vailable to us and, if available, on terms atad#p to us in the future.

During 2011 and 2010, we expanded our commerctaizactivities while simultaneously pursuing aeaik financing sources to support
operations and growth. We have had, and will likeiptinue to have, an ongoing need to raise additicash from outside sources to fund our
operations for 2012 and beyond. If we cannot dalsen required, we would need to reduce our resedmstelopment, and administrative
operations, including reductions of our employesehn order to offset lack of available fundinge \bntinue to evaluate available strategic
and financing opportunities as part of our nornmlrse of business.

From January 1, 2009 to December 31, 2011, we fiaaeced our operations primarily by:

« Receiving approximately $10,000,000 in gross prdsdeom sale to institutional investors of a taf#,771,174 shares of ¢
common stock and warrants to purchase up to adb®b79,644 additional shares of our common steith an exercise
price of $2.59 per share in March 20

« Receiving approximately $4,252,000 in gross prosdesin a private placement of 1,864,783 unregidtstares of common
stock and 3,263,380 common stock warrants (withxamcise price of $2.62 per share) to a syndickirevestors in May
20009,

« InJune 2009, we entered into a common stock paechgreement with Seaside 88, LP relating to tfezing and sale of
total of up to 7,150,000 shares of our common stotke agreement required us to issue and Seasidg/t®#5,000 shares
our common stock once every two weeks. Between 2008 and June 2010, we raised an aggregate abdppately
$30,172,000 in gross proceeds from the sale of0700® shares of our common sto

« InJune 2010, we entered into an Amended and Restatan and Security Agreement with the GECC, SAfie] Oxford
Finance Corporation (Lenders), pursuant to whiehltenders funded a term loan in the amount of 200 on June 14,
2010, which refinanced the remaining balance oté¢ne loan entered into with GECC and SVB on Octdlse 2008

« In October 2010, we entered into an underwritingeament with Jefferies, relating to the issuanaksate of 4,600,00
shares of our common stock. This price to the puhlthis offering was $4.50 per share and Jeféeaigreed to purchase the
shares from us at a price of $4.23 per share. fHmsaction was completed on October 13, 2010 pegaproximately
$20,700,000 in gross proceeds before deductingramitiég discounts and commissions and other affgexpenses payable
by us, anc
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+ In December 2010, we raised $10,000,000 in grasseeds from a sale of 1,428,571 shares of unregistmmmon stock to
Astellas Pharma Inc. for $7.00 per share in a peigtock placemen

« InJuly 2011, we entered into a common stock pigetzgreement with Seaside 88, LP relating to tfegin§ and sale of
total of up to 6,326,262 shares of our common stotke agreement requires us to issue and Seasidsg tb,826,262 shares
of our common stock at an initial closing and 280,8hares of our common stock once every two wesksmencing 30
days after the initial closing, for up to an adutitl 20 closings, subject to the satisfaction at@mary closing conditions. At
the initial closing, the offering price was $4.5&)ich equaled to 88% of our common stock’s volunedghited average
trading prices, or VWAP, during the ten-day tradpegiod immediately prior to the initial closingtdaraising approximately
$6,000,000 in gross proceeds. At subsequent clesthg offering price will equal 90.25% of our commstock’s volume-
weighted average trading prices during the tentdading period immediately prior to each subsequtging date. We
raised an aggregate of approximately $13,286,0@0dss proceeds from the sale of 4,076,262 sharesrischeduled
closings through December 31, 20

« In September 2011, we entered into an Second Amentio the Amended and Restated Loan and Secugitgelnent witt
the GECC, SVB, and Oxford Finance Corporation (lezsjl pursuant to which the Lenders increased riioe tgrm loan
made to the Company to a principal amount of $2%llon.

The following summarizes our contractual obligasi@md other commitments at December 31, 2011, rendffect such obligations could
have on our liquidity and cash flow in future peiso

Payments due by perioc

Less than 1 More than

Contractual Obligations Total year 1-3years 3-5years 5 years

Long-term obligations $ 26,296,00 $ 2,693,000 $ 19,848,00 $ 3,755,000 $ —
Interest commitment on lo-term obligations 5,103,00! 2,498,00 2,561,00 44,00( —
Operating lease obligatiol 10,836,00 1,879,001 3,679,00! 3,688,00! 1,590,001
Minimum purchase requiremer 2,191,001 1,341,001 850,00( — —
Pre-clinical research study obligatio 60,00( 60,00( — — —
Clinical research study obligations 13,800,00 3,250,00! 8,650,00! 1,900,001 —
Total $ 58,286,00 $ 11,721,00 $ 3558800 $ 9,387,000 $ 1,590,00

Net cash (used in) provided by operating, inveséind financing activities for the years ended Ddwen31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is
summarized as follows:

Years Ended

2011 2010 2009
Net cash used in operating activit $ (35,323,00) $ (23,574,00) $ (23,807,00)
Net cash used in investing activiti (560,000 (1,290,001 (221,000
Net cash provided by financing activiti 20,137,00 64,678,00 24,271,00

Operating activities

Operational activities, inclusive of research ardedlopment, sales and marketing, and general anthadrative efforts, offset in part by
product sales, generated a $32,451,000 net losedgrear ended December 31, 2011. The operatsigiogact of this loss was $35,323,000,
after adjusting for the recognition of non-cashelepment revenue of $1,992,000, the consideratioo-cash share-based compensation,
other adjustments for material non-cash activisesh as depreciation, amortization, change invidine of option liabilities and warrants, and
changes in working capital due to timing of prodsitipments (accounts receivable) and payment lofitias.

Operational activities, inclusive of research ardedlopment, sales and marketing, and general anthadrative efforts, offset in part by
product sales, generated a $27,494,000 net losedgrear ended December 31, 2010. The operatsigiogact of this loss was $23,574,000,
after adjusting for the recognition of non-cashelepment revenue of $2,122,000, the consideratioo-cash share-based compensation,
other adjustments for material non-cash activisesh as depreciation, amortization, change inviine of option liabilities and warrants, and
changes in working capital due to timing of prodsitipments (accounts receivable) and payment lofitias.
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Research and development efforts and other opeedtaztivities, offset in part by product salesygated a $23,216,000 net loss for the
year ended December 31, 2009. The cash impacisobés was $23,807,000, after adjusting for tleegaition of $8,840,000 of deferr:
revenue, for which cash was received in earlierjghe consideration of non-cash share-based awapien of $2,649,000, other adjustments
for material non-cash activities, such as deprigiaind amortization of $1,681,000, change invalue of option liabilities of $920,000 and
warrants of $4,574,000, non-cash amortization édred financing costs and debt discount along witter changes in working capital due to
timing of product shipments (accounts receivabie) payment of liabilities.

Investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2010 resulted from cash ouffliownvestment in our Joint Venture,
purchases of property and equipment and investmenstricted cash and cash equivalents.

Net cash used by investing activities for the yaated December 31, 2011 and 2009 resulted prinfeoity purchases of property and
equipment.

Financing Activities

The net cash provided by financing activities fog year ended December 31, 2011 related primaridydale of 4,076,262 shares for
approximately $13,286,000 in gross proceeds in ection with common stock purchase agreement witisifle entered into on July 11, 2011
and proceeds from exercise of warrants and emplstyeé options of $2,849,000. Additionally, in Sapber 2011, we entered into a Second
Amendment to the Amended and Restated Loan andi§eagreement with Lenders pursuant to which tlemders increased the prior term
loan made to the Company to a principal amoun®2&f®0,000 with proceeds of $9,444,000 in additipnacipal, before debt issuance costs
and loan fees.

The net cash provided by financing activities fog year ended December 31, 2010 related primaridygale of 3,300,000 shares for
approximately $17,314,000 in gross proceeds in ection with the common stock purchase agreemeht8éaside entered into on June 19,
2009, the sale of 4,600,000 shares of common stodKor approximately $20,700,000 in gross procéetise October 2010 public offering,
the sale of 1,428,571 shares of unregistered constomk to Astellas Pharma Inc. for $7.00 per siageprivate stock placement raising
$10,000,000 in gross proceeds, and proceeds frencisg of warrants and employee stock options dfZ&000. Additionally, in June 2010,
we obtained a term loan in the amount of $20,00D,%s fees and expenses, which was used ingoatimance the remaining balance of the
term loan entered into with GECC and SVB on Octdizkr2008.

The net cash provided by financing activities fog year ended December 31, 2009 related primaridyNlarch 2009 equity offering of
approximately $10,000,000 in gross proceeds taunisinal investors for a total of 4,771,174 shasésur common stock and warrants to
purchase up to a total of 6,679,644 additionaleshaf our common stock; the May 2009 private plaa@of approximately $4,252,000 in
gross proceeds to a syndicate of investors foted 0d 1,864,783 unregistered shares of commorksind 3,263,380 common stock warrants;
and the sale of 3,850,000 shares for approxim&E®859,000 in gross proceeds in connection withraon stock purchase agreement with
Seaside entered into on June 19, 2009.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Estimdes

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartexiints of our assets, liabilities, revenues apeeses, and that affect our recognition and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.

While our estimates are based on assumptions wedmrreasonable at the time they were made, dualaesults may differ from our

estimates, perhaps significantly. If results diffemterially from our estimates, we will make adjoshts to our financial statements
prospectively as we become aware of the necessityf adjustment.
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We believe it is important for you to understand st critical accounting policies. These aremalicies that require us to make our
most significant judgments and, as a result, chalke the greatest impact on our future financisults.

Warrant Liability

Effective January 1, 2009, we changed our methatodunting for certain common stock purchase wsraith exercise price reset
features due to the adoption of a new accountiaigdstrd. These warrants were issued in connectitthour August 2008 private placement of
2,825,517 unregistered shares of common stock @@ 758 common stock warrants. The warrants haatigmal exercise price of $8.50 and
expire in August 2013. Under the new standard ethesrants previously recognized in stockholdegsiity (deficit) are now accounted for as
fair value liabilities, with changes in fair valireluded in net earnings (loss). The fair valu¢hefse warrants decreased to $5.0 million as of
December 31, 2010, as a result of a $1.3 millian fram the change in fair value of warrants foe frear then ended. The fair value of these
warrants decreased to $0.6 million as of DecemhbeP@11, as a result of a $4.4 million gain frore thange in fair value of warrants for the
year then ende:

Since these warrants do not qualify for hedge atitog, all future changes in the fair value of ti@rrants will be recognized currently in
earnings until such time as the warrants are eseglodr expire. These warrants are not traded active securities market, and as such, we
estimated the fair value of these warrants usingmion pricing model. The significant drivers betincrease/decrease are related to chang
stock price and potential future stock issuances.

Expected volatility is based primarily on histotigalatility. Historical volatility was computed urgy daily pricing observations for recent
periods that correspond to the expected term ofvireants. We believe this method produces an agtithat is representative of our
expectations of future volatility over the expectedn of these warrants. We currently have no mre&stelieve future volatility over the
expected remaining life of these warrants is likelgliffer materially from historical volatility. fie expected life is based on the remaining term
of the warrants. The risk-free interest rate isittierest rate for treasury constant maturity insients published by the Federal Reserve Board
that is closest to the expected term of the wasraltie fair value of these warrants also incorgaraur assumptions about future equity
issuances and their impact to the down-round ptiotefeature.

Revenue Recognition
Product Sale:

We recognize revenue from product sales when tlenfimg fundamental criteria are met: (i) persuasévidence of an arrangement ex
(i) delivery has occurred, (iii) the price to thestomer is fixed or determinable and (iv) colleatof the resulting accounts receivable is
reasonably assured.

For all sales, we use a binding purchase ordersa@reed agreement as evidence of an arrangemergnie for these product sales is
recognized upon delivery to the customer, as slisrand rewards of ownership have been substantiagisferred to the customer at that pc
For sales to customers who arrange for and mamagghipping process, we recognize revenue upomsmipfrom our facilities. Shipping and
handling costs that are billed to our customershkassified as revenue. The customer’s obligatiopaty and the payment terms are set at the
time of delivery and are not dependent on the syles® use or resale of our products.

Beginning in 2011, for sales that include multigidiverables, such as sales of our StemSource®B2ek (cell bank), we account for
products or services (deliverables) separatelyeratian as a combined unit. Stem cell banks tylgicainsist of a complex array of equipment
and proprietary knowledge, and services, including or more StemSource® devices, a cryogenic freemasuring and monitoring
equipment, and a database patient tracking systeaudition, we typically provide consulting sere$; installation and training services
concurrent with the installation of the cell bal#eb hosting and technical and maintenance seraigegenerally provided for a period of ug
one year subsequent to the date of sale. The FARRugce of the Codification establishes a sellirigephierarchy for determining the selling
price of a deliverable, which is based on: (a) werspecific objective evidence (“WSOE"); (b) thiphrty evidence (“TPE")or (¢) managemel
estimates. This guidance also eliminates the rasidethod of allocation and requires that arranggroensideration be allocated at the
inception of the arrangement to all deliverabldagishe relative selling price method. For our @elhk sales, we establish relative selling
prices for all deliverables based on vendor-spegifiotes for comparable services when availablthdrabsence of VSOE, we use compettor’
products or services considered largely interchablgewith our own or management best estimate.b&tamtial amount of consulting services
are provided to customers before the equipmeraliatibn and training has been completed, and thexeve treat this as a separate unit of
accounting. The equipment with installation andiahiraining activities are treated as separaieswof accounting. Also of standalone value to
customers is the transfer of the proprietary kndgée most notably in the form of standard operapiragedures, and any license or exclusivity
rights associated with the agreements. Revenuiadorarious deliverables is calculated and recaghirmsed on the relative selling prices of
each deliverable. Future services such as webrigoatid ongoing maintenance are deferred and rexedjiito income during the year
following the installation. There would have beenmaterial impact to our financial statements it@8ad we applied this guidance
retrospectively.
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Concentration of Significant Customers

For the year ended December 31, 2011, our sales seacentrated with respect to one direct customigich comprised 14% of our product
revenue recognized for the year ended Decemb&@1l,. Our Asia-Pacific and North America regioresadccounted for 67% of our product
revenue recognized for the year ended Decembe&(31l,. Additionally, two direct customers accounfi@d27% of total outstanding accounts
receivable as of December 31, 2011.

Our Asia-Pacific and North America region salesoacted for 79% of our product revenue recognizedife year ended December 31, 2010.
Additionally, two customers accounted for 26% ditautstanding accounts receivable as of Dece@bge2010.

Research and Developme

We received funds from Olympus and Olympus-Cytoig, during 2005 and 2006. We recorded upfront fetding $28,311,000 as deferred
revenues, related party. In exchange for theseepds; we agreed to (a) provide Olympus-Cytori, &mcexclusive and perpetual license to our
Celution® System device technology and certainteelantellectual property, and (b) provide futuesedlopment contributions related to
commercializing the Celution® System platform. Ticense and development services are not sepaaablas a result the recognition of this
deferred amount requires achievement of serviegeglmilestones, under a proportional performanethatdology. If and as such revenues are
recognized, deferred revenue will be decreaseghdptional performance methodology was elected dube nature of our development
obligations and efforts in support of the Joint Wea (“JV"), including product development actieisi and regulatory efforts to support the
commercialization of the JV products. The applmatbf this methodology uses the achievement of Réi@stones as outputs of value to the
JV. We received up-front, noefundable payments in connection with these d@retnt obligations, which we have broken down iqecsfic
R&D milestones that are definable and substantiveature, and which will result in value to the\den achieved. As our research and
development efforts progress, we periodically extduand modify if necessary, the milestone pamtaur proportional performance model to
ensure that revenue recognition accurately refleatdest estimate of substantive value deliverabthe JV. Revenue will be recognized as
above mentioned R&D milestones are completed. ©®&thounts received and deferred, we recognizedajewent revenues of $1,992,000,
$2,122,000, and $8,840,000 for the years endedrbleee31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Aliteel development costs are expensed a:
incurred and are included in research and developmgense on our statements of operations. Towtater the contract, of the $28,311,000
originally deferred, we have recognized a tote$®4,791,000 through December 31, 2011.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementaded elsewhere herein for disclosure and a dismusdicritical accounting policies and
significant estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementaded elsewhere herein for disclosure and discusdioew accounting standards.
Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qu alitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk
We are exposed to market risk related to fluctuastio interest rates and in foreign currency exgeanates.
Interest Rate Exposure
We are not subject to market risk due to fluctugio interest rates on our long-term obligationsheey bear a fixed rate of interest. Our

exposure relates primarily to short-term investragimcluding funds classified as cash equivaleitsof December 31, 2011, all excess funds
were invested in money market funds and other titipid investments, therefore our interest ratpasure is not considered to be material.
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Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Exposure

Our exposure to market risk due to fluctuationfoieign currency exchange rates relates primavilgur activities in Europe and Japan.
Transaction gains or losses resulting from casartals and revenues have not been significant ipakieand we are not engaged in any
hedging activity in the Euro, the Yen or other engies. Based on our cash balances and revenuesdiftom markets other than the United
States for the year ended December 31, 2011, alwtical 10% adverse change in the Euro or Yermagéie U.S. dollar would not result in a
material foreign currency exchange loss. Consetjyemé do not expect that reductions in the valfisuch sales denominated in foreign
currencies resulting from even a sudden or sigaifidluctuation in foreign exchange rates wouldéhawdirect material impact on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the indirect effetfluctuations in interest rates and foreign cnogexchange rates could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiod results of operations. For example, foreignericy exchange rate fluctuations may af
international demand for our products. In additioerest rate fluctuations may affect our custashlenying patterns. Furthermore, interest
and currency exchange rate fluctuations may broadliyence the United States and foreign economgsslting in a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and results afrafions.

Under our Japanese Thin Film agreement with Semnkoyould receive payments in the nature of royslieased on Senko’s net sales,
which would be Yen denominated.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Cytori Therapeutics, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. (the Company subsidiaries as of December 31,
2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statsméoperations and comprehensive loss, stockhslléquity (deficit), and cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period endegfmber 31, 2011. In connection with our auditshef¢onsolidated financial statements, we
have also audited the accompanying schedule o&tiatuand qualifying accounts. These consolidaitehtial statements and financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the@@my’s management. Our responsibility is to expessopinion on these consolidated
financial statements and financial statement sdedalased on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBlgUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the consalifiaancial statements are free of mat
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aHasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaenferred to above present fairly, in all matenggpects, the financial position of Cytori
Therapeutics, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Dece®be2011 and 2010, and the results of their opmratand their cash flows for each of the
years in the thre-year period ended December 31, 2011, in conformitly U.S. generally accepted accounting principhdso, in our opinion,
the related financial statement schedule, whenidered in relation to the basic consolidated finalhstatements taken as a whole, presents
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bogtnited States), Cytc
Therapeutics, Inc.’s internal control over finahadi@porting as of December 31, 2011, based onriitestablished ifnternal Control—
Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadriee Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated Marc
12, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on tfectfeness of the Company’s internal control dirggincial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
March 12, 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Cytori Therapeutics, Inc.:

We have audited Cytori Therapeutics, Inc.’s inteomatrol over financial reporting as of Decembér 2011, based on criteria established in
Internal Control- Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrie Treadway Commission (COSO). Cytori
Therapeutics, Inc.’s management is responsiblenfrintaining effective internal control over finaalkieporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigbogting, included in the accompanying Managemeréport on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting (Item 9A). Our responsibilisytd express an opinion on the Company’s interoafrol over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightfq&@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordwar financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing aaldiaing the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestaWe believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyesaktepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (&tajpeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiiansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®itbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢t@isstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agjext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. maintalpa all material respects, effective internal ttohover financial reporting as of December
31, 2011, based on criteria establishethtarnal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolids
balance sheets of Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. andididrsies as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, andetla¢ed consolidated statement:
operations and comprehensive loss, stockholdetstye(feficit), and cash flows for each of the year the threerear period ended Decem
31, 2011, and our report dated March 12, 2012 eggeban unqualified opinion on those consolidatexhtial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
March 12, 2012
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CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31

2011 2010
Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivale $ 36,922,000 $ 52,668,00
Accounts receivable, net of reserves of $474,0@Dcdr$306,000 in 2011 and 2010, respecti 2,260,00! 2,073,00!
Inventories, ne 3,318,00! 3,378,00!
Other current assets 837,00( 834,00(
Total current asse 43,337,00 58,953,00
Property and equipment, r 1,711,001 1,684,001
Restricted cash and cash equivale 350,00( 350,00(
Investment in joint ventur 250,00( 459,00(
Other asset 1,772,001 566,00(
Intangibles, ne 192,00( 413,00(
Goodwill 3,922,00! 3,922,00!
Total asset $ 51,534,000 $ 66,347,00
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expei $ 5,334,000 $ 6,770,00!
Current portion of long-term obligations 2,487,00! 6,453,00!
Total current liabilities 7,821,00! 13,223,00
Deferred revenues, related pa 3,520,00! 5,512,00!
Deferred revenue 5,244,00! 4,929,00!
Warrant liability 627,00( 4,987,00!
Option liability 1,910,001 1,170,001
Long-term deferred rer 504,00( 398,00(
Long-term obligations, net of discount, less curgartion 21,962,00 13,255,00
Total liabilities 41,588,00 43,474,00
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder equity (deficit):
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 5,000,000 stear#gwrized-0- shares issued and outstanding in 2
and 201( — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 95,000,000 shartb®azed; 56,594,683 and 51,955,265 shares iss
and 56,594,683 and 51,955,265 shares outstand2@(lih and 2010, respective 57,00( 52,00(
Additional paic-in capital 252,338,00 232,819,00
Accumulated deficit (242,449,00) (209,998,00)
Total stockholder equity 9,946,00! 22,873,000
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 51,534,000 $ 66,347,00

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE LOSS

For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Product revenue:
Related part — 590,00( 591,00(
Third party 7,983,001 7,664,001 5,246,00!
7,983,00! 8,254,00! 5,837,00!
Cost of product revenut 3,837,00! 3,908,00! 3,394,00!
Gross profi 4,146,00! 4,346,00! 2,443,00!
Development revenue
Development, related par 1,992,001 2,122,001 8,840,00!
Research grants and other 21,00( 251,00( 53,00(
2,013,00! 2,373,00! 8,893,00!
Operating expense
Research and developmt 10,904,00 9,687,00! 12,231,00
Sales and marketir 13,560,00 11,040,00 6,583,001
General and administrati\ 14,727,00 12,570,00 10,415,00
Change in fair value of warrar (4,360,001 (1,285,001 4,574,001
Change in fair value of option liability 740,00( 30,00( (920,00()
Total operating expenses 35,571,00 32,042,00 32,883,00
Operating loss (29,412,00) (25,323,00) (21,547,00)
Other income (expense
Interest incomu 9,00(¢ 9,00(¢ 20,00(
Interest expens (2,784,000 (2,052,000 (1,427,000
Other income (expense), r (55,000 23,00( (218,001)
Equity loss from investment in joint ventt (209,00() (151,000) (44,000
Total other income (expens (3,039,000 (2,171,000 (1,669,000
Net loss (32,451,00) (27,494,00) (23,216,00)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share $ (0.67) $ (0.60) $ (0.65)
Basic and diluted weighted average common st 53,504,03 45,947,96 35,939,26

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Balance at December 31, 2(
Cumulative effect of change
in accounting for certain

warrants

Stock-based compensation
expens¢

Issuance of common stock
under stock option pla

Issuance of common stock
under stock warrant
agreemen

Sale of common stock, n

Sale of treasury stoc

Net loss for the year end:
December 31, 2009

Balance at December 31, 2(

Stock-based compensation
expense

Issuance of common stock
under stock option pla

Issuance of common stock
under stock warrant
agreemen

CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DE FICIT)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 20®

Accumulated Amount due
Additional Other From
Common Stock Paid-in Accumulated Treasury Stock Comprehensive  Exercises of
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Shares Amount Income (Loss) Stock Options Total

31,176,27 $ 31,000 $161,214,00 $(162,168,00) 1,872,83: $ (6,794,000 — — $ (7,717,000
— — (4,578,00i) 2,880,001 — — — — (1,698,001
— — 2,649,001 — — — — — 2,649,001
203,70 — 410,00( — — — — — 410,00(
46,15« 121,00( — — — — — 121,00(
8,613,12: 9,00( 21,851,00 — — — — — 21,860,00
— — (2,861,00i) — (1,872,839 6,794,001 — — 3,933,001
— — — (23,216,001 — — — — (23,216,00)
40,039,25 40,00C 178,806,00 (182,504,00) — — — — (3,658,001
— — 3,055,001 — — — — — 3,055,001
378,70! — 1,393,001 — — — — — 1,393,001
2,208,73! 2,00C 5,733,001 — — — — — 5,735,001
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Sale of common stock, n

Allocation of fair value for
deb-related warrant

Net loss for the year end:
December 31, 2010

Balance at December 31, 2(

Stock-based compensation
expens¢

Issuance of common stock
under stock option pla

Issuance of common stock
under stock warrant
agreemen

Sale of common stock, n

Allocation of fair value for
deb-related warrant

Net loss for the year end:
December 31, 2011

Balance at December 31, 2(

Accumulated Amount due
Additional Other From
Common Stock Paid-in Accumulated Treasury Stock Comprehensive  Exercises of
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Shares Amount Income (Loss) Stock Options Total

9,328,57 10,00( 43,553,000 — — — — — 43,563,000
— — 279,00( — — — — — 279,00(
— — — (27,494,001 — — — —  (27,494,00)
51,955,26 $ 52,00( $232,819,00 $(209,998,00) — — 3% — $ — $22,873,00
— — 3,316,001 — — — — — 3,316,001
222,28: — 767,00( — — — — — 767,00(
340,87: 1,00C 2,081,001 — — — — — 2,082,001
4,076,26: 4,00( 13,088,00 — — — — — 13,092,00
— — 267,00( — — — — — 267,00(
— — — (32,451,001 — — — — (32,451,00)
56,594,68 $ 57,000 $252,338,00 $(242,449,00) — — 3 — 3 — $ 9,946,000

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss

For the Years Ended December 31

2011

2010

2009

$ (32,451,00) $ (27,494,00) $ (23,216,00)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic

Amortization of deferred financing costs and ddbtdunt
Warranty provision (reversa

Increase (reduction) in allowance for doubtful acus
Change in fair value of warrar

Change in fair value of option liabilit

Stock-based compensatic

Equity loss from investment in joint ventt

Increases (decreases) in cash caused by changesrating assets and liabilitie

Accounts receivabl

Inventories

Other current asse

Other asset

Accounts payable and accrued expet
Deferred revenues, related pa
Deferred revenue

Long-term deferred rer

Net cash used in operating activit

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipm
Cash invested in restricted ce
Investment in joint venture

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Principal payments on lo-term obligations

Proceeds from lor-term obligations

Debt issuance costs and loan f

Proceeds from exercise of employee stock optiodsaarrants
Proceeds from sale of common st

Costs from sale of common sta

Proceeds from sale of treasury st

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of"

855,00 931,00 1,681,001
711,00( 703,00 709,00
— — (23,000
483,00 460,00 663,00
(4,360,000  (1,285,00) 4,574,001
740,00( 30,00( (920,00()
3,316,00 3,055,001 2,649,00
209,00 151,00 44,00
(670,001) (902,001) (986,001()
60,00 (777,00() (446,00()
(3,000 36,00( 41,00
(1,206,00) (110,001() 75,00
(1,436,001 811,00 413,00
(1,992,000  (2,122,00)  (8,840,00)
315,00 2,541,001 (57,000)
106,00( 398,00 (168,00()
(35,323,00)  (23,574,00)  (23,807,00)
(560,001() (610,001) (221,001()
— (350,00() —

— (330,000) —
(560,000  (1,290,00) (221,00()
(4,529,000  (5,454,00)  (2,053,00)
9,444,000  20,000,00 —
(719,00 (559,001() —
2,849,001 7,128,001 531,00
13,286,00 45,486,00 23,196,00
(194,000  (1,923,00)  (1,336,00)
— — 3,933,00
20,137,00 64,678,00 24,271,00
(15,746,00)  39,814,00 243,00
52,668,00 12,854,00 12,611,00

$ 36,922,00 $ 52,668,000 $ 12,854,00
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For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information
Cash paid during period fc
Interest $ 2,031,00 1,226,000 $ 739,00(
Final payment fee on lo-term debi 419,00( 205,00t —
Supplemental schedule of nc-cash investing and financing activities
Fair value of warrants allocated to additional -in capital $ 267,00( 279,00 $ —
Additions to fixed assets included in accounts péyand accrued expens — 481,00( —
Capital equipment leas 79,00( — —

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2011

1. Organization and Operations
The Company

Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. is developing cell théeapbased on autologous adipose-derived stem gedeeative cells (ADRCSs) to treat
cardiovascular disease and repair soft tissue tef@ar scientific data suggest ADRCs improve blfiod/, moderate the immune respo
and keep tissue at risk of dying alive. As a resudt believe these cells can be applied acrosdpteutischemic” conditions. These
therapies are made available by our proprietarycdethe Celution® System, which automates theaetitsn and preparation of clinical
grade ADRCs at the point-of-care.

We have four subsidiaries located in Japan, [@itzerland and India that have been establishiatbpity to support our sales and
marketing activities in these regions.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include eapants and those of our subsidiaries. All sigaificintercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated. Management evalitetagestments on an individual basis for purgosiedetermining whether or not
consolidation is appropriate. In instances where@weaot demonstrate control through decision-malkibiity and/or a greater than 50%
ownership interest, we account for the relatedstments under the cost or equity method, depenging managemernt'evaluation of ot
ability to exercise and retain significant influenaver the investee. Our investment in the OlymPwuri, Inc. joint venture has been
accounted for under the equity method of accour(seg note 3 for further details).

Certain Risks and Uncertainties

We have a limited operating history and our protpate subject to the risks and uncertainties #atiy encountered by companies in the
early stages of development and commercializagepecially those companies in rapidly evolving tewhnologically advanced industries
such as the biotech/medical device field. Our fitwiability largely depends on our ability to corei@ development of new products and
receive regulatory approvals for those productsabkurance can be given that our new productdeifiuccessfully developed, regulatory
approvals will be granted, or acceptance of thesdyzts will be achieved. The development of mddieaices for specific therapeutic
applications is subject to a number of risks, idolg research, regulatory and marketing risks. @lwan be no assurance that our
development stage products will overcome theselési@hd become commercially viable and/or gain cercial acceptance.

Capital Availability

We incurred net losses of $32,451,000, $27,494z0@0) $23,216,000 for the years ended December031,, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
We have an accumulated deficit of $242,449,000f &eoember 31, 2011. Additionally, we have usedaash of $35,323,000,
$23,574,000 and $23,807,000 to fund our operatitigifies for years ended December 31, 2011, 201D2009, respectivelyTo date,
these operating losses have been funded primanity butside sources of invested capital.

Management recognizes the need to generate positsleflows in future periods and/or to obtain ddal capital from various sources.
In the continued absence of positive cash flowsfaperations, no assurance can be given that wgerarate sufficient revenue to cover
operating costs or that additional financing wél &vailable to us and, if available, on terms atat®p to us in the future.

During 2011 and 2010, we expanded our commerctaizactivities while simultaneously pursuing aeaik financing sources to support
operations and growth. We have had, and we willjilcontinue to have, an ongoing need to raisetiaddil cash from outside sources to
fund our operations for 2012 and beyond. If we camlo so when required, we would need to reduceesearch, development, and
administrative operations, including reduction®of employee base, in order to offset lack of add funding. We continue to evaluate
available financing opportunities as part of ourmal course of business.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesmé@ntonformity with accounting principles geneyalccepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimatesssoingtions affecting the reported amounts of assetdiabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effitancial statements, and the reported amountsvehue and expenses during the
reporting period. Our most significant estimated eritical accounting policies involve recognizireyenue, evaluating goodwill for
impairment, valuing our put option arrangement vilgmpus Corporation, valuing warrants, determirtimg assumptions used in
measuring share-based compensation expense, valuirdgferred tax assets, assessing how to reppiheestment in Olympus-Cytori,
Inc., and valuing allowances for doubtful accolartd inventories.

Actual results could differ from these estimategtrént economic conditions, including illiquid ciedharkets and volatile equity markets,
contribute to the inherent uncertainty of suchneates. Management’s estimates and assumptions\aesved regularly, and the effects of
revisions are reflected in the consolidated finahsiatements in the periods they are determinée tvecessary.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with mities of three months or less at the time of pasghto be cash equivalents. Investments
with original maturities of three months or lesattivere included with and classified as cash astl eguivalents totaled $30,646,000 and
$39,807,000 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, ctéply. We maintain our cash at insured finanaiatitutions. The combined account
balances at each institution periodically exceediFibsurance coverage, and as a result, theredmeentration of credit risk related to
amounts in excess of FDIC limits.

Short-term Investments

We invest excess cash in money market funds, higihlyd debt instruments of financial institutioasd corporations with strong credit
ratings, and in United States government obligatidfe have established guidelines relative to difieation and maturities to maintain
safety and liquidity. These guidelines are perialiijcreviewed and modified to take advantage afdeein yields and interest rates. After
considering current market conditions, and in otdeminimize our risk, management has electedweshall excess funds in money
market funds and other highly liquid investmentst thre appropriately classified as cash equivakhtsf December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash consists of cash and cash equisdiefd in a letter of credit account pursuant lease agreement entered into on April 2,
2010 (amended November 4, 2011) for leasing ofgntgmat 3020 and 3030 Callan Road, San Diego, @ald. The lease agreement
required us to execute a letter of credit for $880,naming the landlord as a beneficiary. Thedetteredit was issued in July 2010 and
required us to maintain $350,000 as restricted tarstine duration of the lease, which expires Oetdil, 2017, provided that the amount
of the letter of credit can be reduced to $262j50Iuly 2013, and to $175,000 in July of 2014.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoicedwsrinand do not bear interest. Amounts collectedamounts receivable are included in
net cash provided by operating activities in thesadidated statements of cash flows. The Comparigtaias an allowance for doubtful
accounts for estimated losses inherent in its atdsaeceivable portfolio. In establishing the reqdiallowance, management considers
historical losses adjusted to take into accounteriimmarket conditions and our customers’ financtaddition, the amount of receivables in
dispute, and the current receivables aging angtotipayment patterns. Account balances are chaffedainst the allowance after all
means of collection have been exhausted and tlemtpaltfor recovery is considered remote.
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Inventories

Inventories include the cost of material, laboid anerhead, and are stated at the lower of costrdened on the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method, or market. We periodically evaluate ouhand stock and make appropriate provisions forstogk deemed excess or obsolete.
Manufacturing costs resulting from lower than “nattrproduction levels are expensed as incurred.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, netaafraulated depreciation. Depreciation expense, winicludes the amortization of
capitalized leasehold improvements, is providedfor straight-line basis over the estimated udiies of the assets, or the life of the
lease, whichever is shorter, and range from tlodize years. When assets are sold or otherwigeded of, the cost and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the adsa@and the resulting gain or loss is includedgarations. Maintenance and repairs
are charged to operations as incurred.

Impairment

We assess certain of our long-lived assets, suphoperty and equipment and intangible assets ohiaer goodwill, for potential
impairment when there is a change in circumstatiwsndicates carrying values of assets may noebeverable. Such long-lived assets
are deemed to be impaired when the undiscountéddficass expected to be generated by the assesgat group) are less than the asset's
carrying amount. Any required impairment loss wooddmeasured as the amount by which the assetidraavalue exceeds its fair value,
and would be recorded as a reduction in the cagryatue of the related asset and a charge to opgrtpense. We recognized no
impairment losses during any of the periods preskint these financial statements.

Goodwill and Intangibles

Goodwill is not amortized but instead is testedustly for impairment at the reporting unit levet,raore frequently when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that fair vafudereporting unit has been reduced to less itisazarrying value. We perform our
impairment test annually during the fourth quarterSeptember 2011, the FASB issued revised gua&msimplify how entities test
goodwill for impairment. Under the revised guidanestities have the option to first assess qualgdtctors to determine whether it is
more likely than not that the fair value of a retpag unit is less than its carrying amount as asoias determining whether it is necessary
to perform the two-step goodwill impairment tessciébed in Accounting Standards Codification ToRh®. If, after assessing qualitative
factors, an entity determines it is not more likiflgin not that the fair value of a reporting usitdss than its carrying amount, then
performing the two-step impairment test is unnezgsdf deemed necessary, a tatep test is used to identify the potential impaintranc
to measure the amount of goodwill impairment, i.abhe first step is to compare the fair valuersf teporting unit with its carrying
amount, including goodwill. If the fair value ofalreporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, gathd@svconsidered not impaired;
otherwise, there is an indication that goodwill nieyimpaired and the amount of the loss, if anpéasured by performing step two.
Under step two, the impairment loss, if any, is suead by comparing the implied fair value of theating unit goodwill with the carryir
amount of goodwill. We completed this assessmenf &kvember 30, 2011, and concluded that no inmpait existed.

Separable intangible assets that have finite usighd will continue to be amortized over theirpestive useful lives. Intangibles,

consisting of patents and core technology purchas#te acquisition of StemSource, Inc. in 2002, laging amortized on a straight-line
basis over their expected lives of ten years.
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The changes in the carrying amounts of other imitefand finitelife intangible assets and goodwill for the yeanderl December 31, 20
and 2010 are as follows:

December 31, 201

Other intangibles, ne

Beginning balanc $ 413,00(
Amortization (221,000
Ending balanci 192,00(
Goodwill, net:
Beginning balanc 3,922,00!
Increase (decreas —
Ending balance 3,922,00!
Total goodwill and other intangibles, net $ 4,114,00!
Cumulative amortization of other intangible as: $ 2,024,00!

December 31, 201

Other intangibles, ne

Beginning balanc $ 635,00(
Amortization (222,000
Ending balanci 413,00(
Goodwill, net:
Beginning balanc 3,922,00!
Increase (decreas —
Ending balance 3,922,00!
Total goodwill and other intangibles, net $ 4,335,00!
Cumulative amortization of other intangible as: $ 1,803,001

As of December 31, 2011, future estimated amortinaxpense for these other intangible assetspsa&d to be as follows:

2012 $ 192,00!
$ 102,00

Warrant Liability

Effective January 1, 2009, we changed our methatobunting for certain common stock purchase wi#sraith exercise price reset
features due to the adoption of a new accountimgdstrd. These warrants were issued in connectittmour August 2008 private
placement of 2,825,517 unregistered shares of constozk and 1,412,758 common stock warrants. Threawis had an original exercise
price of $8.50 and expire in August 2013. Underrtee standard, these warrants previously recognizetbckholdersequity (deficit) are
now accounted for as fair value liabilities, withanges in fair value included in net earnings jloss

The cumulative effect of the adoption is to preghase warrants as liabilities on the date of theption as if they had been accounted for
as liabilities since the warrants were issued. Assalt on January 1, 2009, we recognized a $llibmiong-term warrant liability, a $2.9
million decrease in accumulated deficit and a aomding decrease in additional paid-in capité4t million. The fair value of these
warrants increased to $6.3 million as of Decemie2B09, as a result of a $4.6 million loss from thange in fair value of warrants for
the year ended December 31, 2009. The fair valtleesie warrants decreased to $5.0 million as oeber 31, 2010, as a result of a $1.3
million gain from the change in fair value of warta for the year then ended. The fair value ofd¢hearrants decreased to $0.6 million as
of December 31, 2011, as a result of a $4.4 miljaim from the change in fair value of warrantstfar year then ended.
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Since these warrants do not qualify for hedge attiog, all future changes in the fair value of tharrants will be recognized currently in
earnings until such time as the warrants are es@dodr expire. These warrants are not traded actwe securities market, and as such
estimated the fair value of these warrants usinggion pricing model using the following assumpgo

As of As of
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Expected tern 1.61 year 2.61 year
Common stock market pric $ 22C $ 5.1¢
Risk-free interest rat 0.1<% 0.82%
Expected volatility 69.98% 86.03%
Resulting fair value (per warrar $ 03z $ 2.5C

Expected volatility is based primarily on histotigalatility. Historical volatility was computed usy daily pricing observations for recent
periods that correspond to the expected term ofvireants. We believe this method produces an agtitiat is representative of our
expectations of future volatility over the expectedn of these warrants. We currently have no nreésdelieve future volatility over the
expected remaining life of these warrants is likelgiffer materially from historical volatility. fie expected life is based on the remaining
term of the warrants. The risk-free interest ratthe interest rate for treasury constant matimgfruments published by the Federal
Reserve Board that is closest to the expected @éthe warrants. The fair value of these warratgs acorporates our assumptions about
future equity issuances and their impact to therdosund protection feature.

Revenue Recognition
Product Sales

We recognize revenue from product sales when tl@xfimg fundamental criteria are met: (i) persuasavidence of an arrangement ex
(ii) delivery has occurred, (iii) the price to thestomer is fixed or determinable and (iv) colleatof the resulting accounts receivable is
reasonably assured.

For all sales, we use a binding purchase ordersa@reed agreement as evidence of an arrangemergnie for these product sales is
recognized upon delivery to the customer, as slffisrand rewards of ownership have been substantiagisferred to the customer at that
point. For sales to customers who arrange for aadage the shipping process, we recognize reveme sippment from our facilities.
Shipping and handling costs that are billed tocustomers are classified as revenue. The customiglitgation to pay and the payment
terms are set at the time of delivery and are ppeddent on the subsequent use or resale of odugis

For sales prior to January 1, 2011 that includettiphe deliverables, we allocated revenue basetherrelative fair values of the individt
components. When more than one element such asginogintenance or technical support services wetaded in an arrangement, we
allocated revenue between the elements based bretanents relative fair value, provided that each elemeet tine criteria for treatme
as a separate unit of accounting (an item is censitla separate unit of accounting if it has védule customer on a standalone basis and
there is objective and reliable evidence of thevalue of the undelivered items). Fair value iagyally determined based upon the price
charged when the element is sold separately. laltsence of fair value for a delivered elementallacated revenue first to the fair value
of the undelivered elements and allocated the wasictvenue to the delivered elements. Fair vaimesndelivered elements were
determined based on vendgpecific objective evidence as well as market pigint quotes for similar services. In the abseridair value
for an undelivered element, the arrangement wasueated for as a single unit of accounting, resgltma deferral of revenue recognition
for delivered elements until all undelivered eletsdmave been fulfilled. Deferred service revenuei®gnized ratably over the period the
services are provided.

Beginning in 2011, for sales that include multigidiverables, such as sales of our StemSource®Baek (cell bank), we account for
products or services (deliverables) separatelyeratian as a combined unit. Stem cell banks tylgicainsist of a complex array of
equipment and proprietary knowledge, and servioetiyding one or more StemSource® devices, a cmyiodecezer, measuring and
monitoring equipment, and a database patient tngckystem. In addition, we typically provide cortisigl services, installation and traini
services concurrent with the installation of th# bank. Web hosting and technical and maintenaeceices are generally provided for a
period of up to one year subsequent to the dasalef The FASB guidance of the Codification esshigls a selling price hierarchy for
determining the selling price of a deliverable, e¥his based on: (a) vendor-specific objective evige(*VSOE"); (b) third-party evidence
(“TPE™); or (c) management estimates. This guidaaise eliminates the residual method of allocatind requires that arrangement
consideration be allocated at the inception ofattrangement to all deliverables using the relagiziéng price method. For our cell bank
sales, we establish relative selling prices fodallverables based on vendor-specific quotesdorpgarable services when available. In the
absence of VSOE, we use competitors’ productsmicsss considered largely interchangeable withawn or management best estimate.
A substantial amount of consulting services areviplied to customers before the equipment instatiagiod training has been completed,
and therefore we treat this as a separate unitafumting. The equipment with installation andialitraining activities are treated as
separate units of accounting. Also of standaloreeven customers is the transfer of the propriekamywledge, most notably in the form of
standard operating procedures, and any licensectusvity rights associated with the agreementsvdtue for the various deliverables is
calculated and recognized based on the relatilieg@rices of each deliverable. Future servicehsas web hosting and ongoing
maintenance are deferred and recognized into incuriag the year following the installation. Theveuld have been no material impact
to our financial statements in 2010 had we apglésiguidance retrospectively.
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Concentration of Significant Customers

For the year ended December 31, 2011, our sales soeicentrated with respect to one direct custowlgich comprised 14% of our
product revenue recognized for the year ended Dieeei, 2011. Our Asia-Pacific and North Americgioa sales accounted for 67% of
our product revenue recognized for the year endezbMber 31, 2011. Additionally, two direct custosn@ccounted for 27% of total
outstanding accounts receivable as of Decembe2(Bl1],.

Our Asia-Pacific and North America region salesoaeted for 79% of our product revenue recognizedHe year ended December 31,
2010. Additionally, two customers accounted for 26ftotal outstanding accounts receivable as ofelbdser 31, 2010.

Research and Development

We earn revenue for performing tasks under researdhdevelopment agreements with both commerctatgrises, such as Olympus and
Senko, and governmental agencies like the Natiorstitutes of Health (“NIH"). Revenue earned undevelopment agreements is
classified as either research grant or developmaeinues depending on the nature of the arrangeRenénues derived from
reimbursement of direct out-of-pocket expensesdsearch costs associated with grants are recasiegsearch grant and other within
development revenues. Research grant revenueoslegtat the gross amount of the reimbursementcdbts associated with these
reimbursements are reflected as a component dindsand development expense in our statemenizes&tions. Additionally, research
and development arrangements we have with comnherti@rprises such as Olympus and Senko are cardidekey component of our
central and ongoing operations. Accordingly, whecognized, the inflows from such arrangements erggmted as revenues in our
statements of operations.

We received funds from Olympus and Olympus-Cytmd, during 2005 and 2006. We recorded upfront fetding $28,311,000 as
deferred revenues, related party. In exchangenfse proceeds, we agreed to (a) provide OlympusriCiric. an exclusive and perpetual
license to our Celution® System device technolagy eertain related intellectual property, and (fgvide future development
contributions related to commercializing the Celo® System platform. The license and developmenvices are not separable and as a
result the recognition of this deferred amount nexguachievement of service related milestonesguagroportional performance
methodology. If and as such revenues are recognieddrred revenue will be decreased. Proportipagbrmance methodology was
elected due to the nature of our development otidigs and efforts in support of the Joint Ventd®/(), including product development
activities and regulatory efforts to support thenooercialization of the JV products. The applicatidrthis methodology uses the
achievement of R&D milestones as outputs of vatutaé JV. We received up-front, non-refundable pamts in connection with these
development obligations, which we have broken dowm specific R&D milestones that are definable anbistantive in nature, and which
will result in value to the JV when achieved. As cesearch and development efforts progress, wedieally evaluate, and modify if
necessary, the milestone points in our proportipealormance model to ensure that revenue recogréitcurately reflects our best
estimate of substantive value deliverable to theRtenue will be recognized as the above menti®&d milestones are completed. Of
the amounts received and deferred, we recognizeelafmment revenues of $1,992,000, $2,122,000, 8®&4$,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectivelyrefdted development costs are expensed as incamkdre included in research and
development expense on our statements of operafiondate under the contract, of the $28,311,0@flrally deferred, we have
recognized a total of $24,791,000 through DecerBiep011.
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Under a Distribution Agreement with Senko, we geantio Senko an exclusive license to sell and Histei certain Thin Film products in
Japan. We have also earned or will be entitlecata additional payments under the Distribution Agnent based on achieving certain
defined and substantive research and developmdgdtonies. There was no development revenue reaatynitated to this agreement
during the years ended December 31, 2011, 20108, 2espectively.

Warranty

Beginning in March 2008, we began sales and shipgr@rour Celution® 800/CRS System to the Europseah Asia-Pacific
reconstructive surgery market. In September 20@8cempleted installation of our first StemSource® Bank. We are selling medical
device equipment for use with humans, which isettied to exhaustive and highly controlled spedificecompliance and fithess testing
and validation procedures before it can be apprémesdale to help ensure that the products wilfree of defects. We believe that the
rigorous nature of the testing and compliance &ffserves to minimize the likelihood of defectsriaterial or workmanship such that
recognition of a warranty obligation is not justii at this time. Accordingly, we have not recordedarranty reserve for our Celution®
800/CRS System and StemSource® Cell Bank produetduring the years ended December 31, 2011, 26d @@09.

Research and Development

Research and development expenditures, which amgeth to operations in the period incurred, incloogts associated with the design,
development, testing and enhancement of our predregjulatory fees, the purchase of laboratory l&egmnd pre-clinical and clinical
studies as well as salaries and benefits for aearch and development employees.

Also included in research and development expereditare costs incurred to support research grambtesement and costs incurred in
connection with our development arrangements withmpus and Senko.

Expenditures related to the Joint Venture with dysiinclude costs that are necessary to suppocotmenercialization of future
generation devices based on our Celution® Systetfiopin. These development activities, which begeNovember 2005, include
performing pre-clinical and clinical trials, seefgiregulatory approval, and performing product depeient related to therapeutic
applications for adipose stem and regenerative éailmultiple large markets. For the years endeddmber 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
costs associated with the development of the deveze $396,000, $2,221,000 and $2,713,000.

Our agreement with the NIH entitled us to qualifyexpenditures of up to $250,000 related to rebeancAdipose Tissue-Derived Cells
for Vascular Cell Therapy, which expired in Auga809. We incurred $49,000 of direct expenses ferygrar ended December 31, 2009.
There were no comparable expenditures in 2011 846.2

Deferred Financing Costs and Other Debt-Related Cas

Deferred financing costs are capitalized and amedtio interest expense over the term of the assacdebt instrument. We evaluate the
terms of the debt instruments to determine if ampedded or freestanding derivatives or converstatufes exist. We allocate the
aggregate proceeds of the debt between the waaadtthe debt based on their relative fair valtiég. fair value of the warrant issued to
the Lenders was calculated utilizing the Black-Sedmption pricing model. We are accreting the ltastidiscount over the term of the
debt through maturity date using the effectiveriese method. If the maturity of the debt is accaied because of default or early debt
repayment, then the amortization or accretion wééléccelerated.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method. Deferred tax assets and liatkahtiare recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betweefirthncial statement carrying amounts of exiséagets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and operating loss and tdi ceery forwards. Deferred tax assets and litieiare measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income (loss) in te&ry in which those temporary differences are érpeio be recovered or settled. Due to
our history of loss, a full valuation allowance wasognized against our deferred tax assets.
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Stock Based Compensation

We recognize the fair value method of all shareeigsayment awards granted after January 1, 20@Gjristatements of operations over
the requisite vesting period of each award. Were# the fair value of these options using the IB&choles option pricing model using
assumptions for expected volatility, expected teand risk-free interest rate. Expected volatilgyased primarily on historical volatility
and is computed using daily pricing observationsdéaent periods that correspond to the expected o the options. The expected life is
based on the expected term of the options. Thefméskinterest rate is the interest rate for treagmstruments with maturities that
approximate the expected term.

Segment Information

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 arfy] 20®f our financial results relate to regenimeatell technology, therefore we
report our results as a single segment.

Loss Per Share

Basic per share data is computed by dividing nedrime or loss applicable to common stockholderdhbyteighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Oilper share data is computed by dividing net incomess applicable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of cmmshares outstanding during the period increasé@tttude, if dilutive, the number
of additional common shares that would have be¢standing as calculated using the treasury sto¢kade Potential common shares w
related entirely to outstanding but unexercisedoogtand warrants for all periods presented.

We have excluded all potentially dilutive secustiencluding unvested performance-based restritisek, from the calculation of diluted
loss per share attributable to common stockholfberthe years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, ad@, 23 their inclusion would be
antidilutive. Potentially dilutive common shareskxied from the calculations of diluted loss pearghwere 19,476,425, 18,926,093 and
20,123,889 for the years ended December 31, 2@1ND @nd 2009, respectively.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the FASB issued an update toghenue recognition topic of the Codification. Theelate addresses the accounting for
multiple-deliverable arrangements to enable venttoexcount for products or services (deliverabdegarately rather than as a combined
unit. This guidance establishes a selling priceanéhy for determining the selling price of a deliable, which is based on: (a) vendor-
specific objective evidence; (b) third-party evidenor (c) estimates. This guidance also elimintitesesidual method of allocation and
requires that arrangement consideration be alldcatténe inception of the arrangement to all detilées using the relative selling price
method. In addition, this guidance significantlypards required disclosures related to a vendorlfipte:deliverable revenue
arrangements. The update 2009-13 is effective paisly for revenue arrangements entered into atenally modified in fiscal years
beginning on or after June 15, 2010 and early adofig permitted. The adoption of this standardriiti have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

In April 2010, the FASB issued additional guidaf@erevenue recognition to provide criteria thabskl be met for determining whether
the milestone method of revenue recognition is eypate. A vendor can recognize as revenue, iertsety, consideration that is
contingent upon achievement of a milestone in #réog in which the milestone is achieved only # thilestone meets all criteria to be
considered substantive. The guidance for the roitesimethod of revenue recognition is effective gmaspective basis for milestones
achieved in fiscal years, and interim periods withiose years, beginning on or after June 15, ZDi®.adoption of this standard did not
have a material impact on our consolidated findrsteements.

In January 2010, the FASB issued an update whichiges guidance to improve disclosures about faline measurements. This guidance
amends previous guidance on fair value measurernteeatid new requirements for disclosures aboustess into and out of Levels 1 and

2 and separate disclosures about purchases, isalésnces, and settlements relating to Level 3 nneasent on a gross basis rather than on
a net basis as previously required. This updatecsifies existing fair value disclosures abd tevel of disaggregation and about inj
and valuation techniques used to measure fair vakhis guidance is effective for annual and intepieriods beginning after December 15,
2009, except for the requirement to provide thedl@vactivities of purchases, sales, issuancessattiéments on a gross basis, which will
be effective for annual and interim periods begigrafter December 15, 2010. Early application isrgieed and, in the period of initial
adoption, entities are not required to provideahended disclosures for any previous periods pteddéar comparative purposes. This
update did not have a material impact on our cadatad financial statements.
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In March 2010, the FASB issued an update to cldhifit an employee share-based payment award wightencise price denominated in
the currency of a market in which a substantiatiporof the equity securities trades should notdesidered to contain a condition that is
not a market, performance, or service conditiorer&fore, an entity would not classify an award wgitich a feature as a liability if it
otherwise qualifies as equity. Affected entities Brquired to record a cumulative catch-up adjustrfar all awards outstanding as of the
beginning of the annual period in which the guidaiscadopted. This update did not have a mateniphct on our consolidated financial
statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued an update ttmatsacompanies to assess qualitative factors terdene whether they need
perform the twostep quantitative goodwill impairment test. Undee pbption, an entity no longer would be requirectatculate the fa
value of a reporting unit unless it determines,eblasn that qualitative assessment, that it is rikedy than not that its fair value is le
than its carrying amount. The guidance is effectareinterim and annual goodwill impairment testxfprmed for fiscal years beginni
after December 15, 2011 although early adoptigrersnitted. As of December 31, 2011, we electecefoty adoption and this update
not have a material impact on our consolidatednfiiied statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the FASB revised the fair value meament and disclosure requirements to align theirepents under GAAP a
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRShe guidance clarifies the FASBintent about the application of existing fairus
measurements and requires enhanced disclosuressigiagicantly related to unobservable inputs used fair value measurement the
categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hietay. The guidance is effective prospectively duiimtgrim and annual periods beginr
after December 15, 2011. We do not expect the amopf this guidance to have a material impact onaonsolidated financial statemel

3. Transactions with Olympus Corporation
Initial Investment by Olympus Corporation in Cytori

In 2005, we entered into a common stock purchasseatent (the “Purchase Agreementijh Olympus in which we received $11,000,!

in cash proceeds. Under the Purchase Agreemernsswed 1,100,000 shares of common stock to Olympusddition, we also granted
Olympus an immediately exercisable option to aeRi200,000 shares of our common stock at $10h@ee swhich expired on December
31, 2006. Before its expiration, we accounted ffiis bption as a liability.

The $11,000,000 in total proceeds we receivedarsdtond quarter of 2005 exceeded the sum ofg(intirket value of our stock as wel
(ii) the fair value of the option at the time wetened into the share purchase agreement. The $0@1 difference between the proceeds
received and the fair values of our common stockaption liability is recorded as a component deded revenues, related party in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Thisrdifte was recorded as deferred revenue sincegmioiadly, the excess proceeds
represent a prepayment for future contributions@bijations of Cytori for the benefit of the JoWénture (see below), rather than an
additional equity investment in Cytori. The recdgmi of this deferred amount is based on achievémirelated milestones, under a
proportional performance methodology. As such reesrare recognized, deferred revenue is reduced(ge 2 — Revenue Recognition).

In a separate agreement entered into on Februa0B8, we granted Olympus an exclusive right tgotiate a commercialization
collaboration for the use of adipose regeneratélks for a specific therapeutic area outside oflimaascular disease. In exchange for this
right, we received a $1,500,000 payment from Olysypthich was non-refundable but could be appliehtds a definitive commercial
collaboration in the future. As part of this agres) Olympus would conduct market research and gliloical studies in collaboration

with us for the therapeutic area up to DecembeB@8 when this exclusive right expired. The $1,600 payment was received in the
second quarter of 2006 and recorded as deferrethues, related party. Accordingly, on Decembe2B808, we recognized $1,500,000 as
other development revenue and reduced our defesxeshues, related party balance for the same amount
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In August 2006, we received an additional $11,000,@8om Olympus for the issuance of approximate800,000 shares of our common
stock at $5.75 per share under the shelf registratiatement filed in May 2006. The purchase psiae determined by our closing price on
August 9, 2006.

On August 11, 2008, we raised approximately $17,@0®in gross proceeds from a private placemeBt8#5,517 unregistered shares of
common stock and 1,412,758 common stock warrarith ém original exercise price of $8.50 per sh&weg syndicate of investors
including Olympus Corporation, who acquired 1,000,0nregistered shares and 500,000 common stockntgsin exchange for
$6,000,000 of the total proceeds raised.

As of December 31, 2011, Olympus holds approximated9% (unaudited) of our issued and outstandireges. Additionally, Olympus
has a right, which it has not yet exercised, tagiesge a director to serve on our Board of Dirextor

Formation of the Olympus-Cytori Joint Venture

On November 4, 2005, we entered into a joint venturd other related agreements (the “Joint Verigreements”) with Olympus. The
Joint Venture is owned equally by Olympus and us.

Under the Joint Venture Agreements:

o Olympus paid $30,000,000 for its 50% interest m dbint Venture. Moreover, Olympus simultaneouslered into a
License/Joint Development Agreement with the J¥ieiture and us to develop a second generation cooehsystem and
manufacturing capabilitie:

« We licensed our Celuti® System device technology and certain related extglll property, to the Joint Venture for use ituife
generation devices. These devices will procesgarnifly regenerative cells residing in adipose tstar various therapeutic
clinical applications. In exchange for this licenae received a 50% interest in the Joint Ventasawell as an initial $11,000,000
payment from the Joint Venture; the source of plaigment was the $30,000,000 contributed to thet Y@nture by Olympus.
Moreover, upon receipt of a CE mark for the Cel®®00 in January 2006, we received an additioha|0,000 development
milestone payment from the Joint Ventt

We have determined that the Joint Venture is abégiinterest entity (VIE), but that Cytori is ribe VIE’s primary beneficiary.
Accordingly, we have accounted for our interestinJoint Venture using the equity method of aotiog, since we can have significant
influence over the Joint Venture’s operations. A&cBmber 31, 2011, the carrying value of our investnn the Joint Venture is $250,000.

We are under no obligation to provide additionalding to the Joint Venture, but may choose to dd/ée contributed $330,000 during
2010. The Company made no contributions during 201d 2009.

Put/Calls and Guarantees

The Shareholders’ Agreement between Cytori and @lgrprovides that in certain specified circumstaraf@ansolvency or if we
experience a change in control, Olympus will hdeerights to (i) repurchase our interests in thietdéenture at the fair value of such
interests or (i) sell its own interests in thenidienture to Cytori at the higher of (a) $22,0@D ®r (b) the Put's fair value.

As of November 4, 2005, the fair value of the Paswletermined to be $1,500,000. At December 311 208 2010, the fair value of the
Put was $1,910,000 and $1,170,000, respectiveltiétions in the Put value are recorded in thesalioated statements of operations
component of change in fair value of option liai@k. The fair value of the Put has been recordeallang-term liability in the caption
option liability in our consolidated balance sheets

The valuations of the Put were completed using@iow pricing theory based simulation analysis. (eeMonte Carlo simulation). The
valuations are based on assumptions as of theti@udate with regard to the market value of Cytord the estimated fair value of the
Joint Venture, the expected correlation betweervéhges of Cytori and the Joint Venture, the expeaetolatility of Cytori and the Joint
Venture, the bankruptcy recovery rate for Cytdrg bankruptcy threshold for Cytori, the probabibifya change of control event for Cyti
and the risk free interest rate.
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The following assumptions were employed in estingathe value of the Put:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201 November 4, 200

Expected volatility of Cytor 76.01% 73.0(% 63.2(%
Expected volatility of the Joint Ventu 76.01% 73.0(% 69.1(%
Bankruptcy recovery rate for Cytc 28.0(% 28.0(% 21.0(%
Bankruptcy threshold for Cyto $ 8,594,000 $ 5,842,000 $ 10,780,00
Probability of a change of control event for Cyi 3.3% 3.4% 3.04%
Expected correlation between fair values of Cyamd the

Joint Venture in the futur 99.0(% 99.0(% 99.0(%
Risk free interest raf 1.8<% 3.3(% 4.6€%

The Put has no expiration date. Accordingly, we @ohtinue to recognize a liability for the Put amdrk it to market each quarter until i
exercised or until the arrangements with Olympesasnended.

Olympus-Cytori Joint Venture

The Joint Venture has exclusive access to our Pal@tSystem device technology for the developmeranufacture, and supply of such
systems to us. Once the second generation Celut8ys®m is developed and approved by regulatorgcge, the Joint Venture will
exclusively supply us with these systems at a féarbased transfer price. We have retained all ntendteights (subject to our various
distribution arrangements) to sell the Celution®t8yn devices for all therapeutic applications dpaske regenerative cells.

As part of the various agreements with Olympuswilebe required, following commercialization ofdhloint Venture's Celution®ysten
or Systems, to provide monthly forecasts to thatddenture specifying the quantities of each cate@d devices that we intend to
purchase over a rolling six-month period. Althowgh are not subject to any minimum purchase requres) we are obliged to buy a
minimum percentage of the products forecasted iy sach reports. Since we can effectively continelnumber of devices we will agree
to purchase, we estimate that the fair value af giarantee is de minimis as of December 31, 2011.

In August 2007, we entered into a License and Rpysjreement with the Joint Venture. This Royaltgréement provides us the ability
to commercialize the Celution® System platform ieathan we could have otherwise done so undetettmes of the Joint Venture
Agreements. The Royalty Agreement enables Cytamaaufacture the Cytori systems, including Cel@®@00/CRS, until such time as
the Joint Venture’s products are commercially aldé, subject to a reasonable royalty that wilbbhgable to the Joint Venture for all such
sales. In November 2007, we amended our Licenset@onial Agreement with the Joint Venture to provikde continuance of our right
early commercialization on substantially the saemns after the three year term of the License amtRy agreement. During the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, in commeeith our sales of our Celution® 800/CRS Systeodpcts to the European and
Asia-Pacific reconstructive surgery market, we med approximately $166,000, $253,000 and $242 G8{ectively, in royalty cost
related to our agreement with the Joint Venturéas Thst is included as a component of cost of ptbdevenues in our consolidated
statements of operations.

During the fourth quarter of 2010, partial devel@minwas completed on the Joint Venture’s Celuti@y®tem to be used for research
purposes only. Although not yet available for comeia sale, the Joint Venture sold systems to Gysare product revenue and cost of
product revenue below) are for use in an upcomiimicel trial.

Deferred revenues, related party

As of December 31, 2011, the deferred revenuesteetparty account primarily consists of the comstion we have received in exchange
for contributions and obligations that we have adr® on behalf of Olympus and the Joint Ventuegsglany amounts that we have
recognized as revenues in accordance with our vevestognition policies set out in note 2). Thesatributions include product
development, regulatory approvals, and generapa@ated pre-clinical and clinical trials to suppiie commercialization of the

Celution® System platform. Our obligations alsoliie maintaining the exclusive and perpetual lieeiasour device technology,

including the Celution® System platform and certatated intellectual property.
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Condensed financial information for the Joint Veatu
A summary of the unaudited condensed financialrmédion for the Joint Venture as of December 31,128nd 2010 and for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and reiztiacilof net income (loss) of the joint ventureQyptori’'s equity loss from
investment in joint venture is as follows:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Balance Sheet:
Assets:
Cash $ 69,00( $ 183,00(
Amounts due from related pat 104,00( 632,00(
Prepaid insuranc 19,00( 16,00(
Computer equipment and software, 797,00( 995,00(
Total asset $ 989,00( $ 1,826,001
Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity:
Accrued expense $ 48,00( $ 77,00(
Amounts due to related par 95,00( 509,00(
Stockholders’ equity 846,00( 1,240,001
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 989,00( $ 1,826,001

Years ended December 3!

2011 2010 2009
Statements of Operations (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Product revenu $ 90,00 $ 458,000 $ —
Cost of product revent 87,00( 458,00( —
Gross profi 3,00( — —
Royalty revenut 166,00( 253,00( 242,00(
Operating expense
Research and developmt — 14,00( —
General and administrativ
Accounting and other corporate servi 164,00( 88,00( 75,00(
Quality system service 145,00( 135,00 63,00(
Depreciation expense for tooling equipm 230,00 130,00( —
Other 23,00( 33,00( 26,00(
Operating expenses 562,00( 400,00( 164,00(
Operating income (los! (393,000 (147,000 78,00(
Other income (expense
Interest incomt — 1,00( 1,00(
Net income (loss $ (393,000 $ (146,000 $ 79,00(
Reconciliation of net income (loss) to equity lofsom investment in joint venture
Net income (loss $ (393,000 $ (146,000 $ 79,00(
Intercompany elimination 25,00( 156,00( 167,00(
Net loss after intercompany eliminatic (418,000 (302,000 (88,000
Cytori's percentage of interest in joint vent 50% 50% 50%
Cytori’s equity loss from investment in joint venti $ (209,000 $ (151,000 $ (44,000

4. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value measurements are market-based measusmenentity-specific measurements. Therefolie vielue measurements are
determined based on the assumptions that markiitipants would use in pricing the asset or liapilWe follow a thredevel hierarchy tc
prioritize the inputs used in the valuation teclueis|to derive fair values. The basis for fair vaheasurements for each level within the
hierarchy is described below:

« Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for iiteal assets or liabilities.
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« Level 2: Quoted prices for similar assets oriliibs in active markets; quoted prices for ideatior similar instruments in markets
that are not active; and model-derived valuationgtich all significant inputs are observable itivaemarkets.
» Level 3: Valuations derived from valuation teajunés in which one or more significant inputs arehservable in active markets.

The following table provides a summary of the retegd assets and liabilities that we measure avédile on a recurring basis:

Balance as o Basis of Fair Value Measurement:
December 31, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash equivalent $ 30,646,000 $ 30,646,000 $ — 3 —
Liabilities:
Put option liability $ (1,910,00) $ — $ — $ (1,910,00)
Warrant liability $ (627,000 $ — $ — $ (627,000
Balance as o Basis of Fair Value Measurement:
December 31, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash equivalent $ 39,807,000 $ 39,807,00 $ — $ =
Liabilities:
Put option liability $ (1,170,000 $ — 3 — $ (1,170,001
Warrant liability $ (4,987,00) $ — $ — $ (4,987,00)

We use quoted market prices to determine the &direvof our cash equivalents, which consist of gonarket funds and therefore these
are classified in Level 1 of the fair value hietarc

We value our put liability (see note 3) using ati@ppricing theory based simulation analysis (iekeMonte Carlo simulation).
Assumptions are made with regard to the marketevaftlCytori and the estimated fair value of thenddenture, the expected correlation
between the values of Cytori and the Joint Ventilne expected volatility of Cytori and the Jointritiere, the bankruptcy recovery rate for
Cytori, the bankruptcy threshold for Cytori, the@pability of a change of control event for Cytannd the risk free interest rate. Because
some of the inputs to our valuation model are eitiod observable quoted prices or are not derivettipally from or corroborated by
observable market data by correlation or other metire put option liability is classified as Le&in the fair value hierarchy.

The following table summarizes the change in owrell& put option liability value:

Year ended Year ended
Put option liability December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Beginning balanc $ (1,170,000 $ (1,140,001
Decrease (increase) in fair value recognized imaijyg expense (740,000 (30,000
Ending balance $ (1,910,00) $ (1,170,00i)

Common stock purchase warrants issued in connesfithrour August 2008 private equity placement dbtnade in an active securities
market, and as such, we estimate the fair valukasfe warrants using the option pricing model. Sofitke significant inputs are
observable in active markets, such as common stzcket price, volatility, and risk free rate. Thaérfvalue of these warrants also
incorporate our assumptions about future equityanses and their impact to the dovaund protection feature. Because some of the §

to our valuation model are either not observableteg prices or are not derived principally froncorroborated by observable market data
by correlation or other means, the warrant liapibt classified as Level 3 in the fair value hietgr.
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The following table summarizes the change in owrell8 warrant liability value:

Year ended Year ended
Warrant liability December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Beginning balanc $ (4,987,00) $ (6,272,00i)
Decrease (increase) in fair value recognized imaijyg expenses 4,360,00! 1,285,00!
Ending balanc $ (627,000 $ (4,987,001

No other assets or liabilities are measured at/&lire on a recurring basis, or have been measuridr value on a non-recurring basis
subsequent to initial recognition, on the accompangonsolidated balance sheet as of December(31L,. 2

5. Fair Value
Financial Instruments

We disclose fair value information about all fineddnstruments, whether or not recognized in takbce sheet, for which it is practicable
to estimate fair value. The disclosures of estihfaé value of financial instruments at Decembgr 2011 and 2010, were determined
using available market information and appropriatiiation methods. Considerable judgment is necgs$santerpret market data and
develop estimated fair value. The use of differaatket assumptions or estimation methods may hawaterial effect on the estimated
value amounts.

The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalantgunts receivable, inventories, other curresgtas accounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities approximate faingalue to the short-term nature of these instrusnent

We utilize quoted market prices to estimate thevialue of our fixed rate debt, when availablegubted market prices are not available,
we calculate the fair value of our fixed rate defted on a currently available market rate assuthmgpans are outstanding through
maturity and considering the collateral. In deterimg the current market rate for fixed rate debhaaket spread is added to the quoted
yields on federal government treasury securitie¢h similar terms to the debt.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the aggregate &hirevand the carrying value of the Company’s firegd long-term debt were as

follows:
December 31, 201, December 31, 201
Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value
Fixed rate lon-term debt $ 24,211,000 $ 24,341,000 $ 19,782,00 $ 19,679,00

Carrying value is net of debt discount of $1,840,88d $1,321,000 as of December 31, 2011 and 284pectively.
Nonfinancial Assets and Liabilities

We apply fair value techniques on a non-recurriagi9associated with: (1) valuing potential impa&ntlosses related to goodwill which
are accounted for pursuant to the authoritativel@uie for intangibles—goodwill and other; and (@)uing potential impairment losses
related to long-lived assets which are accountegdiosuant to the authoritative guidance for propgalant and equipment.

All of our goodwill is associated with regeneratinad| technology, and we determine the fair valasdal on a combination of inputs
including the market capitalization of the compaaywell as Level 3 inputs such as discounted ftasls which are not observable from
the market, directly or indirectly. We conduct gaodwill impairment analysis annually as of Novem®@ each year, or upon the
occurrence of certain triggering events. No suitlyéring events occurred during the year ended Dbee 31, 2011. Historically, the fair
value has significantly exceeded its carrying value

We test for the impairment of our long-lived asselt®n triggering events occur and such impairméaty, is measured at fair value. The
inputs for fair value of our long lived assets wbbk based on Level 3 inputs as data used forfairchalue calculations would be based
on discounted cash flows using market place ppgiti assumptions. No triggering events occurrethguhe year ended December 31,
2011.
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6. Thin Film Japan Distribution Agreement

The Company has entered into a Distribution Agregmédth Senko. Under this agreement, we granteetoko an exclusive license to ¢
and distribute certain Thin Film products in Japad are responsible for the completion of theahiegulatory application to the MHLW
and commercialization of the Thin Film product lineJapan. Specifically, the license covers ThimRiroducts with the following
indications:

« Anti-adhesion,
« Soft tissue support, and
« Minimization of the attachment of soft tissues thighout the body

The Distribution Agreement with Senko commencesujgommercialization.” Essentially, commercializatioccurs when one or more
Thin Film product registrations are completed wita MHLW. As of December 31, 2011 commercializati@s not yet occurred.
Following commercialization, the Distribution Agraent has a duration of five years and is renewfablan additional five years after
reaching mutually agreed minimum purchase guarantee

The Distribution Agreement also provides for usupply certain products to Senko at fixed pricesrdkie life of the agreement once we
have received approval to market these produciapan. In addition to the product price, Senko alfb be obligated to make royalty
payments to us of 5% of the sales value of anyymrtsdSenko sells to its customers during the fimste years post-commercialization. We
are currently pursuing the required regulatory releae in order to initiate commercialization.

At the inception of this arrangement, we receivé 00,000 license fee which was recorded as mefeevenues in 2004. Half of the
license fee is refundable if the parties agree cemialization is not achievable and a proportiarabunt is refundable if we terminate the
arrangement, other than for material breach by &dnéfore three years post-commercialization. Wi tsso received $1,250,000 in
milestone payments from Senko. We have also eamedll be entitled to earn additional payments enthe Distribution Agreement
based on achieving the defined research and dewelapmilestones. We recognized no development tevezcognized during the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 underdgtegment.

7. Composition of Certain Financial Statement Captions
Inventories, net
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, inventories,wmete comprised of the following:

December 31

2011 2010
Raw materials $ 1,503,000 $ 2,311,00
Work in proces: 790,00( 410,00(
Finished goods 1,025,00! 657,00(

$ 3,318,000 $ 3,378,00
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Other Current Assets
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, other curremtasgere comprised of the following:

December 31

2011 2010
Prepaid insuranc $ 234,000 $ 230,00(
Prepaid othe 372,00( 477,00(
Other receivables 231,00( 127,00(

$ 837,000 $ 834,00(

Property and Equipment, net
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, property andpageit, net, were comprised of the following:

December 31

2011 2010
Manufacturing and development equipm $ 4,268,000 $ 4,035,00
Office and computer equipme 2,177,00! 2,137,00
Leasehold improvemen 3,255,00! 3,125,00!

9,700,001 9,297,001
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (7,989,001 (7,613,000

$ 1,711,000 $ 1,684,00

Depreciation expense totaled $618,000, $710,00(ap58,000 for the years ended December 31, ZNN, and 2009, respectively.
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, accounts payetnlexccrued expenses were comprised of the folgpwin

December 31

2011 2010
Accrued legal fee $ 829,00 $ 646,00(
Accrued R&D studie: 534,00( 1,227,001
Accounts payabl 272,00( 601,00(
Accrued vacatiol 908,00( 760,00(
Accrued bonu: 866,00( 1,045,001
Accrued expense 1,572,001 2,077,001
Deferred ren 37,00( 17,00(
Accrued accounting fee 90,00( 135,00(
Accrued payrol 226,00( 262,00(

$ 5,334,000 $ 6,770,00

8. Commitments and Contingencies

We have contractual obligations to make paymenteases of office, manufacturing, and corporatesimguspace as follows:

Operating
Years Ending December 31 Leases
2012 $ 1,879,00
2013 1,913,001
2014 1,766,001
2015 1,821,001
2016 1,867,001
2017 1,590,001
Total $ 10,836,00

Rent expense, which includes common area maintenémrcthe years ended December 31, 2011, 2012608 was $2,524,000,
$2,186,000 and $2,198,000, respectively.
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We have entered into agreements with various relseaganizations for pre-clinical and clinical dey@ment studies, which have
provisions for cancellation. Under the terms ofthagreements, the vendors provide a variety sfcgarincluding conducting research,
enrolling patients, recruiting patients, monitorstgdies and data analysis. Payments under theseragnts typically include fees for
services and reimbursement of expenses. The tiofipgyments due under these agreements was edlilvaded on current schedules of
pre-clinical and clinical studies in progress. Aecember 31, 2011, we have pre-clinical reseatgtly obligations of $60,000 (all of
which are expected to be complete within a yead)dimical research study obligations of $13,800,(#8,250,000 of which are expected
to be complete within a year). Should the timindhef pre-clinical and clinical trials change, theihg of the payment of these obligations
would also change.

During 2008, we entered into a supply agreemerit avininimum purchase requirements clause. As oééer 31, 2011, we have
minimum purchase obligations of $2,191,000 ($1,3@Q0f which are expected to be paid within a year)

We are subject to various claims and contingeneleged to legal proceedings. Due to their natsmeh legal proceedings involve inher
uncertainties including, but not limited to, courtings, negotiations between affected partiesgmarnmental actions. Management
assesses the probability of loss for such conticigerand accrues a liability and/or discloses éevant circumstances, as appropriate.
Management believes that any liability to us thayrarise as a result of currently pending legateedings will not have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, liquydior results of operations as a whole.

Refer to note 3 for a discussion of our commitmeamid contingencies related to our transactions @iytmpus, including (a) our obligati
to the Joint Venture in future periods and (b)aerput and call rights embedded in the arrangesngith Olympus.

Refer to note 6 for a discussion of our commitmemts contingencies related to our arrangementsSetiko.
Refer to note 9 for a discussion of our commitmemts contingencies related to our long-term obilogest
9. Long-term Obligations

On September 9, 2011 we entered into a Second Amemicko the Amended and Restated Loan and Se@gigement (loan agreement)
with General Electric Capital Corporation (GECCi)icen Valley Bank (SVB) and Oxford Finance Corptioa (together, the “Lenders”),
pursuant to which the Lenders increased the peion foan made to the Company to a principal amofi25.0 million (Term Loan),
subject to the terms and conditions set forth enlttan agreement. The Term Loan accrues interestietd rate of 9.87% per annum.
Pursuant to the loan agreement, we are requirethie (i) twelve (12) equal consecutive monthly gipal payments of $20,833 on the
first day of each calendar month, commencing orofet 1, 2011, (ii) twenty-nine (29) equal conseaitnonthly principal payments of
$825,000 on the first day of each calendar mom@mmencing on October 1, 2012, and (iii) and ondi(d) principal payment of
$825,000 on March 1, 2015. In addition, the majutite of the Term Loan has been extended untitMéar 2015, and at maturity of the
Term Loan, the Company will make a final paymemet égual to 5% ($1,250,000) of the Term Loan. We meyr additional fees if we
elect to prepay the Term Loan. In connection whith Term Loan, on September 9, 2011, we issuecetbehders warrants to purchase up
to an aggregate of 132,891 shares of our commak sttoan exercise price of $3.01 per share. Theseawts are immediately exercisable
and will expire on September 9, 2018.

The Term Loan amended the Amended and Restateddr@hSecurity Agreement, of which an aggregatenioalaf approximately $15.6
million remained outstanding along with a prorafied! payment fee of $419,000. The net proceedh®fTerm Loan, after payment of
lender fees and expenses, were approximately $#iérm

We accounted for this amendment as debt modifieatioce the terms of the amended Term Loan an®tiyinal Term Loan were not
substantially different and as present value ofi ¢lsvs of the modified instrument (using a net hoet of comparing the present value of
cash flows related to the lowest common princigdabce between the old and the new loans) wasnii®ib of the original debt
instrument. Accordingly, the fees associated withamended Term Loan of $300,000, final paymenofé,250,000, and the existing
unamortized debt discount from the Original Ternahof $332,000 will be amortized as an adjustméniterest expense over the tern
the Amended Term Loan using the effective intemssthod.
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We allocated the aggregate proceeds of the Term hetween the warrants and the debt obligationsdan their relative fair values. The
fair value of the warrants issued to the Lendecsisulated utilizing the Blackcholes option pricing model. We are amortizingriiative
fair value of the warrants as a discount of $260 ,0@er the term of the loan using the effectiveiiest method, with an effective interest
rate of 13.63%. If the maturity of the debt is decated due to an event of default, then the amatitin would be accelerated. The Term
Loan is collateralized by the tangible assets efdbmpany, including a security interest in sulisiliy all of its existing and afteacquirec
assets, excluding its intellectual property asgetsyided however, that if the Company does notaén certain cash ratios, the security
interest automatically will be deemed to include @ompany’s intellectual property assets. As ofddaer 31, 2011, we were in
compliance with our financial and non-financial eaants.

Additional details relating to the above term Ildhat is outstanding as of December 31, 2011, arsepited in the following table:

Current Remaining
Original Loan Interest Monthly Principal
Origination Date Amount Rate Payment* Term (Face Value)
September 201 $ 25,000,00 9.87% $ 225,62: 42 Month: $ 24,938,00

* Current monthly payment is inclusive of interesd anincipal
As of December 31, 2011, the future contractualgipial and final fee payments on all of our delst Erase obligations are as follows:

Years Ending December 31

2012 $ 2,693,00
2013 9,927,00!
2014 9,921,00!
2015 3,749,00
2016 6,00(
Total $ 26,296,00

Reconciliation of Face Value to Book Value as of @ember 31, 201.:

Total debt and lease obligations, including finayment fee (Face Valu $ 26,296,00
Less: Debt discour (1,847,001
Total: 24,449,00
Less: Current portio (2,487,000
Long-term obligation $ 21,962,00

Our interest expense for the years ended Decenih@031, 2010 and 2009 (most of which related éoldlan entered into September
2011, June 2010 and October 2008 was $2,784,00063P200 and $1,427,000, respectively. Intereseese is calculated using the
effective interest method, therefore it is inclesof noneash amortization in the amount of $711,000, $WB4nhd $709,000, respective
related to the amortization of the debt discourt eapitalized loan fees.

10. Income Taxes
Due to our net losses for the years ended Deceg&ihe@011, 2010 and 2009, and since we have recerfidtvaluation allowance against

deferred tax assets, there was no provision orfliéoeincome taxes recorded. There were no coreptsiof current or deferred federal or
state income tax provisions for the years endeceBéeer 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.
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A reconciliation of the total income tax provisitax rate to the statutory federal income tax r&t@486 for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

2011 2010 2009

Income tax expense (benefit) at federal statutaty (34.00 % (34.00 % (34.00) %
Income tax expense (benefit) at state statutogy (3.36) % (2.62) % (2.61) %
Mark to market permanent adjustm: (5.02) % (1.70) % 7.21%
Change in federal valuation allowar 45.7%% 40.41% 8.1t%
Change in State Ra (3.29) % 0.0(% 24.55%
Deferred revenu (2.09) % (2.82) % (0.28) %
Other, net 2.04% 0.6&% (3.0%) %

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant portions of the deferred tagets and deferred tax liabilities as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Deferred tax asset

Allowances and reservi $ 292,00 $ 217,00(
Accrued expense 587,00( 540,00(
Deferred revenu 3,276,00! 3,164,00!
Stock based compensati 4,886,001 3,860,00!
Net operating loss carryforwar 73,774,00 61,398,00
Income tax credit carryforwarc 5,569,00! 5,242,00!
Property and equipment, principally due to differesin depreciatio 707,00( 821,00(
Other 181,00( 0
89,272,00 75,242,00

Valuation allowance (89,200,00) (74,994,00)
Total deferred tax assets, net of allowa 72,00( 248,00(

Deferred tax liabilities
Intangibles (72,000 (151,000
Capitalized Assets and other 0 (97,000

Total deferred tax liability (72,000 (248,000

Net deferred tax assets (liabilit $ — $ —

We have established a valuation allowance againmstet deferred tax assets due to the uncertaimtpignding the realization of such
assets. We periodically evaluate the recoverahifithe deferred tax assets. At such time asdetermined that it is more likely than not
that deferred assets are realizable, the valuatiowance will be reduced. We have recorded a Vianallowance of $89,200,000 as of
December 31, 2011 to reflect the estimated amdutkéferred tax assets that may not be realizedingéteased our valuation allowance by
approximately $14,206,000 during the year endeceBéer 31, 2011. The valuation allowance includgs@pmately $579,000 related to
stock option deductions, the benefit of whichgiélized, will eventually be credited to equity arat to income.

At December 31, 2011, we had federal, Californm Massachusetts tax loss carryforwards of apprataiy $193,511,000, $127,557,0
and $164,000 respectively. The federal and stateperating loss carryforwards begin to expire@i2and 2012 respectively, if unused.
At December 31, 2011, we had federal and statertdit carryforwards of approximately $3,808,00d 3,594,000 respectively. The
federal credits will begin to expire in 2017, ifuged, and the state credits carry forward ind&fipitin addition, we had a foreign tax loss
carryforward of $10,694,000 in Japan, $1,226,008aity, $1,295,000 in Switzerland, and $51,000rdi&.

Pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) d86,%s amended, specifically IRC §382 and IRC §88Bability to use net operating
loss and R&D tax credit carry forwards to offseifie taxable income is limited if we experiencauenalative change in ownership of
more than 50% within a threesar period. We have completed an ownership changlysis pursuant to IRC Section 382 through April
2007. We did not have any ownership change linoitetibbased on that study. If ownership changesmwitié meaning of IRC Section 382
are identified as having occurred subsequent tdl Apr 2007, the amount of remaining tax carry fards available to offset future taxable
income in future years may be significantly resgéttor eliminated.
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11.

12.

We recognize tax benefits associated with the éseaf stock options directly to stockholders’ éguinly when realized. Accordingly,
deferred tax assets are not recognized for nettipgrioss carryforwards resulting from windfalk taenefits. At December 31, 2011,
deferred tax assets do not include $1,225,000 aésxtax benefits from stock-based compensation.

We changed our accounting method of accountingrieertain tax positions on January 1, 2007. Werttadnrecognized tax benefits as
the date of adoption.

Following is a tabular reconciliation of the unrgo@zed tax benefits activity during the years enBedember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

2011 2010 2009
Unrecognized Tax Benefi— Beginning $ 1,166,000 $ 1,115,000 $ 952,00(
Gross increase- tax positions in prior perio — — 4,00(
Gross decreas¢+ tax positions in prior perio — (49,000 —
Gross increas— curren-period tax position 138,00( 100,00( 159,00(
Settlement: — — —
Lapse of statute of limitations — — —
Unrecognized Tax Benefi— Ending $ 1,304,000 $ 1,166,000 $ 1,115,00

None of the amount included in our liability foraertain tax benefits if recognized would affect @@mpany’s effective tax rate, since it
would be offset by an equal reduction in the defétax asset valuation allowance. The Company'srded tax assets are fully reserved.

The Company did not recognize interest relatechteeognized tax benefits in interest expense andlfies in operating expenses as of
December 31, 2011.

The Company’s material tax jurisdictions are Unigdtes and California. The Company is currentlyumaler examination by the Internal
Revenue Service or any other taxing authority.

The Company’s tax years for 1999 and forward casutgect to examination by the United States ardd@aia tax authorities due to the
carryforward of net operating losses and reseageeldpment credits.

The Company does not foresee material changes lialiflity for uncertain tax benefits within thext twelve months.

Employee Benefit Plar

We implemented a 401(k) retirement savings andtmsbéring plan (the “Plan”) effective January 899. We may make discretionary
annual contributions to the Plan, which is allodatethe profit sharing accounts based on the numibgears of employee service and
compensation. At the sole discretion of the BodrDicectors, we may also match the participantsitdbutions to the Plan. We made no
discretionary or matching contributions to the Ata@011, 2010 and 2009.

Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

Preferred Stock

We have authorized 5,000,000 shares of $.001 pae ymeferred stock, with no shares outstandinof @ecember 31, 2011 and 2010. (

Board of Directors is authorized to designate #mes and conditions of any preferred stock we isgtleout further action by the commu
stockholders.
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On March 10, 2009, we raised approximately $10@0Djn gross proceeds from sale to institutionaéstors of a total of 4,771,174
shares of our common stock and warrants to puralase a total of 6,679,644 additional shares ofammmon stock at a purchase price
of $2.10 per unit, with each unit consisting of ¢heshare and one and foemths (1.4) warrants. The warrants will not bereisable unti
six months after the date of issuance and will exfive years after the date the warrants aredixstcisable. The warrants will have an
exercise price of $2.59 per share, which was tisa@ated closing bid price of the Company's comistock on March 9, 2009, as
reported by NASDAQ. The shares and the warrantgrareediately separable and will be issued separdféé have accounted for the
warrants as a component of stockholders’ defidie Warrants must be settled through a cash exemtiseeby the warrant holder
exchanges cash for shares of Cytori common stotkss the exercise occurs when the related retiistrstatement is not effective, in
which case the warrantholder can only exerciseutijitahe cashless exercise feature of the warraaeegent.

On May 14, 2009, we raised approximately $4,252j8Qfyoss proceeds from a private placement of4, /83 shares of our common
stock and warrants to purchase up to a total 3380 additional shares of our common stock atrah@ase price of $2.28 per unit, with
each unit consisting of one (1) share and one larefourths (1.75) warrants. The warrants arecés@anle immediately and will expire
five years after the date of issuance. The warnailthave an exercise price of $2.62 per share.HaAee accounted for the warrants as a
component of stockholders’ deficit.

Additionally, on June 19, 2009, we entered int@mmon stock purchase agreement with Seaside 88lafing to the offering and sale
a total of up to 7,150,000 shares of our commoaokstdrhe agreement required us to issue and Seasidg/ 275,000 shares of our
common stock once every two weeks, subject todhisfaction of customary closing conditions. Up@mpletions of our scheduled
closings pursuant to the agreement with SeasideB& June 2010, we raised approximately $30,1002if aggregate gross proceeds
from this transaction from the sale of 7,150,008rshk of our common stock between June 2009 and2Dite of which $17,314,000 in
gross proceeds from the sale of 3,300,000 shargsaised during 2010. We have accounted for eatireofompleted closings as a
component of stockholders’ deficit.

In October 2010, we entered into an underwritingeament with Jefferies & Company, relating to t®uance and sale of 4,600,000 st
of our common stock. This price to the public irstbffering was $4.50 per share and the underwhidsragreed to purchase the shares
from us at a price of $4.23 per share. The trafmagtas completed on October 13, 2010 raising apprately $20,700,000 in gross
proceeds before deducting underwriting discountsa@mmissions and other offering expenses payablesb

On December 13, 2010 we raised $10,000,000 in gnegeeds from a sale of 1,428,571 shares of ustexgd common stock to Astellas
Pharma Inc. for $7.00 per share in a private sptakement. Pursuant to the terms of the purchaseagnt, we granted Astellas Pharma
Inc. a two year right of first refusal to enterdra development and commercialization collaborati¢h us regarding the use of our
technology, on a worldwide basis, for the treatntériver conditions. In addition, we have agreedise reasonable efforts to file a
registration statement with the Securities and Brge Commission to register the shares of comnuwk $br resale upon the request of
Astellas Pharma Inc. We also granted Astellas Phdnm a non-voting observer seat on our Boardiggdbors and the right to designate a
representative member to our Scientific AdvisoryaBb The $10,000,000 in total proceeds we receixededed the market value of our
stock at the completion of the purchase agreeriért$2,526,000 difference between the proceed$veztand the fair market values of
our common stock is recorded as a component ofr@efeevenues in the accompanying balance shemstdifference was recorded as
deferred revenue since, conceptually, the excesepds represent a value paid by Astellas Pharmattnibutable to the scientific
advisory board seat, the non-voting observer seaiuo Board of Directors, and the two year righficst refusal to enter into a
development and commercialization collaboratiorhwi$ regarding the use of our technology, on adwide basis, for the treatment of
liver conditions, rather than an additional equityestment in Cytori. The recognition of this deés amount is expected to occur upon the
earlier of the expiration of the two year periodtoe termination of the agreement.

On July 11, 2011, we entered into a common stockhase agreement with Seaside 88, LP relatingetoffiering and sale of a total of up
to 6,326,262 shares of our common stock. The agraeraquires us to issue and Seaside to buy 1,826f2ares of our common stock at
an initial closing and 250,000 shares of our comstock once every two weeks, commencing 30 dags #fé initial closing, for up to an
additional 20 closings, subject to the satisfactibnustomary closing conditions. At the initiabsing, the offering price was $4.52, which
equaled to 88% of our common stock’s volume-weidlaeerage trading prices, or VWAP, during the tag-ttading period immediately
prior to the initial closing date, raising approxitely $6,000,000 in gross proceeds. At subsequesings, the offering price will equal
90.25% of our common stock’s volume-weighted averagding prices during the ten-day trading penmohediately prior to each
subsequent closing date. We raised approximatedy?86,000 in gross proceeds from the sale of 42826shares in our scheduled
closings through December 31, 2011.
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14.

Warrant Adjustments

Our March 2009 offering of 4,771,174 shares of@ammon stock and warrants to purchase up to aab®679,644 additional shares of
our common stock with an exercise price of $2.59spare, our May 2009 equity offering of 1,864, 883ares of our common stock and
warrants to purchase up to a total of 3,263,38®iaddl shares of our common stock with an exerpisee of $2.62 per share, our closii
with Seaside 88, LP through December 31, 2011 0mtiober 2010 offering of 4,600,000 shares of ounmon stock and our December
2010 sale of 1,428,571 shares of our common stagdetred an adjustment to the exercise price ancbeun of shares issuable under the
warrants issued to investors in our August 2008ape placement financing. As a result, as of Deaaritt, 2011, the common stock
warrants issued on August 11, 2008 are currenty@sable for 1,990,282 shares of our common stibek exercise price of $5.82 per
share.

Treasury Stock

As part of our equity offering on March 10, 200% sold our remaining 1,872,834 shares of commaskd$tom our treasury for
$3,933,000 cash, or $2.10 per share. The cost bbsis treasury stock sold was at a weighted @eepairchase price, or $3.63 per share,
resulting in a loss of $1.53 per share, or $2,881j8 aggregate, and was accounted for as a reduatiadditional paid-in capital.

Stockholders Rights Plan

On May 28, 2003, the Board of Directors declarelivadend distribution of one preferred share pusehdaght (a “Right”) for each
outstanding share of our common stock. The dividenmhyable to the stockholders of record on JupQ03, and with respect to shares
of common stock issued thereafter until the Disttidm Date (as defined below) and, in certain ainstances, with respect to shares of
common stock issued after the Distribution Datecdt as set forth below, each Right, when it becoexercisable, entitles the registered
holder to purchase from us one one-thousandth @0th) of a share of our Series RP Preferred S&@K01 par value per share (the
“Preferred Stock”), at a price of $25.00 per one-ttousandth (1/1000th) of a share of PreferredkSsubject to adjustment. Each share
of the Preferred Stock would entitle the holdeotio common stock with a value of twice that paidtfe Preferred Stock. The description
and terms of the Rights are set forth in a Riglgse&ment (the “Rights Agreement”) between us anahiidershare Trust Company, Inc.,
as Rights Agent, dated as of May 29, 2003, andresded on May 12, 2005 and August 28, 2007.

The Rights attach to all certificates represensingres of our common stock outstanding, and ateereed by a legend on each share
certificate, incorporating the Rights Agreementéference. The Rights trade with and only withdassociated shares of our common
stock and have no impact on the way in which haldan trade our shares. Unless the Rights Agreewssto be triggered, it would have
no effect on the Company’s consolidated balancetsfreincome statement and should have no taxteffethe Company or its
stockholders. The Rights Agreement is triggerechuppe earlier to occur of (i) a person or grouffifiated or associated persons having
acquired, without the prior approval of the Bodrdneficial ownership of 15% or more (20% or monedertain shareholders) of the
outstanding shares of our common stock or (ii) &@sd or such later date as the Board may detertahewing the commencement of or
announcement of an intention to make, a tender offexchange offer the consummation of which woekllt in a person or group of
affiliated or associated persons becoming an AaggiiPerson (as defined in the Rights Agreementgpiin certain circumstances (the
“Distribution Date”). The Rights are not exercisabintil the Distribution Date and will expire atthlose of business on May 29, 2013,
unless we redeem them earlier.

Stock-based Compensatiot

During 1997, we adopted the 1997 Stock Option andkSPurchase Plan (the “1997 Plan”), which prositte the direct award or sale of
shares and for the grant of incentive stock opt{6i80s”) and nonstatutory options to employees, directors or cdasts. The 1997 Pla

as amended, provides for the issuance of up t@700 shares of our common stock. The exercise pfitSOs cannot be less than the

fair market value of the underlying shares on thte @f grant. ISOs can be granted only to employEes 1997 Plan expired on October
22, 2007.
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During 2004, we adopted the 2004 Equity IncentilaRthe “2004 Plan”), which provides our employatisectors and consultants the
opportunity to purchase our common stock throughauelified stock options, stock appreciation righéstricted stock units, or restrict
stock and cash awards. The 2004 Plan initially joles/ for issuance of 3,000,000 shares of our comstmek, which number may be
cumulatively increased (subject to Board discrgtmman annual basis beginning January 1, 2005 hndmnual increase shall not exceed
2% of our then outstanding stock. As of December2B11, there are 1,050,036 securities remainimigeamilable for future issuances
under 2004 Plan, which is exclusive of securitgebd issued upon an exercise of outstanding optwaisants, and rights.

In August 2011, stockholders approved 2011 Empl@&teek Purchase Plan (ESPP), with a maximum of@@@0shares of our common
stock to be issued under this plan. Under the E8Ritble employees may purchase shares of ounummstock through payroll
deductions, which may not exceed 15% of an emplsyaenpensation. The price at which shares aitwoder the ESPP is established
by the duly appointed committee of the Board buy mat be less than 90% of the lesser of the faiketavalue per share of our common
stock on the offering date or on the purchase detaf December 31, 20011, there were no stoclaisses under this plan and no stock-
based compensation was recorded for this plarhéoyéar then ended.

Stock Options

Generally, options issued under the 2004 Plan®fd 897 Plan are subject to four-year vesting, awe fa contractual term of 10 years.
Most options contain one of the following two vestiprovisions:

o 12/48 of a granted award will vest after one ydaeovice, while an additional 1/48 of the award wést at the end of each mo
thereafter for 36 months, |

« 1/48 of the award will vest at the end of each manter a four-year period.

A summary of activity for the year ended Decembier2d11 is as follows:

Weighted
Average
Options Exercise Price
Balance as of January 1, 2C 7,050,68' $ 5.1¢
Grantec 1,113,95¢ $ 5.2C
Exercisec (200,759 $ 3. 82
Expired (397,490 $ 7.12
Cancelled/forfeited (109,209 4.6t
Balance as of December 31, 2011 7,457,18 ¢ 5.1
Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Options Exercise Price Term (years) Intrinsic Value
Balance as of December 31, 2( 7,457,18 $ 5.1% 552 $ 34,45(
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2011 7,417,44. $ 5.1% 552 $ 34,27
Exercisable at December 31, 2011 5,636,83' $ 5.0z 457 $ 22,18

The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdiseas $541,000, $1,529,000 and $682,000 for thesysraded December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009, respectively.

The fair value of each option awarded during tharyended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 wasatstiron the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation modeldshsn the following weighted-average assumptions:

Years ended December 3!

2011 2010 2009
Expected tern 5.5 year 5 year 5 year
Risk-free interest rat 1.95% 2.22% 1.9%
Volatility 72.3¢% 72.81% 66.8(%
Dividends — — —
Resulting weighted average grant date fair v. $ 324 $ 40z $ 2.3¢

We calculated the expected term of our stock optlmased on our historical data. The expected tealculated for and applied to all
employee awards as a single group as we do noteype does historical data suggest) substantififfgrent exercise or post-vesting
termination behavior amongst our employee populatio

We estimate volatility based on the historical tititg of our daily stock price over the period pegling grant date commensurate with the
expected term of the optio
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The weighted average risk-free interest rate remtsshe interest rate for treasury constant ntgitunétruments published by the Federal
Reserve Board. If the term of available treasumystant maturity instruments is not equal to theeekgd term of an employee option, we
use the weighted average of the two Federal Resecuities closest to the expected term of thel@yep option.

The dividend yield has been assumed to be zer@ga)have never declared or paid any dividendgando not currently anticipate
paying any cash dividends on our outstanding shafresmmon stock in the foreseeable future.

Restricted Stock Awards
Generally, restricted stock awards issued unde2@@d Plan are subject to a vesting period thataidés with the fulfillment of service
requirements for each award and have a contratetitralof 10 years. These awards are amortized tgpensation expense over the
estimated vesting period based upon the fair vafuair common stock on the award date.
A summary of activity for the year ended Decembier2911 is as follows:

Weighted

Restricted  Average Grant
Stock Awards Date Fair Value

Balance as of January 1, 2C 40,26¢ $ 4.8¢
Grantec 61,000 $ 5.74
Exercised/Released (21,529 $ 4.71
Balance as of December 31, 2( 79,747 ¢ 5.5¢
Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Options Exercise Price Term (years) Intrinsic Value
Balance as of December 31, 2( 79,747 $ 5.5¢ 9.C $ 175,43(
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 79,747 $ 5.5¢ 9.C $ 175,43(
Exercisable at December 31, 2011 48,24: $ 4.94 8¢S % 106,13(

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Awards

We granted 246,225 performanisased restricted stock awards under the 2004 Etnggntive Plan in February 2011. The awards pr
certain employees until January 1, 2012 to achéevtain performance goals established by the Cosgtieem Committee. The
performance goals are weighted based on the fallpwchievements: obtaining certain FDA clearancapproval (40%), achieving a
targeted revenue increase for the fiscal year ebdmember 31, 2011 (20%), and entering into a majtiaboration for development
and/or commercialization of the Company’s prod469s). To the extent that any of the performancagare partially achieved, the
Compensation Committee maintains the discretiaotdinue the vesting of all or a portion of the asgafollowing January 1, 2012. Once
earned, the awards will remain unvested until JanLia2013. Termination of employment prior to vegtwill result in the forfeiture of
any earned (as well as unearned) awards. Effegtimaary 2012, the outstanding awards ceased vdstsegl upon decision of the
Compensation Committee that performance critersartod been met as of January 1, 2012. No compensatpense was recognized
related to these awards during the year ended Dssre®d, 2011. The following table summarizes atgtiwiith respect to such awards
during the year ended December 31, 2011:

Weighted
Restricted Average Grant-
Stock Awards Date Fair Value

Outstanding at January 1, 20 0
Grantec 246,22 $ 5.82
Vested 0
Cancelled/forfeited 0

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 246,22 ¢ 5.82

Vested at December 31, 20 0
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The following summarizes the total compensatiort oasognized for the stock options and restrictedksawards in the accompanying
financial statements:

Years ended December 3:
2011 2010 2009

Total compensation cost for share-based paymesmhgements recognized
the statement of operations (net of tax of $ 3,316,000 $ 3,055,000 $ 2,649,00

As of December 31, 2011, the total unamortized aamsption cost related to outstanding unvested stpt&ns and restricted stock awe
for all of our plans is approximately $5,782,000e%e costs are expected to be recognized overghtsdiaverage period of 1.72 years.

Cash received from stock option and warrant exesdisr the years ended December 31, 2011, 201Q@0®Iwas approximately
$2,849,000, $7,128,000 and $531,000, respectiidgdyincome tax benefits have been recorded relatéluet stock option exercises as the
benefits have not been realized in our income ¢axrns.

To settle stock options and restricted stock awawveswill issue new shares of our common stockDAtember 31, 2011, we have an
aggregate of 24,462,062 shares authorized andablaiio satisfy option exercises under our plans.

Non-Employee Stock Based Compensation

During the third quarter of 2009, we issued 25,808res of restricted common stock to a non-emplogasultant. The stock is restricted
in that it cannot be sold for a specified periodimfe. There are no vesting requirements. Becdwesshares issued are not subject to
additional future vesting or service requiremetits, stock-based compensation expense of $92,006dextin the third quarter of 2009
constitutes the entire expense related to thistgaam no future period charges will be incurred.

Related Party Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2010, we rezedr$583,000 in product revenues, related paxdyn four sales transactions through
our distribution partner, Green Hospital Suppl. IBuring the first quarter of 2009, we sold a Ssemrce® Cell Bank in Japan through
our distribution partner, Green Hospital Supply. Ifor $600,000. The sale was completed pursuamtitdlaster Cell Banking and
Cryopreservation Agreement, effective August 1372Qvith Green Hospital Supply, Inc. No similaresabccurred during the year ended
December 31, 2011. As of December 31, 2011, 208®8aA9, Green Hospital, Inc. was a beneficial owafenore than five percent of o
outstanding shares of common stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, 2010 866, 2ve incurred approximately $166,000, $253,00)%242,000 in royalty costs in
connection with our sales of our Celution® 800/CR&tem products to the European and Asia-Pacifion&ructive surgery market,
pursuant to our License and Royalty Agreement heddimended License/Commercial Agreement with then@us-Cytori, Inc. joint
venture, respectively. As of December 31, 20110281d 2009, Olympus Corporation was a beneficial@veof more than five percent of
our outstanding shares of common stock.

Additionally, refer to note 3 for a discussion efated party transactions with Olympus.

Subsequent Event:

We have evaluated events after the balance shieebfilBecember 31, 2011 and up to the date we filedreport.

Subsequent to the quarter ended December 31, @@ldompleted four scheduled closings with Seas@jé.B during the period of

January 1, 2012 through our filing date raising@ggregate approximately $3,740,000 in gross prac&ed the sale of 1,250,000 share
our common stock in connection with the agreemenentered into with Seaside 88, LP on July 11, 2011
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17. Quarterly Information (unaudited)

The following unaudited quarterly financial infortizn includes, in management’s opinion, all themakand recurring adjustments
necessary to fairly state the results of operatinsrelated information for the periods presented.

For the three months endec

March 31, June 30, September 3C December 31
2011 2011 2011 2011

Product revenue $ 1,362,000 $ 2,411,000 $ 2,134,000 $ 2,076,001
Gross profil 520,00( 1,302,001 1,192,001 1,132,00!
Development revenus 1,235,001 11,00( 5,00( 762,00(
Operating expenst 12,998,00 5,685,00! 9,020,00! 7,868,00!
Other income (expens (829,000 (766,00() (512,000) (932,000)
Net loss $ (12,072,00) $ (5,138,000 $ (8,335,000 $ (6,906,000
Basic and diluted net loss per sh $ (0.29) $ (0.10 $ (0.15) $ (0.19)

For the three months endec

March 31, June 30, September 3C December 31
2010 2010 2010 2010

Product revenue $ 2,266,000 $ 2,091,000 $ 1,519,000 $ 2,378,00!
Gross profil 1,336,00! 1,208,001 599,00( 1,203,00!
Development revenue 2,143,00! 7,00( 65,00( 158,00(
Operating expenst 5,555,00! 6,257,001 10,255,00 9,975,00I
Other income (expense) (371,000 (335,000 (826,000 (639,000
Net loss $ (2,447,000 $ (5,377,00) $ (10,417,00) $ (9,253,00I
Basic and diluted net loss per share $ (0.06) $ (0.12) $ (0.2%) $ (0.19)

Item 9. Changes in and Disag ree ments with Accousmts on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedu res
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatetesigned to ensure that information requivdaetdisclosed in our reports filed or
furnished pursuant to the Exchange Act is recorgeatessed, summarized and reported within the pien@ds specified in the Securities
and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, andstizt information is accumulated and communicatezlit management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial iOffr, as appropriate, to allow for timely decisioagarding required disclosure. In
designing and evaluating the disclosure controts@ncedures, management recognizes that any &oatrd procedures, no matter how
well designed and operated, can provide only restsierassurance of achieving the desired contreabbes, and management necessarily
is required to apply its judgment in evaluating tlost-benefit relationship of possible controls anocedures.

As required by Rule 1345(b) under the Exchange Act, we carried out atuetian, under the supervision and with the pgrtition of ou
management, including our Chief Executive Officed £hief Financial Officer, of the effectivenessoofr disclosure controls and
procedures, as such term is defined under Rulel58s) promulgated under the Securities ExchangeoAt®34, as amended, as of the
of the period covered by this Annual Report of FAOK. Based on the foregoing, our Chief Executive €ffiand Chief Financial Offici
concluded that our disclosure controls and proesiwere effective as of the end of the period @véry this Annual Report.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finah&eporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaicitaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting. Internal control over
financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f)1d¥d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of4188 a process designed by, or under
the supervision of, the Company’s principal exeaitind principal financial officers and effectedtbg Company’s Board of Directors,
management and other personnel, to provide reaoassurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principlesincludes those policies and
procedures that:

« Pertain to the maintenance of records that in restsle detail accurately and fairly reflect the sactions and dispositions of t
Compan’s assets

« Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@ed as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iahstatements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, #nad receipts and expenditures of the Company eirglmade only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directorthefCompany; an

« Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, oselisposition of the Compa’s
assets that could have a material effect on ttanfial statement:

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdéaate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance whth policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our Chief Executive €ffiand Chief Financial Officer, we
have conducted an evaluation of the effectivenéssiinternal control over financial reporting @fsthe end of the fiscal year covered by
this annual report on Form 10-K based on the aitget forth ininternal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisg€DSO). Based on our evaluation, management coedlthat our internal control
over financial reporting was effective as of Decembl, 2011 based on COSO criteria. KPMG LLP, a@ejpendent registered public
accounting firm, who audited our consolidated ficiahstatements included in this Form 10-K, haséskattestation report on our internal
control over financial reporting, which is includedrein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogtin

There have been no changes in our internal coowe financial reporting during the quarter endest@nber 31, 2011 that have mater
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeaf, our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B. Other Informa tion

None.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Gover nance
The information called for by Item 10 is incorp@dtherein by reference to the material under tp&aras “Election of Directors” and
“Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Gowrece”in our Definitive Proxy Statement for our 2012 Aah¥eeting of Stocholders, to
filed with SEC on or before April 30, 2012 (the 20Rroxy Statement).

ltem 11. Executive Compensa tion

The information called for by Item 11 is incorpa@therein by reference to the material under tpéa@a“Executive Compensationfi our
2012 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Bene ficia Dwners and Management and Related Stockholder Magts

The information called for by Item 12 is incorpa@therein by reference to the material under tpéaa“Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management” in our 2012 PrStatement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ins , and Director Independence

The information called for by Item 13 is incorp@@therein by reference to the material under tp&aa“Information Concerning
Directors and Executive Officers- Certain Relatitips and Related Transactions” in our 2012 Proage®tent.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information called for by Item 14 is incorpadtherein by reference to the material under tpéaa“Principal Accountant Fees and
Services” in our 2012 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Ex hibit s, Financial Statement Schedules

(@) (1) Financial Statements
Reports of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Pulsticounting Firm 41
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,01 201( 43
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compséfehoss for the years ended December 31, 20111) a0d 200¢ 44
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity (Deficit) for the years ended December 3112, 2010 and 20C 45
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeailed December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2 47
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 49

@ (2) Financial Statement Schedule

SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 arfl 200
(in thousands of dollars)

Balance at
beginning of Balance at
year Additions (A) Deductions (B Other (C) end of year
Allowance for doubtful accoun
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 306 $ 482 $ (256) $ (59 $ 474
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 751 $ 46C $ (1,019 $ 10 $ 30€
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 122 $ 665 $ (34 $ — $ 751

(A) Includes increases to allowances for doubtful antxyunet of any equipment recove!
(B) Includes write off of uncollectible accounts re@dile, net of any equipment recove
(C) Includes collections fees incurred and productssateounts deferred that do not meet revenue retmgcriteria, net of cash receiv:
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Loan and Security Agreement dated September 9,.:

Promissory Note issued by the Company in favorildd Valley 8-K

Bank or any subsequent holder thereof, pursuathietb. oan and
Security Agreement dated September 9, 2
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101.DEF
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101.PRE

Promissory Note issued by the Company in favor xfb@l Financial
Corporation or any subsequent holder thereof, guntsto the Loan an

Security Agreement dated September 9, 2

Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpn
September 9, 2011 in favor of GE Capital Equitydstyents, Inc.,

pursuant to the Amended and Restated Loan andi§eggreement

dated September 9, 201

Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpn
September 9, 2011 in favor of Silicon Valley Baplrsuant to the

Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreemésd &eptembel

9, 2011.

Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpn

September 9, 2011 in favor of Oxford Financial @ogion, pursuant

to the Amended and Restated Loan and Security Aggaedated
September 9, 201

Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpn

September 9, 2011 in favor of Oxford Financial @ogtion, pursuant

to the Amended and Restated Loan and Security Aggatdated
September 9, 201

First Amendment to Lease Agreement entered intNavember 4,
2011, between HCP Callan Rd, LLC. and the Comp

2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Code of Ethics.
Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Pukdicounting

Firm (filed herewith)

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Purgudo Securities

Exchange Act Rule 1384(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 ¢

Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursitato Securitie:

Exchange Act Rule 1384(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 ¢

Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

Certifications Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1&#zurities Exchang
Act Rule 13a-14(b), as adopted pursuant to Se&of the Sarbane

- Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith
XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Schema Documel

XBRL Calculation Linkbase Docume
XBRL Definition Linkbase Documer
XBRL Label Linkbase Documel

XBRL Presentation Linkbase Docume

+

#
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this registration
statement to be signed on its behalf by the ungleesi, thereunto duly authorized.

CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC

By: /s/ChristopheldJ. Calhour

Christopher J. Calhot
Chief Executive Office
March 13, 201:

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this annual report has been dipedow by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/s/ Lloyd H. Dear Chairman of the Board of Directors March 13, 2012
Lloyd H. Dean

Chief Executive Officer, Vi-Chairman, Director (Principa March 13, 201:
/s/ Christopher J. Calhot Executive Officer
Christopher J. Calhot
/s/ Marc H. Hedrick, MC President, Directo March 13, 2012
Marc H. Hedrick, MD
/s/ Mark E. Saa Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offic¥ March 13, 201:
Mark E. Saac
/s/ John W. Townsen Chief Accounting Officer March 13, 2012

John W. Townsen

/s/ Richard J. Hawkin Director March 13, 201:
Richard J. Hawkin

/s/ Paul W. Hawrai Director March 13, 2012
Paul W. Hawrar

/s/ Ronald D. Henrikse Director March 13, 2012
Ronald D. Henrikse

/s/ E. Carmack Holmes, M Director March 13, 201:
E. Carmack Holmes, Ml

/s/ David M. Rickey Director March 13, 2012
David M. Rickey

/s/ Tommy G. Thompso Director March 13, 201:
Tommy G. Thompso
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EXHIBIT 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Cytori Therapeutics, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrtégistration statements (Nos. 333-82074 and 3289P) on Form S-8 and (Nos. 333-
134129, , 333-140875, 333-153233, 333-157023, TB12, 333-169822 and 333-172787) on For® &-Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. of ¢
reports dated March 12, 2012, with respect to thresalidated balance sheets of Cytori Therapedutics,and subsidiaries as of Decembel
2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statsnoé operations and comprehensive loss, stockmsldquity (deficit), and cash flows 1
each of the years in the thrgear period ended December 31, 2011, the accompgusghedule of valuation and qualifying accountsi tne
effectiveness of internal control over financiapoeting of Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. and subsidiaras of December 31, 2011, and tc
reference to our firm in Item 6, Selected FinanBiata, which reports and reference to our firm appé the December 31, 2011, annual re
on Form 10-K of Cytori Therapeutics, Inc.

/s KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
March 12, 2012




EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to
Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

[, Christopher J. Calhoun, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Cytori Therapeutics, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notadomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdmstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ céimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrar’ s other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contemid procedures (&
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedonge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly durifg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgadang the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentgisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgaures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;
and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegint’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repog) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesl\management or other employees who have a samtifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date:March 13, 201:
/s/ Christopher .Calhoun

Christopher J. Calhoul
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to
Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Mark E. Saad, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Cytori Therapeutics, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notadomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdmstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ céimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrar’ s other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contemid procedures (&
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedonge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly durifg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgadang the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentgisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgaures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;
and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegint’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repog) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesl\management or other employees who have a samtifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date:March 13, 201:
/s/ Mark E.Saad

Mark E. Saad
Chief Financial Office!




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350/SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14(b), AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES — OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 104ftCgtori Therapeutics, Inc. for the year ended Deloer 31, 2010 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dat@hezaristopher J. Calhoun, as Chief Executive €@ffiof Cytori Therapeutics, Inc., and
Mark E. Saad, as Chief Financial Officer of Cyfbhierapeutics, Inc., each hereby certifies, respelgti that:

1. The Form 1-K report of Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. that thistdf@ration accompanies fully complies with the r@gments of section 13(;
of the Securities Exchange Act of 19

2. The information contained in the Form-K report of Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. that thistdferation accompanies fairly presents, in
material respects, the financial condition and ltsesaf operations of Cytori Therapeutics, i

By: /s/ChristophelJ. Calhour
Dated:March 13, 201: Christopher J. Calhot
Chief Executive Office

By: /s/Mark E. Saac
Dated:March 13, 201: Mark E. Saac
Chief Financial Officel




